PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

August 19, 2025

The Prince Edward County Planning Commission encourages citizens participation in public meetings
through in-petson participation, written comments and/or remote participation by calling: 1-844-890-7777, Access
Code: 390313  (If busy, please call again.) Additionally, citizens may view the Commission meeting live in its entirety
at the County’s YouTube Channel, the link to which is provided on the County’s website.

7:00p.M. 1,

AR

10.

11.

~A~ A~~~

AGENDA
PAGE #

The Chair will call the August meeting of the Planning Commission to ordet.
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
Conflict of Interest Disclosures
Approval of Minutes 3
PUBLIC HEARINGS: The Commission will receive public input prior to 13

considering the following:

a. A special use permit request by Jonathan Yates for Arcola Towers in order to
construct a 197’ self-supporting communications tower on land denoted as Tax
Map Parcel 023B-2-2, located at 85 SMI Way, Farmville, VA, 0.10 mile from its
intersection with Industrial Park Road., which is zoned 11, General Industrial
District.

Review of Supervisors Actions
Old Business
New Business

Next Meeting:
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, September 16, 2025 at 7:00 p.m.

Adjournment



[This page intentionally left blank]



Planning Commission

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: August 19, 2025
Item No.: 5
Department: Planning and Community Development
Staff Contact: Robert Love
Agenda Item: Approval of Minutes
Summary:
For approval.
Attachments:
May 20, 2025 Draft Planning Commission meeting minutes
Motion Copeland Hart Peery
Second Fuller Hogan Prengaman
Gilliam Paige Weiss




Prince Edward County Planning Commission

Meeting Minutes
May 20, 2025
7:00 pm

Members Present: Brad Fuller Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.

David Hart John H. Hogan

Whitfield M. Paige John Prengaman
Absent: John “Jack” W. Peery, Jr. Rhett Weiss
Staff Present: Robert Love, Planning/Zoning Director Douglas P. Stanley, County Administrator

The Prince Edward County Planning Commission strongly encourages citizens to participate in public
meetings through in-person participation, written comments, and/or remote participation by calling: 1-844-
890-7777, Access Code: 390313 (If busy, please call again) Additionally, citizens may view the
Commission meeting live in its entirely at the County’s YouTube Channel, the link to which is provided on
the County’s website.

Public Hearing comments for Planning Commission meetings will be subject to the “Citizen Guide for
Providing Input During Public Participation and Public Hearings For Prince Edward County Government
Meetings” revised October 12, 2022,

Chairman Prengaman called the May 20, 2025 meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., established there was a quorum,
gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

In Re: Approval of Minutes
Commissioner Fuller made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Gilliam, to approve the meeting minutes

from February 18, 2025 and March 18, 2025; the motion carried:
Aye: Brad Fuller Nay: (None)
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
David Hart
John H. Hogan
Whitfield M. Paige
John “Jack” W. Peery, Jr.
John Prengaman
Rhett Weiss

In Re: Public Hearing — Special Use Permit Request, Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA LL.C
Chairman Prengaman announced this was the date and time scheduled to receive citizen input prior to
considering a Special Use Permit request filed by Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC for a proposal
to operate a restaurant on land totaling 1.5 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 107-A-44 with an address of
8306 Patrick Henry Highway, Green Bay, VA on US Route 360, which is zoned Agricultural Conservation
(A1) District. Notice of this hearing was advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 7, 2025 and
Friday, May 9, 2025 editions of THE FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of
Prince Edward.

The County has received an application request by Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC for a Special
Use Permit to operate a restaurant on land totaling 1.5 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 107-A-44 with



an address of 8306 Patrick Henry Highway Green Bay, VA on US Route 360, which is zoned Agricultural
Conservation (Al) District.

The purpose of the Special Use is to allow for the establishment of a restaurant in an existing vacant building.
The building was formerly used as a gasoline station but has been closed for many years. County staff is of
the opinion the use is generally compatible with the zoning district but will have minimal impacts on
surrounding properties as far as traffic and noise.

Mr. Love said VDOT inspected the entrances which will work for this use. The applicant has reviewed and
agrees to the conditions set forth. Mr. Love said the occupancy will be declared by the Building Official
after the renovation and inspection.

Paul Ward, applicant, stated they are currently remodeling the building; he said hours of operation are
planned to be 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., and only closed on Christmas Day. He said they plan to serve BBQ,
home cooked meals, and breakfast all day. He said he would like to open by the end of July [2025]; he is in
the process of getting the water tested by the Health Department.

Commissioner Fuller questioned the type of signage intended. Mr. Ward said he will place the sign over the
porch area, on the building; he added the lighting will be placed on the side corners of the building.

Commissioner Fuller asked about parking for tractor-trailers; Mr. Ward said he doesn’t think they would be
able to get under the wiring, and will put signs that they cannot park there.

Chairman Prengaman asked how many customers can be seated; Mr. Ward said he would like to seat 43-45,
plus he will have outside patio seating.

Chairman Prengaman opened the public hearing.

Donald Sura, Lockett District, stated Mr. Ward had a restaurant in Burkeville, there were never problems and
was always clean, and wanted to speak in favor of the project.

There being no one further wishing to speak, Chairman Prengaman closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Hogan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Gilliam, that the Planning Commission
recommend approval to the Board of Supervisors of the Special Use Permit request by Dogwood Properties
Green Bay, VA, LLC with the following conditions; the motion carried:
Aye: Brad Fuller Nay: | (None)
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
David Hart

John H. Hogan
Whitfield M. Paige
John Prengaman
Absent: John “Jack” W. Peery, Jr., Rhett Weiss

Special Use Permit — Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC
Tax Parcel Map #: 107-A-44
POTENTIAL CONDITIONS

SITE PLAN

1. Development activities on the site shall be limited to those as specified in the Special Use Permit
Application and Site Plan. The final locations of incidental facilities may be adjusted



provided no such adjustment violates any buffers, setbacks, or other statutory requirement. The
concepts reflected in the filed special use permit dated 03/30/2025 are hereby made part of these
development conditions.

Final site plan approval for the Restaurant shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County Com-
munity Development Department for final review and approval pursuant to Appendix B of the
Prince Edward County Code (Zoning Ordinance).

Any proposed expansion of the operation, change of activities or additional facilities or activities
shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County Planning and Community Development office for
review prior to implementation. Any changes may be subject to Permit amendment procedures,
including Public Hearings.

All buildings within the property shall be developed as a cohesive entity ensuring that building
placement, architectural treatment, parking lot lighting, landscaping, trash disposal, vehicular and
pedestrian circulation and other development elements work together functionally and aestheti-
cally.

All Iandscaping shall be mulched and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of the Prince Ed-
ward County Planning and Community Development Director. Any vegetation found to be of poor
condition shall be replaced and/or improved at the reasonable direction of the Planning and Com-
munity Development Director or his designee.

ENVIRONMENTAL

All pollution control measures, erosion and sediment control measures, storm water control facili-
ties, and all construction activities shall comply with the requirements of the appropriate federal,
state, and local regulations and ordinances.

All facilities for the provision of potable water and sanitation and wastewater disposal systems and
food preparation shall be approved by the appropriate local, state, or federal agency including but
not limited to Virginia Department of Health, Virginia Departments of Environmental Quality,
Environmental Protection Agency, etc.

Any development activities of a structural or land disturbing nature not specifically addressed by
these Conditions shall be in conformance with applicable provisions of federal, state, and local
statues and regulations.

TRANSPORTATION

10.

11.

All entrances to the sire shall be installed in accordance with and permitted by the Virginia De-
partment of Transportation.

All internal roads used for public access shall be of compacted earth or have a minimum of a four
(4) inch stone base and shall be paved with concrete, asphalt, or durable pervious paving material.

Adequate area shall be provided on site to accommodate parking of all employees and patrons. It
shall be the responsibility of the Permittee to assure that employees and patrons park only on site
and not on any highway right-of-way, or on adjoining or adjacent parcels unless written consent is
provided by the owner or owners thereof.



GENERAL

12. Restaurant hours of operation shall be limited to 6 a.m. until 8 p.m. daily.

13. Occupancy shall be limited to the determination by the Prince Edward County Building Official in
accordance with the 2021 Virginia Building Code.

14. Site signage shall be limited to a monument and storefront sign, as specified in Appendix B — Zon-
ing, Section 3-104.5 (2) and Section 3-104.5 (3).

15. All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed so as to minimize glare onto adjoining proper-
ties or any public access road. All lighting shall be full cut-off type fixtures.

16. Outdoor storage of trash containers shall be appropriately screened per Prince Edward Zoning Or-
dinance, Section 4-200.15.

17. The Permittee is responsible for the appearance of the site including litter pick-up and other or-
derly site appearance.

18. This Permit is non-transferable, except and unless written notice from the Permittee regarding the
transfer, and a signed document from the proposed new Permittee is received by the Planning and
Community Development Office which states that the new Permittee agrees to comply with all
terms and Conditions imposed with the original Permit Issuance. If the proposed new Permittee
desires to amend the original Permit Conditions, amendments must be addressed by the Prince Ed-
ward County Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors through the Special Use Permit pro-
cess.

19. Failure of Permittee to full conform to all terms and conditions may result in revocation of this
Special Use Permit if said failure or failures are not corrected or addressed to the satisfaction, not
to be unreasonably withheld, of the County within thirty (30) days of written notice from the
County.

In Re: Public Hearing — Special Use Permit, Michael & Helen Royea, Rural Events Center
Chairman Prengaman announced this was the date and time scheduled to receive citizen input prior to

considering a Special Use Permit request filed by Michael and Helen Royea for a proposal to operate a rural
events center on land totaling 136.49 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 055-A-32 with an address of 25943
Prince Edward Highway, Rice, VA on US Route 460, which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A1) District.
Notice of this hearing was advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 7, 2025 and Friday, May 9,
2025 editions of THE FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of Prince Edward.

Mr. Love stated the County has received an application request by Michael and Helen Royea for a Special
Use Permit to operate a rural events center on land totaling 136.49 + /- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 055-
A-32 with an address of 25943 Prince Edward Highway, Rice, VA on US Route 460, which is zoned
Agricultural Conservation (A1) District.

The purpose of the Special Use is to allow for the establishment of a rural events center. County staff is of
the opinion the use is generally compatible with the zoning district but will have minimal impacts on
surrounding properties as far as traffic and noise.



Mr. Love said the applicants stated there will be space for 125 attendees and five employees; that is a
stipulation by the Health Department and VDOT for this site based on the available facilities and driveway
entrances. He said there were no comments opposing this project, and one comment in favor of this project.

Commissioner Hart questioned the limit to five employees. Mr. Love said there can only be 130 people (per
Health Department regulations) on the site, and that was the applicant’s designation. Discussion followed.

Michael Royea stated the Special Use Permit is for Red Hill Ranch, which is the LLC associated with the
property. He said there are 134 [acres] and an additional 3.7-acre lot that sits along Route 460 and another
4.3 [acre lot] beside that property that is wooded and has a natural stream flowing through it. He said there
will be a 40’ x 80’ building with two 12’ x 80’ lean-tos; lighting will be on six 30” poles around the building
and will be solar powered with very soft lighting. He said it gives the outline of the building and the
surrounding area of about 10° to 20°, with nothing that points directly towards any of the properties. The
parking is intended to be in the front lot, the 3.7 acres, and is grass and well drained; any sound will be turned
to face the woods. He said there are 200 acres behind, which is wooded as well. Mr. Royea stated the main
concrete pad is poured with one more to go; he said the building will be fully enclosed. He then stated the
signage will be a 5* x 5°, and they have a permit from the Health Department for 125 people. He said he did
GIS mapping and this center will be 750” from the nearest resident. He added the property is on a hill and
the sunsets are amazing. These events will be normalized by reservation or invitation.

Commissioner Fuller asked if this will be a 12-month facility; Mr. Royea said it will be once it is closed in.
Chairman Prengaman opened the public hearing.

Beverly B. Hines, Lockett District, said her property adjoins at the back of the Royea’s property. She asked
the hours of operation. Helen Royea said it will be from 10:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m., adding that most weddings
begin about 2:00 p.m. Mr. Royea said weddings typically last longer.

Mrs. Royea said other events would be festivals, fund raisers, and other events with vendors and typically
would run from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. She said there will be no motorized vehicles and no revving of
engines.

Mr. Love said this will be a highly regulated property and presented the definition of a Rural Event location.
He said “a Rural Event facility is a facility located on a parcel of land 20 acres or larger in size. It allows
Jor events typically conducted on a single day, for which attendance is permitted by making a reservation.
Facilities may host usual customary activities including, but not limited to, private parties; business
meetings; educational seminars; wedding receptions; wedding ceremonies; class and family reunions;
showers, i.e. baby and bridal; similar events and activities for non-profit organizations; and similar events
and activities as determined by the zoning administrator.” He said it is not in way affiliated with motor
sports, and there will be no overnight events.

Chairman Prengaman asked if this will be operated seven days a week. Mr. Royea said that it will be by
reservation only.

Ms. Hines asked if this will host horse events. Mrs. Royea said there were in the past [on that property], but
the ring is no longer there; she said that it may be in the future but they want to protect the waterways.
Discussion followed.

Commissioner Hart asked how the site is currently accessed; Mrs. Royea said they use the driveway [off
Route 460].

Commissioner Hart then asked how far this site is from the neighbors. Mrs. Royea said the site is closer to
the wooded area.

Don Sura, Lockett District, stated that he shares a boundary of approximately 1,300 feet, and has already
heard music coming from the site. He asked that the events end at 10:00 p.m. Mr. Love said the conditions



include that quiet time is from 11:00 p.m. until 8:00 a.m. He said the noise ordinance in Prince Edward
County requires two individuals of different households to file a complaint; he said the County noise
ordinance states it will be unlawful for someone to permit sound to be heard across residential property
boundary or partitions in a building to be plainly audible at a distance of 50’ from its source.

Mr. Sura said that the waterways on the property go into Saylor’s Creek; Mr. and Mrs. Royea said they are
aware. Mr. Sura then stated he supports this project.

Rose Simmons, [call-in], asked if [Mr. and Mrs. Royea] intend to expand the property. Mr. Love stated the
project is restricted to the parcel.

Deborah Young, [call-in], questioned how close to the property is Tax Map Parcel 055-A-3. Mr. Love said
there is at least 800’ distance.

Ms. Young then asked the next steps and asked about the process for input. Mr. Love said after the Planning
Commission makes its determination, the issue then goes before the Board of Supervisors with the same
process for input.

Ms. Simmons then asked about the 40° by 80° structure. Chairman Prengaman said that is where the events
will be held.

Seth Sura, Lockett District, said the special use permit is to allow wedding ceremonies on the property. He
said sound is the biggest concern and is concerned with the effect this will have on the wildlife that frequent
the wooded area at the back of their property. He stated he is opposed to this project.

Mrs. Royea said that once the building is finished and enclosed, it will be insulated and the sounds will not
be heard. She said they will get a certain “bat” to make sure it is insulated. Mr. Royea said there will be no
nightclub sound system, and will be inside the building.

There being no one further wishing to speak, Chairman Prengaman closed the public hearing.
Chairman Prengaman reviewed the comments raised regarding the current conditions.

Commissioner Fuller requested the events be restricted no later than 10:00 p.m. Mr. Love stated the
conditions restrict quiet time at 10:00 p.m., which is when the music and noise will shut down.

Commissioner Fuller requested the stipulation that the events conclude at 10:00 p.m.

Mr. Royea stated that there could still be traffic after 10:00 p.m. and clean-up can sometimes take until
midnight. There is no concert setup and can shut down at 10:00. Discussion followed regarding the events
taking place from 8:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m., and the maximum number of people onsite limited to 130 to
include the employees.

Commissioner Hogan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hart, that the Planning Commission
recommend approval of the Special Use Permit request by Michael and Helen Royea for the purpose of
establishment of a rural events center with the following conditions, as amended: the motion carried:
Aye: Brad Fuller Nay: | (None)

Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
David Hart

John H. Hogan
Whitfield M. Paige
John Prengaman
Absent: John “Jack” W. Peery, Jr., Rhett Weiss




Special Use Permit - Michael and Helen Royea dba Red Hill Ranch LLC
Tax Map #: 055-A-32
POTENTIAL CONDITIONS

SITE PLAN

1. Development activities on the site shall be limited to those as specified in the Special Use Permit

Application and Site Plan. The final locations of incidental facilities may be adjusted provided no
such adjustment violates any buffers, setbacks, or other statutory requirement. The concepts re-
flected in the filed special use permit dated 04/02/2025 are hereby made part of these development
conditions.

Final site plan approval for the Rural Events Center shall be submitted to the Prince Edward
County Community Development Department for final review and approval pursuant to Article IV
Development Standards of the Prince Edward County Code (Zoning Ordinance).

Any proposed expansion of the operation, change of activities or additional facilities or activities
shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County Planning and Community Development office for
review prior to implementation. Any changes may be subject to Permit amendment procedures,
including Public Hearings.

All buildings within the property shall be developed as a cohesive entity, ensuring that building
placement, architectural treatment, parking lot lighting, landscaping, trash disposal, vehicular and
pedestrian circulation and other development elements work together functionally and aestheti-
cally.

All landscaping shall be mulched and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of the Prince Ed-
ward County Planning and Community Development Director. Any vegetation found to be of poor
condition shall be replaced and/or improved at the reasonable direction of the Planning and Com-
munity Development Director or his designee.

ENVIRONMENTAL

6.

All erosion and sediment control measures, storm water control facilities, and all construction ac-
tivities shall comply with the requirements of the appropriate federal, state, and local regulations
and ordinances.

All facilities for the provision of potable water and sanitation and wastewater disposal systems
shall be approved by the Virginia Department of Health.

Any development activities of structural of land disturbing nature not specifically addressed by
these Conditions shall be in conformance with applicable provisions of federal, state, and local
statues and regulations.

TRANSPORTATION

9.

10.

11.

All entrance permits must be authorized by the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT).
Development activities shall comply with all requirements of VDOT.

All internal roads used for public access shall be of compacted earth, or have a minimum of a four
(4) inch stone base, or shall be paved.

Adequate area shall be provided on site to accommodate parking of all employees and patrons. It
shall be the responsibility of the Permittee to assure that employees and patrons park only on site

10



and not on any highway right-of-way, or on adjoining or adjacent parcels unless written consent is
provided by the owner or owners thereof.

GENERAL

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Building occupancy shall be limited to the determination by the Prince Edward County Building
Official in accordance with the 2021 Virginia Building Code. Event attendance shall be limited to
a total 130 persons including staff.

All activities shall comply with Article II — Noise of the Prince Edward County Code. Events
hours shall be limited to 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. with quiet time from 10 p.m. to 8 a.m.

All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed so as to minimize glare onto adjoining proper-
ties or any public access road. All lighting shall be full cut-off type fixtures.

Outdoor storage of trash containers shall be situated at the rear of buildings and shall be appropri-
ately screened.

The Permittee is responsible for the appearance of the site including litter pick-up and other or-
derly site appearance.

This Permit is non-transferable, except and unless written notice from the Permittee regarding the
transfer, and a signed document from the proposed new Permittee is received by the Planning and
Community Development Office which states that the new Permittee agrees to comply with all
terms and Conditions imposed with the original Permit Issuance. If the proposed new Permittee
desires to amend the original Permit Conditions, amendments must be addressed by the Prince Ed-
ward County Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors through the Special Use Permit pro-
cess.

Failure of Permittee to full conform to all terms and conditions may result in revocation of this
Special Use Permit if said failure or failures are not corrected or addressed to the satisfaction, not
to be unreasonably withheld, of the County within thirty (30) days of written notice from the
County.

In Re: Review of Supervisors Actions

Mr. Love stated the Board of Supervisors approved the CEP — Oak Lane Solar project and siting agreement.
He said the Green Bay Solar project will go before the Board at their June 10% meeting; they have pulled the
panels from the Route 360 side of the stream, and are appealing the Substantially In Accord determination.

In Re: Old Business

(None)

New Business
Mr. Love stated there may be no meeting June 17. There will be a joint public hearing for the Comprehensive
Plan, Tuesday, June 24, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. in the Board of Supervisors Room.

Chairman Prengaman declared the meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m.

Next Meeting: TBD

11



[This pageintentionally left blank]

12



Planning Commission
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: August 19, 2025

Item No.: 6

Department: Planning and Community Development
Staff Contact: Robert Love

Issue: Special Use Permit — Arcola Towers
Summary:

The County has received an application request by Jonathan Yates for Arcola Towers for a Special Use
Permit to construct a 197’ self-supporting communications tower on land denoted as Tax Map Parcel
023B-2-2, located at 85 SMI Way, Farmville, VA, 0.10 mile from its intersection with Industtial Park Road.
This parcel is in the I1, Industrial General zoning district and the use requires a Special Use Permit.

The public hearing notice was published in the August 6, 2025 and August 8, 2025 editions of the
Farmville Herald, Attachment (2). The list of adjoining property ownets and the sample letter sent to each
can be found in Attachments (3) and (4). Attachment (5) is a copy of the tax map page that depicts the tax
map parcel the communications tower will be placed and surrounding property. The parcel is outlined in
blue. Attachment (6) is the staff prepared Potential Conditions.

County staff is of the opinion the use is generally compatible with the zoning district and will have
minimal impacts on surrounding properties as far as traffic and noise.

Attachments:

1. Special Use Permit Application

2. Notice of Public Hearing

3. List of adjoining property owners

4. Sample Letter sent to adjoining property owners and Town of Farmville
5. Tax Parcel Map

6. Potential Conditions

Recommendations:
1. Conduct the Public Hearing and render a decision concerning the request for the Special Use

Recommended Motions:
I move that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Special Use Permit request by Arcola
Towers to construct a 197’ communications tower with the following conditions:

(list of conditions)
Motion Copeland Hart Peery
Second Fuller Hogan Prengaman

Gilliam Paige Weiss

13



Planning Commission
Agenda Summary

OR

I move that the Planning Commission recommend denial of the Special Use Permit request by Atcola
Towers to construct a 197” communications tower due to the following:
(list reasons)

OR

I move that the Planning Commission table Special Use Permit request by Arcola Towets to construct a
197 communications tower until the next meeting in order to:

(Vist reasons)
Motion Copeland Hart Peery
Second Fuller Hogan Prengaman

Gilliam Paige Weiss

14



PERMIT/APPLICATION NO

ZONING DISTRICT .
MAGISTERIALDISTRICT_

DATE SUBMITTED

County of Prince Edward

PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY APPLICATION
FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT

COMMENTS:

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE

TO: PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUESTED:
VIA: ZONING ADMINISTRATOR

The undersigned owner of the following described property hereby applies for a Special Use permit as
provided in Section 5-124 of Article V, Site Plan requirements are found in Section 4-100 of Article IV Development
Standards of the Zoning Ordinance of Prince Edward County, Virginia.

Applicant's Name: Jgnathan.Yates far Arcola Yowers o I
Applicant’s Address: 165 Broad Street. Third Flaor. Chacleston. SC 20401 -
Applicant’s Telephone Number: {843) 414-9754

Present Land Use: 11 - General Industrial . I .

Legal Description of Property with Deed Book and Page No. or Instrument No. please see Exhibit “12" and
213" in the attached narrative. man L B B S b

TaxMap# @238 2 2 Acreage ' 4,682
Narrative statement evaluating effects on adjoining properties (noise, odor, dust, fumes, etc.): (Attach additional sheet if
necessary.) _plesse.see-atlached. wu.}‘a._naamm.._ e N e e

Statemenl of general compatiblllty wnn adjacent and other propemes in the zoning district. (Attach additional sheet if
necessary.) _please sece. atiaches PLOREEL. DAL LATINE

Height of Pﬁnclpal Bullding (s): Feet 197 Stories y/A .
APPLICANT'S STATEMENT: (if not owner(s) of property):

I hereby certify that | have the authority to make the foregoing application, that the information given is
complete and correct to the best of my knowledge, and that development and/or constniction will conform with
the regulations as set forth in the Prince Edward County Zoning Ordinance as written and also with the

description contained in this permit application.
07/0%5/ 15 -
Daté

PROPERTY
| hereby certify that /We own the above described property, that the Information given s complete and
correct to the best of my knowledge, and the above person(s), group, corporation, or agent has the full and
complete permission of the undersigned owner{s) to make appliication for a Conditional Use permit as set forth in
the Prince Edward County ng dinance as written,

4wire of Property Owner(s)
Signature of Property Owner(s) © “Date S )
Signature of Property Owner(s) ' Date . s—

NOTE: THIS PERMIT APPLICATION iS NOT VALID UNLESS ALL PROPERTY OWNER(S) SIGNATURES ARE

AFFIXED AND DATED. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NE%
Application Fee  $300.00 Fee Received by _ " __ pae 0T _Z ZstS

The above mentioned application charges are nonrefundable, regardiess of whether the permit application is
approved or denied once submitted.

All checks for payment should he made payable to: Treasurer, Prince Edward County, Virginia.

Mail to: Depariment of Planning &
Community Development
P. O. Box 382
Farmville, VA 23901
(434) 392-8837

15



HELLMAN YATES

JONATHAN L. YATES
DIRECT VOICE 843 414-9754
JLY@HELLMANYATES.COM

July 3, 2025
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Robert Love

Director of Planning and Community Development
111 N. South Street, 3¢ Floor

Farmville, VA 23901

(434) 414-3037

HELLMAN & YATES, FA

148 KING STREET, SUITE 102
CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29401
VvV 843 266-8099

F 843 266-9186

Re:  Application for construction of a 197-foot self-support wireless
telecommunications facility located at 85 SMI Way, Farmville, VA 23901 (Parcel ID

#023B 2 2) on behalf of Arcola Towers and Verizon Wireless.

Dear Mr. Love,

Enclosed, please find the application of Arcola Towers and Verizon Wireless for a
proposed 197-foot self-support wireless telecommunications facility. The proposed
facility will be on the property of James W. Ailsworth, which is located at 85 SMI Way,
Farmville, VA 23901 and is designated as Prince Edward County Parcel ID number
023B 2 2. This is a very important facility to allow Verizon Wireless to improve its
coverage for both voice and advanced data in this section of Prince Edward County.

We have taken the liberty of recasting the relevant sections of the Prince Edward County
Zoning Ordinance, with our answer to the relevant section in bold beneath. As will be
evident from a review of the attached, Arcola and Verizon Wireless have not only met,
but exceed, all of the necessary requirements for approval under the Prince Edward

County Zoning Ordinance.

Towers

(A) Intent: These minimum standards are intended to govern the location of all
towers and the installation of antennas and accessory equipment structures.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision.

(B) Towers, with related unmanned equipment buildings, shall be permitted only
by special use permit in zoning districts as specified in article II, District

16



Regulations. Applicants are encouraged to consider properties owned by the
county when locating towers.

Please see the Site Plan and Drawing by Virginia Professional
Engineer Stuart P. Patterson attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and
incorporated herein by reference. The Ailsworth property is located
in the I1 (general industrial) zoning district.

(C) General standards:

1. No tower or related facilities shall be located within 500 feet of any
residential district.

The proposed self-support facility is not located within 500 ft. of
any residential district, as shown on Sheet Z-1 of the Site Plan
and Drawings in Exhibit “1”, All surrounding properties are
zoned I1 and are for business, commercial, or municipal use.
The nearest residential district to the compound is 1712 ft to the
southwest.

2. No new tower shall be permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to the
reasonable satisfaction of the board of supervisors that no existing tower
or structure can accommodate the proposed antenna. Evidence submitted
to demonstrate that no existing tower or structure can accommodate the
applicant's proposed antenna may consist of any of the following:

a. No existing towers or structures are located within the geographic
area required to meet the applicant’s engineering requirements.

b. Existing towers or structures are not of sufficient height to meet the
applicant's engineering requirements.

c. Existing towers or structures are not of sufficient structural strength
to support the applicant's proposed antenna or related equipment.

d. The applicant's proposed antenna would cause electromagnetic
interference with existing antenna, or the antenna on the existing

17



towers, or structures would cause interference with the applicants
proposed antenna.

e. The applicant demonstrates that there are other limiting factors that
render existing towers or structures unsuitable.

As shown on Sheet Z-1 of Exhibit “1”, the nearest tower is 195-
foot Crown monopole 1.3 miles to the southeast. Please see the
Alternative Candidate Analysis by Ryan Foltz of Arcola Towers
attached hereto as Exhibit “2” and incorporated herein by
reference. The existing Crown tower will not allow Verizon to
provide the necessary coverage in this area of Prince Edward
County.

No tower shall exceed 199 feet in height, including antennas.

As shown on Sheet SP-3 of Exhibit “1”, the proposed self-
support facility is 197 ft tall with a 2 ft appurtenance for a total
height of 199 ft.

Towers shall either maintain a galvanized steel finish or, subject to any
applicable standards of the FCC or FAA, be painted a neutral color.

As shown on Sheet SP-3 of Exhibit “1”, the proposed self-
support facility will have a galvanized steel finish.

At any tower site, the design of the buildings and related structures shall
use materials, colors, textures, screening, and landscaping that will blend
the facilities to the natural setting and the built environment. The related
unmanned equipment structure shall not contain more than 750 square
feet of gross floor area or be more than 12 feet in height, and shall be
located in accordance with the requirements of the zoning district in which
located.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision. The
proposed self-support facility and the related structures will
blend in with the natural setting and environment.

Towers shall not be artificially lighted, unless required by the FCC or FAA.
If lighting is required, the board of supervisors may review the available
lighting alternatives and approve the design that would cause the least
disturbances to surrounding views.

18



Due to the structure’s de minimis height, the FAA will not likely
require illumination of the proposed facility. In addition, please
see the Airspace Analysis by Ken Patterson Airspace Consulting
attached hereto as Exhibit “3” and incorporated herein by
reference.

All towers must meet or exceed current standards and regulations of the
FAA, the FCC, and any other agency of the federal government with the
authority to regulate towers. If such standards and regulations are
changed, then the owners of the tower governed by this section shall bring
such structures into compliance with such revised standards as required by
above named agencies. Failure to bring a tower into compliance with such
revised standards and regulations as required by above named agencies
shall constitute grounds for the revocation of the special use permit, and
removal of the tower at the owner's expense.

Please see the FCC Form 854 attached hereto as Exhibit “4” and
incorporated herein by reference. The proposed self-support
facility complies with all federal standards and regulations.

The owner of any tower shall ensure that it is constructed and maintained
in compliance with standards contained in applicable federal, state, and
local building codes and regulations.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision.

Each applicant requesting a special use permit for a new tower shall
submit two copies of a scaled site plan and a scaled elevation view and
other supporting drawing, calculations, and other documentation, signed
and sealed by appropriate licensed professionals, showing the location and
dimensions of all improvements, including information concerning
topography, radio frequency coverage, height requirements, setbacks,
drives, parking, fencing, landscaping, easements, adjacent uses, and any
other information deemed necessary by the county to assess compliance
with the regulations of this ordinance.

Additionally, the applicant shall provide actual photographs of the site
from designated relevant views that include a simulated photographic
image of the proposed monopole or tower. The photograph with the
simulated image shall include the foreground, the mid-ground, and the
background of the site.

Please see the Site Plans and Drawings in Exhibit “1”; the
Existing Site Photos are attached hereto as Exhibit “5” and
incorporated herein by reference; and the Photo Simulations
attached hereto as Exhibit “6” and incorporated herein by
reference.

19



10. An engineering report, certifying that the proposed tower and site are
compatible for co-location with a minimum of three similar users
including the primary user, must accompany the application. The
applicant shall provide copies of their co-location policy.

As shown on Sheet SP-3 of Exhibit “1” and the Structural Design
Report by Virginia Professional Engineer Robert E. Beacom
attached hereto as Exhibit “7” and incorporated herein by
reference, the proposed self-support facility has been designed
for Verizon Wireless and at least three additional users. In
addition, please see the Collocation Policy letter from Ryan
Foltz of Arcola Towers attached hereto as Exhibit “8” and
incorporated herein by reference.

11. Local government access. Owners of towers shall provide the county co-
location opportunities without compensation as a community benefit to
improve radio communications for county departments and emergency
services, provided it does not conflict with the co-location requirements of
this section.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision.

12. In addition to any reasonable application fees established by board of
supervisors, the applicant shall be financially responsible for the cost of
any professional engineering and or related services that may be procured
by the county to independently verify the application information
submitted by the applicant.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision.

13. Towers, guys, and accessory facilities must satisfy the minimum zoning
district setback requirements for primary structures.

Please see Sheet Z-1 of Exhibit “1”. The proposed self-support
facility easily meets the 11 district setback requirements of 50 ft
to the front, sides, and rear. The proposed compound setbacks
are as follows: 214.2’ from SMI Way, 236.5’ from Fire Training
Way, 213.0’ from Unimproved Road, and 237.5’ to the rear.

14. Towers shall be enclosed by security fencing not less than six feet high and
shall be equipped with an appropriate anti-climbing device.

Please see Sheets SP-2 and C-3 of Exhibit “1”. The 60 ft. by 60 ft.
compound will be secured by a 7 ft. fence topped with three
strands of barbed wire as an anti-climbing device, for a total
height of 8 ft.

20



15. Tower facilities shall be landscaped with a buffer of plant materials that
effectively screens the view of the support buildings from adjacent
property. The standard buffer shall consist of a landscaping strip of at least
four feet wide outside the perimeter of the compound. Existing mature tree
growth and natural land form on the site shall be preserved to the
maximum extent possible.

As shown in a note on Sheet Z-1 of Exhibit “1”, landscaping is
not proposed due to the existing trees and shrubs that will
effectively screen and reduce any visual impact of the proposed
facility. In addition, please see the Site Photos in Exhibit “5”.

16. Any tower that is not operational for a continuous period of 9o days shall
be considered abandoned, and the owner of such tower shall remove same
within 9o days of receipt of notice from the building official or county
administrator notifying the owner of such removal requirement. Removal
includes the removal of the tower, all subterranean tower and fence
footers, underground cables and support buildings. The buildings may
remain with the approval of the landowner. If there are two or more users
of a single tower, then this provision shall not become effective until all
users cease using the tower. If the tower is not removed per this section,
the county may require the landowner to have it removed. In all cases, the
site shall be returned as closely as possible to its original conditions.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision. Please see
the Tower Removal Letter by Ryan Foltz of Arcola Towers
attached hereto as Exhibit “9” and incorporated herein by
reference.

17. Every applicant for a special use permit for a tower shall, as a condition for
the issuance of the special use permit, file with the building official a
continuing bond in the penal sum of not less than $10,000.00 and
conditioned for the faithful observance of the provisions of this ordinance
and all amendments thereto, and of all the laws and ordinances relating to
towers, and which shall indemnify and save harmless the county from any
and all damages, judgments, costs, or expenses which the county may
incur by reason of the removal or the causing to be removed any tower as
provided for in this section.

Applicant accepts and acknowledges this provision. The
$10,000 bond will be provided with our application for a
building permit. Please see the Indemnification Letter by Ryan
Foltz of Arcola Towers attached hereto as Exhibit “10” and
incorporated herein by reference.

21



In support of our application, we have also included the Legal Description and Recorded
Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “11” and incorporated herein by reference and the
Recorded Memorandum of Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “12” and incorporated
herein by reference.

Upon review, please let us know if we can provide any additional information or
materials in support of our application. I can be reached at (843) 414-9754 or (843) 813-
0103.

Thank you so much for all your help with this.

With warmest regards, I am
Very truly yours,

JE G

Jonathan L. Yates

22



Exhibit “1”

23



SUR fop 17 Yen Ser

Wiy

-
—' I—l : “HILVM HO YIMIS ALIO AG GIAYIS 38 LON TIM
oN LIS FVIOL 133HS 241S “NOLLYLIEYH NYWNH ¥0d LON ONY GINNVINN S1 ALIIOVS
“FONVTIdAO3 vav
TSIV VIEE  NOWLVATT3
GEROLOROZY'RLM (B QVN)M.GO'EL SZ.8L 3ANLIONOT
£BOE0E0ZY'ZEN  (EBOVN)N.OZVS 8L o€ 13ANILVI
‘SALVNIGHO0D DIHAVED03D Vi WV
SL%8L LESESEN
{GOY ONINLHON 40 dOL) 6k LHO1EH TIVHIA0
133HS H3A0D L61 LHOI3H JUNLONULS
3N L33HS HIMOL LHOAdNS-4138 JdAL THNLONYULS
I I SWIIQTIWNIS 90 i 3dAL 3UIS 066491 (ver) ANOHAITBL
ST'ONINNIT Q00L LOVINOD
SIVIIAONDRVA ONYSSI00Y &9 *00 GUYMO3 JONIMd NOILOIGSRNT 22662 VA ' ITIADMNE
| 1 SUVIIANOLLONKLSNOD SNOINVTIROSIN 0 9y 29VIHOY QYOX INYTd NOLSIMI 9212
T 130 JONZJ ANNOINOD 0! [44: 34 #01 130uvd ONIAIANNS ANV ONINNTT
= STVIIONOLONYISNOD JLTHONOD 20 TYILSNONI TVHINSD - U ____9NINoz BER IS
T NV1d LNOAYT LINONOD GNY 3LIONOD 10, SHINOLS3r08a
B R WD 6€2-928 {008)
ava | NOWGRIOSIC  [IRAS) NOWVAITE  ©dS NOZIYIA :INOHdI 1L
STViLIWans MIIUSAIOWINT  2:dS 000¢-£99 {008)
= TS " ADHINI NOININOO HIMOd
T T i LT NOLLVIWHONI SILIILLA
_veoepeiict SVEIALE WWERNE 12 :
ads “M3IATY 458926 (80L) *ANOHJT 1L
wWW nmwaa | NVIdalls| 0666568 (1L26) "Hd 3d 'NOS¥ALLYd LuVNLS *LOVINOD
~dds ‘N9IS3Q 133HSUIN0D KL 2107 VA “ONNBTaaIN 106EZ VA ‘ITUIAWAYS SOOEZ VA 'ONYTHSY
] TViENTD 10Z2:3LINS ‘LS NOLONIHSYM M Z1t LSNIVN N 1ZL NTSMINANY LS 6evri
SHIMOL VIOONY HLHOMIY "M SIWVT J7VI'ONLLINSNOD Nviwhva
UINMO ALTTIOV IMOL INMO AT9308d ONRTINIONT
L06eC [ABVWINS 103rodd [ W31 ONILINSNOD
VA "3TIAWNYA
AVMINS S8 V58926 (€04 W3BWNNINOHd 'NOSYALLVd LAVNLS 3INIONS
- S 1SECIZ (12S) 3NN INOHA NOL08 NOT EET)
— 1684122 (119) MIBNAN SNOHA NOLIOBNOP  NOILOMNLSNOD
— R 0180E6L 10551 yIBNON INOHI - WONVES ‘ONINOZ pum—
. . S S— N — = ———
0190662 10%]  ™yIBNANINOHA VONVIS VIS VAN 8 14 ¢ 0 >|_-Z_JOO Qm<>>ﬂm moz_ﬂ_n_
JAOHD - | ealzsz(en)  WIENANINOHd Z1704 NVAY “INVOTIddY snqion T P,
i eanan
ERRAVELE] L4102 YA "OUNEITAAIN ! e
042U G SONIMVE] SNINGZ ANVNIRITZdd v 102 3LiNS 'LS NOLONIHSYM M 211 s
s — — ~ SUIMOLYIO0HY P
3lva Ad NOILdIHOS3A "ON'8Ns ‘NOILVINHOSNT INVOFddV ]
— ¢
SIVLUWNENS _ WY3L LD3roHd %

Nm ueino

Aeguonip

ALFILN SSIN
33¥4T0L
He
910 N0A 340438
SAVA ONDINOM 2

subieH
uoibuning

A pLa [
+31IS 01 SNOILD3NIA
Y04 NYOS

V34V ISV ANVIMVY V NIHLIM ANNOdNOD
G30N3d ANV H3IMOL LHOddNS-413S L6} MAN 4O NOLLYTIVLSNI
NOILdIHOS3A L03rodd

#ouphs
uepowey

sy

edsaig

o _ om MN <> .ml_l_ _>ZM”_<H_ {
o, AVM IS §8

q IAOYD TTIANYA

24




b-Z

TON LBEHS

NVd 1304vd

ANYN 1334

sT/1els SNV THHOZ MR ¢
awva NOLMOSIO  "WAS
STVLLINENS
- "ON "RNOD
2oz HLVAALL
dds MIAIY
VYW NMYHEQ
dds NoIsaa
106€2
VA "3TIANEYS
AVM INS S8
JAOHD
ITIANEVS
TOINILS
<3 v
O%@ 1V¥No,; S5
N %,
%.‘J (#
& LvOI¥0 'ON 'O

NOS¥ILLYd

LHL0Z VA 'OUNGI 100N
102#°LS NOLONIHSVM M 21L

SHIMOL

0JO2JO

SO0EZ YA GNYTHSY
NI SMIUONY LS 68VY)

g
< &
&=
.
£
33
RS
r3x<H
H
§ &
"Q3EUNLSIONN NIYWIH @ o
01 SANYHS ANV STIHL ONLLSIXT 3
A8 O3N33HOS ATIAILLOTS43 ONISE w

ANIWHINDI ANV ANNODWOD OL 3Na
Q3S0dOxd LON SI ONIdVOSANYT

‘38 ST €1 ITOdONOW NMOND
56} = NOLLYOOT ¥3MOL 1S3S070

“ANSWISVI HIBIF/ALILLN ONV SSTADI/SSTUONI FAM OE T

SS3INISNE TVH3NII 1 *ONINOZ
ALNNOD QuvMA3 3ONIdd NOLLDIaSIdNe

; . g=_8
SIASINIUL ISVIAT SLX 8L L ~
#ig8
S3LON 3SYA1 @ nmmm
mw+m
MS3HLOLFZIL MS3HLOLTEN 05 +LORILSIC WILNZAIS3Y R < m
502 §i82 5 v
VN VN 05 el
Wiy L QYOH 03AOHNING b3
8902 S8ET AVM ONINIVEL 354 5
8L onz AV INS £ +LNOY4 -
ANNOLINGD 03SOd0Hd UIMOL AISOOH NOISNaWIQ “

NOILYWHO4NI X0vd13s

o o
TS OHdvEd

JY

(2e=v 9d)  anoMamNn) 13FNIS ,09

e T

"

WIDINON IS

IVIILSNGN] TYHINID — H ONINOZ

Z-V—8£C ‘Wi

40 QHVO8 ALNNOD GHVMG3 30NIMd

(28 94 ‘9 '@'d AMH .6, T30dVd)

(22-v "9'd 9. 13%4vd)

4

AVM I

48 '9d 9 ‘Gd AMH
ANINISYI 3OVNIVHD

N

o

et

~—HON YN ~——

,/——W_'ﬁ

¥ !

\
M2
—_—
—_—
— -

)
s 87

NI

- ) [ %,
el Y
~~—— 4 \ ...m v
/ o \ ]
M \
L S
- \\% — A 2
P s 1AVED Y o W
-~ / 2077y 2 3
/ o P g S.2
e m.ﬂﬂmu_m
.wc MWWNNW
gy gt
e 3
oot 3i8.8
& o
W <]
z
s
&L Moo, °
Fse xz_._z_,‘:o d'd

‘moﬁmv

vl

mw__n_

Nv1d 7304vd

26155 =d01
vy

TTMRNAINOHON DINMIG AND

una iy - SR A 12 T el

25



-
o9 o o o IWOSOLION

FOM133HS S AV TVIMLSAION! TYYINID — Il ‘ONINOZ NV1d m._._m
Z-v-8£2 Wi C6°4SE=d0L
40 Q¥VO08 ALNNOD QYYMO3 JONRId veo
/
/

(28 9d ‘9 'G'd AMH LA TI0V)

(24~V '9°d 9, 130¥vd) S 2o Wb g _
. ‘ Co—
e AVM NS ", K P

NV1d 3LIS o e -
'9d ‘9 B'd AMH R ¢ - i .w_@.
ETE ﬂwhu:mm_um w%sséa - L 9 e 8 TGS
4 \)f'l\ men ’ \ ﬂ
/ o / H
/v \\ L&& - \ /
Y / - &&o \ \ i
—~ \
INMFRIL AAAAAAAAAS / - - \ 2
L e ~ 7 \
ST/T/E SN0 OUNOZ AT ¢ ; v - 1IAVE9 \
o e j S o
SIVLLNENS - s /s J 0P _- -2
oM - ! - w32 -~ o m.v
- ON 'WNOD NOLLVAZT3 10dS o6+ 17 o \ / i o - i8R %
VEOTIELTL BIVAALL UNOINOD —0——— N\ \ ﬁ S o & .MN
dds MIIATY 4039a3 = i 1 / % Mwww WW
W NMVID hi ) A LD
dds ‘Nolsaa NW3SY3 - & | 6\__9& 2
- '}
vauv 38va1 —_—— g & S\s\l oNlogi MM.A.B. .m
3U3HONOD | 3NN AL3dONd —— = W 2 3 _f \ \ ﬂf o Pﬂw
3 -
e anzo1 3 o RN b s %
A ITIANSYA 53 3 / \ Ly S
AVM INS S8 LI a / e s
‘OvOH SS300V 3AIM 0L '€ m.a”” ~ i \. /v\\\\\i ! (I ;J,J
"z-dS 133HS 33S 'ONNOJWOD G3ONIS 2 & m. 2 i \ — 7 EUREE
! H : v U -y )fj
‘6-dS 133HS 338 WIMOL 'L g = Mw M i Vb A . \ e
F ! \
S31ON NOILONYLISNOD [& 8§ 3 i . - [
m>o¢0 - \ wH? gd'd
- | R =V AN
ATINANHYAS “INJWISV3 HIEIYALITLLN ANV SSTYDISSINONI UM 0F T 3 , { \ - i 3N
‘oIS 'SISINBUA ISV SLXSL b o w e Mp\l,nl\ llll T .w%
5 N - -
o WNozg, S3LON 3sV31 ® 3 T - \%
. @ ' S~ T T umn ,
wniva ——" Bt
.l%. ?0%, NVOREBWYHLMON  awN g e \mvw\h.\.ﬂw_uo\w,nnn\\\ﬂ\u\nmu\ !
. . WIWININ NI A essTig W o
& LPOIY0ON T INTVA HILVM A ININNHLSNE LSNI § (‘.tz\.%%ﬁ. ||||| \
< HILIN HILYM Wi HIAWNN NOLLYOIALLNZGH R ,
= NOSYILLYd 'd JAVILLS <_z_M._~.___S - duwwu%_ﬂw NIdD ’
TWOIdAL dAl  SIRLSNONI SOINONLOZTE wa N \
LISIA WVAL TYOINHOAL ALL 15V3 'ONILSIX3 3 &
. NOLLVIDOSSY AMLSNONI AUMONOD  ONOO  F
SNOLLVOINNWIWODT13L iL NOLVOINNWWOD  WWOD =
JOSNAS WAS PO WIXVO0  Xv0D &= «.\...1..
AONSNDIMS 0IaVY B 3NIMU3LNID B A Mm
310d ¥3MOd did 39NV JUIM NVORIEAY MY o g o
NOLLVMLSININGY 3LNLLSNI SGUVONYLS m 8. TS
HLTV3H GNY TVNOLLYN NvOR3NY ISNV m a3 g 350 oNNOZ
ALZAVS TYNOILVANIOO VHSO T3A3TANNOYS 3A08Y 1oV 3R SSINIS N3O {10 N
L1102 VA 'SUNGZ 100N HIAWNN ON Sdiv v B_Ls Nl wd3 5002t A8
102415 NOLONHSVM M 244 ATHINHOL HO MON 2N HIANNN # B g ._sa._m% (._mvnmw —mnn :mw ot nn».tt
s 7-2-85%,
SE3IMOL v
0jO0JJO SNolvinIugay ¢ e P
SOEZVA ANYTHSY “I0IANIS et sy .mow&v
NSMEHONY LS 65771 ANVLINVS ¥O ¥31VM T18V.10d FUINDIY LON S300 GNV GINNVANN S| ALTIOVA FHL '€ ,wvw\\.\ SVSUUINUIS gy w- .uﬁuwvm .o.w ECLE]
"NOILYLIBVH NYANH 404 G3ANLNI LON GNV GINNVINN SIALNIOVA IHL 2 o oz_z_<m I IO \ﬁ:ﬁ ;ONINOZ
“QYOOTY 40 SNOILORILSTY ANV SLNAWSYA TIV OL LOIMENS SINVIA SIHL  °h NI im\mn-muue W
S0, v-BEG e

S31ON TVHINIO i om 2

ey - Q2 A 12 Y S\

26



- o < 8 8 _
N n_ miw . I FRdv I o Nv1d GNNOdINOD

"ONNOJWOD T3AVD 21 7

“133HS Svi3Q
NOILONMLSNOD JLFVONOO 338 (S)180d 39a¥a 301 'L
NYd SRl
31IS d3vdvINT ..E_zm

INVN 133HS $7IV.L30 NOLLONYLSNOD JLIBONOD 33§ “INIWINDI
3NN B0 ANVLS INJWCIND3 ONOT.0L X HOIH .01 6

“133HS STIVL3d NOILONYLSNOD J13HINOD 338
“S13NISVD ANSWCIND3 JHNLNS HO4 Qvd J1FUONOD OLX.v '8

"L33FHS SUVLIA ONDAMVD ONY
| SSFOOV 33S VIUV ONDIHVA ANY NNOUY-NYNL 1FAVHD L

‘133HS STIV13A ONDINYd
! N . QNV SS300V 335 ‘QvOY SS300V 13AVHO 3AIM 0L 9
nn\—«\m. SONMYIQ ONINOZ AVNNTI |
| I “133HS STIvV13a
e _touddsg sl NOLLONMLSNOD SNOINVTIZOSIA 335 TWVHAH 148 'S
STVLLINGNS
= "GN AHOD | _ClEENSSWviIQ
[ veozmizr ava >.—|_. NOLLOMMLSNOD SNOANVTIZOSIN 33S "TTOHANVH ¥38Id ¥

ddS =o» MIIATY | “133HS Wvi3d I
YW NMVHA 3ON34 ANNOdWOD 335 3LVO SSIV0V I18N0A IAM 2E '€ 1 |

“dAL “HOLYD010D

— “133HS
TIV13Q 3ON34 ONNOdINOD 338 "3ON3d MNIMNIVHO 09X .08 7

Kirdl

008

=
]
]
I
i
I
I
I
I
1
|
i
]
I
i
i
-
-
|
i
|
i
i
|
i
i
|
i
i
|
i
i
|

€S 133HS 338 WIMOL LHOddNS-41aS MaN L

L06ee

VA ‘STIAWEVA S3LON NOILONYLISNOD [#
AVM IWS S8

fir4

“INIWISYI HISIALNILN ONY SSTUOYSSTHONI JAIM O£ 2

VYIUVISVITSELXSL L

SALON3ISYIT @

JAOHD
JTIAWHVYL . _"SILMOHLAY TVdIOINI

. YO ALNNOD “JLY.LS “TRIFQT ANV A8 ANV
TodNals 38 AV LVHL SNOLLOFJSNI ONY SLIWY3d TIV ONINIVLSO
YO FAISNOCSTY 38 TIVHS HOLOVHINOD 3HL 8

“‘SFONYNIQHO
HO S3A0D WHIAIS ANY 'ILVLS “TVOOT TV HLM
FONYQHOOOV NI GIHSINdWOIOV 38 TIVHS MHOM TV °L

1TYNO
lO%@ lg
?& 520712 Aum
&y . i
2 LPOIY0 ON O]
2

S

"HOLOVHLINOD

SHL A8 3WNIANGD 38 LSNW S3LLMNLLN ONV STHNLINMLS
‘ONILSIX3 40 NOILVOOT "ONIMVLS NOLLONHLSNOD [

ONY LNOAVT 3LIS HO4 FT18ISNOJS3Y S| YOLOVHINGD IHL "9

v@‘é

"SINIWIHINOIY

VHSO H1IM FONVQHOOOV NI GIWH0JY3d 38

TIVHS ¥HOM TTV "HOLOVHLNOD 3HL 3O ALINEISNQLSIY
3HL S1 AL34VS "NOILONYLSNOD 40 SAOHL3W |

ANV SNY3N HOd F18ISNOdSTY S| HOLOVHINOD 3HL 'S |

= NOSYILLYd 'd LAVOLS a.W.

"H3AOD SALLVLIOAA ININVNMI V HSINEVLS3 ONY 4335
QL HOLOVHLNOD JHL 40 ALIHEISNOdS3Y IHL 38 TTVHS 7
NOILOMYLSNOD A8 GIBUNLSIA VINY GALVIIOIAANY 7

“QHOTANY 3HL H1M JI0S SS30X3 40 NOLLYDOT3d
OL 3LYNICYOOD TTVHS HOLOWHANGD ‘U3IMOTTY 38 LON
TUM 2US NO TVIRIALVN SS30X3 40 ONIMIMI0LS SHL €

I
1
l

"a3LvIaNI _ . I
I
|
|

|
[
|
[
|
|
|
|
|
_
4
_ 00e b 7
| /
!
I
|
I
|
_
_
|
[
|
|
|
,

24102 YA 'HNSI10AIN S¥ ONINOLLONN 34V ASHL THNSNI OL ATIVOIIORd
102#'LS NOLONIHSVMM 211 QOIHO GNY INSWIONIWNOD SONVENNLSIA
NV 340438 (HOS3A} NOOSANVH 10HLNOD INIWIQ3S

SH3IMOL GNV NOISON VINISHIA FHL 30 NOILIGS 1S31v1 IHL
HLWA SONVONOTOY NI HOLOVMLNOD 3HL A8 QI TIVLSNI

O—oo.ho 36 1IVHS SIOIASQ TOHINOD INIWIOSS ONY NOISOM3 TV 2
"SNOLUIGNOO ONLLSIX3 OL OL GIHOLS3Y izw e &

AT TS 38 TIVHS SNOLS GNY ORiaY TIIXIL03O WMLV
AT SHINGNY 1S 68171 SALLYN QI TI50VE NIHLIM 3V ONINUVM 31av103130
HLIM S1411,8 NI GILOYAWOD ONY QI T1120VE 38 TIvHS

£ IL 3AISNI S3LLNLLN G3S00Md NOILINMLSNOD - Tm——
i OL HOldd SALLTLN ONNOHOHEIANN ONILSIXS o =
L 31¥001 OL ALIISISNOdSIY SHOLOVEINGD 3HLSILI L

. S3LON TvHaNID

e wiyy - SZ0Z BN 12 P SaPT-aE\

27




€-dS

SON 132Hg

NOILVAIT13

s2/82/5 SOHMVED OWNOZ RoenTRid |+

ava NOLLGRIISI0 NAS|
STVLLINGNS
"ON ‘WWOD
CveOEALEL EVAALL
ddS C manay
VI NMVHA
dds NOIS3Q
Lo06ee
VA STHANEVA
AVM INS S8
IA0HO
ITIAWHYS
“0:NI 3US

3 TYNO,
O Sg
W/ S200 ‘1z Aoy 2,

& %
& LVOTPO ON OFT -

-~ NOSYILLVd 'd LAVNLS

. V&.
/ .
R

YOS ON

UOZLIOA

L4402 VA 'DUNEAN0AN
102# LS NOLONIHSYM M T4

S¥YIMOL
ojoaj0 {)
S00€Z VA ONVTHSY
INTSMINANY LS 68¥P1

"03S0d0Odd HO GIHINOIA LON SI ¥IMOL 4O NOLLYNINNTT
"HSINI4 T33LS O3ZINVATYO V 3AVH TIVHS HaMoL

‘SH3IHLO AS AANDISIA NOLLYANNOL ONV HIMOL

N & ¢ 48

T3S QIZINVATYD Q3ddIQ LOH 38 TIVHS SINIW3TE VENLONYLS TV

"SINIWNIHINOIY
H-ZZZ YIL/VISASNY 133N OL 03NSIS3A Y SYNNIINY ONY INIWDINDI YILLINSNYYL L

; n—

S3ILON TVHINIO

39V 291
nf (FUNLA) AVHYY YNNILNY

& OV L
" (QuNLNS) AViev VNNALNY

L, 1oV 28, — =
" (@UNLn) AVaRY YNNGLNY — AR
A OV 261 J X E
" (3uNLN4) AVeEY YNNIINY NOZRIZA - R /

19V L61 Q
[FHNLONYLS 0 4017 IHOIFH H3MOL

19V 6861 H
100 ONINLHOIT 40 dO.L) LHOIFH TTVHIAC W

NOILYAT13

~ 0T om 1z P Sapp-s

wow ey

28



FON L3S
NV1d LNOAV1
1INANOD
ANV 3134ONQD
o ™ ]
—— =: K4 o o W+ B [ =———
WIS Jeidved M3IA NV LNOAVT
nw\_n\m Isktanﬁa!_g ‘
ALva NOLLI¥OS30 nAS|
SVALIMENS
= "ON "WNOD
e AvaAL
uu_w._ .;zﬂowm xfw.a\ Qvd UTHONGD 04 % ¥
das ~ neisaa o .1.\_
/
Juege = o o8 _ o8 o
VA 3TIANYVL * "
AVM INS 68 : = e
AT T / Vg
.mTWI=||.||ﬁ_,.I,_m.._|.I||||ﬁm., ||||¢ﬂ e e B
B =l T (/D e A _
| , i Z37) bouwpnod i
3AOHD DR %\N j = |
ATNANYVA P g ,
FONIALIS (NZA A8 3008V} 13NV / : —
Y3 111 HO FNSOTONT 00EL »
& AR
/ﬁ,\lhv. ARANESET (a
A | et ol
. .
, ) gva N0 8 % 5%
o il / S
UOZILIS/A
-
11402 VA 'OunEII0amM
1022 ‘18 NOLONIHSYM M ZL1 ._\-
sy3IMOL %
0j0JO
50062 VA GNVIHSY
NTSMIYONY 1S 68bPI

._.. n I~
\ : E) X

P
Ly

o whypy - G202 AN 1T PR

29




FIWOS 0L ION 0

NI O FIVOSOLLION
S Qvd HOLVH3aNI9 31FHONQD Qavd INININD3I 31IHONOD

o

§L N3HL S50 E.!Euhnﬂd!ﬁuﬁ
w._.e. .—«g.:«me!:gx:g!-

/S S30@ @S0G TV I
M 90T KV HIM AIdNCO TVHS INSWGOYIA A3HIVM L1OH
W|=<._-mo VDOE KOV HUA ANCO TIVHS INSNGVId H3HIVA (100
“#/) QL #/8 (IOVID 0SS MUSY OL KOINCO TIVHS UTONGO

NOILLONYLSNOD LGN Lo H03 YOGy GO 454 TS 6D mIsY 0L g i

38 TIVHS DHNIVINGD UNLIAGY HO ICROTHD METVD
gdg—ngguﬂgzug‘!gd

-~ 0,0 IV S3NVdS VN3 6 b

S u uw d

b
s
§
i
i
£
§
?;

ANYN L3I

0002 e A
- ooor n_yu..am;ossaa
o ooy e Qv SORIN B (™) ) W v AR 458 SO0
< coor " S5VR < a

000 | SSVID

o SATIOS SV "SUIZIUSY M3NS 0 NOWOOV 0L 3O NOLO3S
se/\els SNV ONNGZ SNV

R NOUdINOSIa
STVLLINENS A e STVA ¥ S8Vi5 ﬁ
a

s"l—liiiiii

. oz:s_ou .«\.u_...t ..... E!l:ohdp—w“_ﬂeﬂau.
VZOZIEMTY IV ALL] K SR SET1 40 of 5uve Iv
= ] ot o oo on o] SRR e S
YW NMVNQ LT GNNOND LSNIVOY 1SVO SEVIS ¥ SONLLOGY
dds ‘N9IS3a ‘GUON JSUREHID ST

— SMOTIOS SV 38 TWVHS SUYAE ONONQINGY 304 A3A00 AURND 8 TAVED L6 § LOVaN00

3 38 TIVHE TUNSSIUA ONRVIE WS
o6 St Rk AT D0 S 515V ey T S Y A
YA ‘I TIANYYS i

AVM INS S8 O — IVOSOLION 20

e e s aosoLion JNVHHH ININGINDI  *

303 SNOUVOLKIIIS, O1 MHOINGO TIVHS NOUOMUISNOD FURONOD ¥ V134 1S0d I9aiHg 31avD z Gvd HOLVHINIO ONIOVL LNONS
FEOWRE0T T dAL 9,0-,0 NOUVANAQS 8,21
.Ew.o..ooi“a Esae.s&<eu_mm§u _I_»_ e SN OMKNNGCYD M3d

JAOHD NIV OL NORK SONLLOOA 20 MOLIOS TIY AVdMOD ATHONGHOHL D arun et e N S0 »- . | 0SS Janan .n

e
-=3.
[,

m_._.__>_2m_<u_ ROV LIS UG TV TViSH, O VSRR, R B o .
TN L 230 e 3 —men
30 NOUDGHO 3HL 1v JSHNTUGN 30 TIM SNOUVINNGS 40 NOISIEY ‘N I5d 0008 ° s

54

GEMNISIKNN) NO ¥v30 OL QENOISIQ NZ38 IAWN SNOUYONNGS 'V

, 7,
Ly () NSIRNRE T
&y Nu

SEORRIEV 3qwioans
® Eznﬁe—g

PZ-9IE 1OV AUSHONDD E0N0NGY Awivans 3A0aY
Y04 SINFGUINOSY 3000 ONKTING, UNIISH USLINGD NVIRIV '8 HSINLd G300 300N

= NOSYILLVd 'd LAVILLS 9102 3000 ONTING YNOLYNILNI Q1 SAHOINGD NOISIT Y

) =TT Y =t ]
V&’) NI O . RN -

n N @80 IRONGD IMRL-H INERdINGS v 7 _

300 N vlhua._mﬂunl

R N 1)
04
b
g

Bd
40 ALDVAYY TEVAOTY 8V NO SLINEVD ‘L

"NOLINUISNOD BVIS 40 SUNOH ZL NHLW 3 3 GNY |

A NONINKN_TvD0 HLUM GZ=4 4 SEINTATT 30 ITIVA MNINNIN GNY

“Limd_ 4 AOMNIY WOOT HLBh §2=d J SSINIVU 40 ITIVA WWINI
TVIEA0 (AH034S $SHI NISY 01 SONVETIOL GVIS 300U 9

11102 YA ‘OUNEI 100N ¥ S5YD 38 0L (L1} OV ¥34) SIONVUTIOL 13540 RIONNN0S TIV 5

402 15 NOLONIHSYM M Z4E UTINONI TVHNLOMMLS FHL 4O TYAONdDY 3HL LNOHLM
SONMYHQ TVAULONAULE JHL NO (ELYDKINI 3SOHL NVHL ¥3HIO0
SHIMOL SRI0M AURONOD HONOBHL JOVA 38 TIVHE SIIIH 80 SIIOH ON v

NGO £ 40 SNINGD LAGNNMRILG-HV HIONTY
oo ..—o TII0G 0N 00 'SHOU (GHSINL-TINGRL 1Y 032 D ISV N =Sl T
HIA ONLCIINOD SULNGY ONNVRLLNG-UY HLM HI0M URI0N0D s <
350G TIV M INGNGA § OL ¥ 40 INIANWIUNG ¥V 30W0¥d '§ oy S “3dd WS & X “
SO0EZ VA QNYTHSY ug Bor b QS € 3did \J
N1 SMIYONY 1S 68¥P1 3HL 1V, ZLIUONCD ML OL (E30AY 38 TIVHS MALVA TYNOLIOOY ON

FONI ¥/ 325 AAVOR00V WKV “SIHON + 0 WTIS NADYA (dA) 1s0d

¥ HIM ADONCO ALSKEA TVIION 38 0L §1 LN TV T

o~ Ot o8 £ -
«0=,00
dOL

3avecans Woud ¥.0-01
E
3
3

O
)

L9T0NA L QL ONY RONGD (DNONGY 103 SLIYOHIOR INNOMY. HOMINY Aldd¥
3000 ONKTNG, RIS KV 0L MI0INGO TIVHS JROM ALRINGD TV °) () CATvo)

SION "TWIINTS ITIIINCD 0 3 en -
AnsiNg 0= Eay £S5

ITMvRNADDNON D\ AND

o Wdvy - G2 AR 12 YA 88T

30

AVUSENS WOUd 0L



€0

TON L33HE

§7Iv.13a 30N34

aNNOJWOD
VN L3S
S2/1T/S SNV ONNOZ NI ¢
awvo NOLINDS3  MuS
STVLLIWENS
- "ON "WWO2
v2azieelL AIVAALL
dds MIINIY
YYWN ‘NMvEa
dds NOISaa
106€Z
VA ‘FTIANYYSL
AVM INS S8
JA0HO
ITIANEYS
“odMaus
N 3
S %
& LYOIV0ON OFT e

- NOSYILLYd 'd LYVOLS

ks

21102 YA '9HNEII0AIN
102 LS NOLONIHSYM M 241

S343MOL

DJO2JO

S00EZ VA GNYTHSY
NTSMINANY LS 63771

3v3S ON

NOLLYVTIVLSNI XJ073INALS

“SX207 AdILINW HLM S3LYD ONIONS NC Q3SN 38 OSTW AVW NOIUYIIddY TWOLLMEA
"30v4 3LvO 3HL NO N3AID SNOISNZWIQ 3IWVS 3HL ONISN ATWOLLNIA YOOTINALS
3HL INNOW OL Q33N AVA NOA 4¥31 31¥O 3HL NI 4¥B d3IN3ID ON SVH 3LVD 3HL dlx

3HL TIVISNI MON "B, ldvd ONV .V, l¥vd HLOS HONOUHL 30V1d OLNI ¥vE ONIMOOT
3HL 30ITS ANV SXO007 40 dIBANN 3HL ¥04 Q3C3I3N SIAIIIS JO ¥IEWNN 3HL aav €

HUM 3WVS 3HL 00 440 1708 SS30X3 JHL 1IN0 ANV NILHOIL ANV NO LANMOOT
JHL ANV LNN 3HL LNd  "3dN913 31¥O 3H INI 03710 S310H 3HL HONOMHL $1108
3HL HSNd ANV 8, ldvd 40 %OVE 3HL NO SLOTS 3HL NI S1708 39vid¥vd 3HL 30NS 2

“G30IAO¥d SNOISNIWIO 31VO 3HL ONISN 4vaT 3LvD IHL NI SIT0H .8/ TUMa 1

yv8 ONIMOO1 SIS

o8, 18vd WV ddvd

(@A)
108 39VINNYD ,8/€

vl

£0-8

“J¥Ev4 30N3J 40 3AISNI NO Q3LNNON 38 LS SNRIS TV

~

'SNOIS TIV INNOW O 3t ONR—90H QIZINVAVD 3N °

<

‘SdVO-QN3 3AYH TIVHS SLSOd N3dO TIV

(VN3 ¥0) ‘AT 4100 40
SIv00 {€) Kim G3LY0D 3@ TIVHS ONIQ1IM TV
‘G013 38 TIVHS SIAVES 3¥O TIV
(13215 ¥, 30v49 02V WISY “did 10H)
AW9 2/1 | 3 0L 3did TV
"SOAVONVIS AHISNONI 34Y S32IS 3did 31¥9 % 1S0d '+

“a3N03Y 41 GINdNOD 38 TIVHS
ANINININD3Y LN¥3d 3diM Q3EAVE 40 JONVNIGUD TvOT

006 -1 WISV ¥3d SV ONIMS TIVISNI

£9G-4 WISV Y3d ONION3J TIVISNI
TAON WD

"

e ]

(1Sd 000Z) NOLYONNOS ALIONGD ©1SOd YD @
{14 0002) NOLVONNO U3HONOD 1503 ¥3E00 D)
(1sd 000z) NolLvONNOA U3ONDD 1504 3N (2
wEvd TIDEL0H0 ®

V8 I VD @

38:0?353_;-5582_:2_1
135440 NOM| JIBVATIVN MRLSAONI SN 2/1-1 @

(1240) 3030 NDIOOT UvD @

CO0L-NISY 43 ‘T .7/1 ¢ 3t v @)
68014-HISY 43d “AIVD NS TIENO

Y04 1333 #| ¥0 1334 £ NYHI dN SHIOIM
0% 403 “3did 07 3T0S ¢ 1500 10 €

AT ONY RIOINN 38 TIVHS 30VH0 HSIN 9

HIVM GI8 INRING HIOVNVA NOILINUISNOD
>mEz_zzw_unm«xogiuwﬁxmmnuhv«azoo.m @

VM QI8 ONING VNV
NOUINHLSNGD A% GININ3IIQ SY 40 HSINIY P @

30749 WOU4 JONVVITD WONIXVN 2/ | @

AWM HOVA MINH0D HOVA VIO ,8/S 4 “30VH 1SOd N3N0D JONI4 @

00y (3QV3NHL YNOYIO 40
TIHONGNANL TIUS CZINVANYO HLM G0Y YNOSVIA .8/€ @

W8 ¥IHOLIIS @

"SUIINID LS ATIIVAIXOHAAY NO O30V4S SAUVE INIOd ¥ 'V #1 Olugvd HLW
HOIVM OL 34M G3ISIML QO ,2/1-2) ONVALS J18N00 3y G3E¥vE

TS GIZNVATVO VO 6 M NOISNIL @

STYRING 47 VA GIVGS SONN

90H AG JIM NOISNEL IV QN 3L ONIAYA 30 dil JIONIS V
SV NV SISOd 1V 133U GIZINVATYO ¥O L1 NOININ SN 3L @

‘ZEEV-HISY OL ONIWMOINGD ‘HSIW .Z 3ZIS ¥l JH0J ¥9 6 :omavd @

‘£8014-ALSY ¥3d ‘Fdid L2/ | TV 30HE B VY doL @

90 .0-.8 WNNIXVH Lv 030¥dS ATIVNOI 38 TYHS SIS0d 3NM
'£80L4~HISY ¥3d “3did OF TING3HOS .T/1 2 “LS0d 3NN

“3did Q¥ 3INAIHIS @

TVNIHON &
TION DN
T3S 0L 10N £=3
IVL3A 3ON34 ANNOJNOD
3QVE0 HSINI
30véd-Ens
o3
5 g4

08

RAW AN\

o wigyy - ST0Z Ao (2 TR

31



Sliviaa
NOILONYLSNOO
SNOANVTIIOSIN

ENVN LIS

ST/1Z/S SR OO e |

uvo NoUaos30

SI-IIIIIII

swvilngns |
- ‘ON 'WiNGT |
VEOUEWTH SUVAALL |
dds o IMIIAZY |
i o NV |
dds . Nois3g]

106€T
VA ‘FTIANNYS
AVM INS 58

JA0HD
ITHANYYAS

04N WS

X WAL
/0%? ~%%
%
&y
/& p01P0 ON

ISYILLYd d

L1102 YA ‘9¥NSI100IA
102 LS NOLONIHSYM M 211

0J0JO

S00EZ VA ONVIHSY
N1SMINONY LS 68vPL

ALISNIQ ANT WOWIXYIY
H0LO0¥d QHVANYLS
%06 OL Q3LIVAWOD

3SVE ANVS ¥0 T3AVND

(s)inanod

TI0S 3AUVN LOVAWOO

Q3033N SY Q33

SVA¥Y GNNO¥O JuvE ¥O
SSVd9 ¥3IANN 3SN HO4 NOLLI3S

LINANOD ¥3MOd MIN

SLNANOD WROJ
= 3NOHJINAL MIN

QNVS

3dvl
ONINXYM

WOS 3NN
Q3LIVAHOD

Q3¢ sY
3383y

SY3dY ANNOYD RvE ¥O
SSWD ¥3ANN 3SN ¥C4 NOILDIS

__— IdvL TN

0§ ALYN
SSANYOHL
WNIOHO OL
v 3did INOLS HSIMA HLM
||||| 3OV44NS 340LSTY .
2
Q
o
SV3YY_GNNOGNOD .ao/. >
¥3ONN 35N 404 NOILOIS
"RIVZVH dRIL ¥ 3SOd
JON QNY 30v4unS ONINNOHYNS HLIM INOHdI13L

N3AZ ONV 73A37 38 (INOHS NOLLYTTVASNI

“ONNGAAOD 30N34 NIHLIM ONVH Ad 3NOG
38 TIWHS I10H ONVH ¥04 NOIVAYOX3 T

'Sdv0 ONv 3dVi 3INW 3AVH ANV O\
X08 40 dOL WOY4 .9 38 TIM Saxod

«¢ NOILYOUILN3QI

TINd 3QISNI SLINANCD dN—-8NJS TW L

LNANOD WHYIY
13A37 3nd

AN

NIN ,0-,1

3did svO

- 3did SV9 y3A0
>._u.—<5m:x_ 3dm 30Vl

— ALSNIQ A¥Q WNRIXVA
¥OLIOUd QUVONVIS %06 OL
Q3LIVINOD 3SVE TIAVHD

NOILIANOD TWNIOINO 0L
TVIH3LYN 354N0J
3SvE ONY 3S¥N00
3OVRINS JHOLSH

SY34Y ONNOJRCD
Y¥3ANN 3SN d04 NOILD3S

TIMON

IS OL LON L

NVIIQHONFHLALAILN ¢

“HIOVNYA NOLLONHISNOD
3HL A8 3L03IHIA SV ANV SINIWND0D
NOILONYLSNOD 3HL NI Q3LVION SY
ONIdld JITIVIIN=NON 3A08Y A1LO3NIQ
Q3¥NA 38 TVHS WM ONILDILZA v
“ONIHONIHL
9/N 910 ONYH TIVHS ¥OLOVMINOD '€
".8/1 NVHL 4394V SHO0M
0 S¥EIA 40 384 OGNV QIHSVM
‘N30 38 TIVHS THNOVE ANVS T
"ONI99I0 OL ¥Oléd
SIUMUN 9/0 ONUSIXI 40 NOLLYOOT
AJR3A OL HOLOVMLNOD ‘ONITUINOVE
OL MO SHOO0M IDHVT ANY
JAOWIY 'SLIT .8 NI LOVAIOD “TYIMILYA
TIGILNVINOO ‘NVITD 3GINOHd 'LON I
TI4NOVE HOJ IS 38 AYN TVIMILVA
QIUVAYOXD “TvRd3LIN SNOR3IITFA
UIHIO YO DINVONO 40 334 41 4

"IIoN
Wl ‘ONidId SYD d1
8l ‘SWYYTY ONY SNOILYDINNWWOD
€ “4IM0d

('SILUN ¥IHIO WOYA SIONVAVITO WONINIA
133K 0L Q3AN03Y 38_AVYA HIdI0 WNOILAQY)
SHIJIT AT AOAINIR

<0-9 {3303 10N TVHS

£-6

FVIS OL LON L)

NOIL33S JIOHANYH ¥

IS 0L 10N
IvV13d aNNOdWOD T13AVHD
30vasens
T3LIVANOD WONININ 9
|/|_ o
= ||_ [T,
_l_ IEEIEEE
ONNOYY TIY “3dOTS IVORIOOV 40 -
301 ONOA38 2 ONALGE AQE_EESQ\
@ o 0LSdH LVAIN 40 ¥3AV] HOLIOR
SNid L
=
(v dAL) S
SNMOO Si108
AVOIDOV ISHVOD £SON
30N34 ST NVHO MaN :
™S ON
Tv13a NOLLYTIVLSNI JWVHL-H 148
Id
LINOYd as } L38ONO {dAL) ¥
o UHONCO VI
1 ] 2t (ES0d0Nd
i QITNVATYD
_ _ 3did 0% HOS
VG ST (3500
«
4
SR
“
A
& NIV
OL 34075 HSINU
' “NOUIVASUYS
SUINVNYN NOLLONALSNOD
8-g 0L Q39S ININGNDI
ay (35040ud 404 LNALSINN

LS SSTINWVIS MO G3ZINVATYO 38 TIVHS SHAL Tive
ONOT iL) 3did 40 S°% S

AMALSINN 8 S—1 dvD ON3 04

108-n b @0 S Ly L08-n ¢

90H I1d 4O € ¥O0d4 dvO 3did (4
Q34078 8% @ G—1x @ 6-| INN 10004d i

NOILdI40S3a W3l

=0

o wdoyy - 07 fen 1z v B

32



S-0

TON L33HS

$vi3a
ONDIHVd
aNV SS300V

WVN 133HS

C0/1/5| SO WHOZ RINTI |

avo Noudnosza__vas|
STYLLINENS
- "ON "WWO2
YZOTELRL ‘3Lva ALL
dds SMIINTY
VYA NMVHEa
ddsS NOIS3q

L06ee
VA ‘FTIANNYA
AVM INS S8

IA0HO
ITINANYYL

QNI NS

UOZLIoA

21102 VA 'DUNEI10AIN
102# LS NOLONIHSYM M 2L L

o0

SO0SZ VA ‘ONVIHSY
N1SMIUONY LS 88vPl

{

TWos ON  /ga

(ONNOJWOJ G3ON34 40 3AISLNO) - NOID3S ' °/

30wi0
QIHSIN
3S8N0D € 'ON e
—— oNiawaO
¥04 NVd 335

3OS 0L 4ON _\ 50
NOILJ3S SSO¥D QVOd SS3JJV IVIIdAL ' ¢ \‘

“IN3INGD JUNLSION WNWILIO 0 %€ SNNIW A0
SN1d NIHLUM ¥0 £8S1—0 WLSY A8 Q3NINY3LIQ SV ALISN3G A¥Q WONIXVW ¥
IV NOLLOVJWOD %S6 v OL GILOVAWOD 38 TIVHS T4 ¥VINNWE9 L0313 TIv @

"NOILIONOD 1I0S FTavISNA

¥04 _g3WIN0IY SY OniEvd INIXIL039 ‘G3LOVANOD IAVMOBNS Q3SOdX3 3HL

“Q3A0ON3Y 38 TIVHS 300 40 £ dOL 3HL WNAINIA ¥ SY 'SHOM NOUVANNOS

% NOLLYHVAIdd HYOM 3LIS ¥04 3US SIHL HO4 ORVAIYd AMVSSIOIN NIHM

1¥Od3Y TVIINHOILOIOD JHL NIHLM O3NIVINOD SNOLLYONIWAOOIY 3HL HLM

ATdANQD TIVHS YOLOVHINGD JHL "SYIdV AVMAVOY QNY 3US NOILONALSNOD
3HL ONIGBNYO ¥ ONINVIIO ¥Od I1EAISNOASIH 38 TIVHS HOLOVAINOD (V)

Qi OL HOIMd HIOVNYN

3d0TS 40 .S ¥3d LZ/1 L

.0-01 i
30vH9 ONISIX3 \ WIALYA DINVONO IAOWIY
3A08Y NIN L (WONINI ,€)
AUYOIUYIV ISAVOD LGON

m%._m,ﬂo S ¥3d Z/1 b _ ONILSIXT

oe\wa A\a

S fon 17 ‘e B

o wigyy -

33



- VIS ON IS ON IS ON
m O NDIS DNISSYdS3HL ON NBIS NOILNYD JH NOIS 30ILON 4H
~ON 133HS s Y T
\\ |// \fﬁhlnl&ulﬂ.h“i!!i \_\ l{igﬁmaﬂm
ETR TN ] [ ooy b foitcpd iy 81 % Kl ioy souepyed a5 pue sudls parend e faan
a31LNnd3sOHd 39 TIIM —— 10058 502 643 Poswo
INRALLTT S0 304 Resxs Saus seunarie ONILITT U 3
sv.L3d KOME HI | | Sweom o spimi £oumrbey Sioey g | Aew ujod sy puokeq
2OVYNOIS wm O.._|<l_ O _ > WG anoKRNE spjay Aouanbaig ojpey
l ]
I S INRELLE B é. et ®
1 +— ouwﬁe_x_uﬁ - az_._o%w_o% N \ . .
, i HOTIEA —
S/1E/5] o e i | ¢ INRALIF ONINILLTT
=T ONISSVdSTHL % |INOLLNVIV E= B JOILON
I “ON "WWO3 . o
Ve0ZELTL FIVOALL
ads PYETEN] O Z
YW NmvEa JV3S ON
dds NoIsaa |
ﬁ / p\ - 2 N9IS 30ILON JH
v [ SNR3LIY XOVIE HUM
_106E2 AT X _“w ws - | annousiove 3oMvi0
i o2 RELTSY o ————)
VOIRT0 II0U BULND SDIBINE MM SIUISURS 818000 MAIN
SEUUHRUR 1edu BUPIOM M SIOULOW Y [eu0sIad I M
"SRUURIUE JO 1O Uit dOIS Jou 00 W
e wos wo) ¢ ¥
FIGESI PUE SIIUMO AIOU ‘SEULDILE U0 BULIOM 2i0198 7
JA0HD "BMIDE 218 SPUUAUE 18 QUNSSY 7
‘sullis pasod jie A0
m._.__>_2m<u_ - o “pazuOwE 9q 181 oS S Bunes jeuuossed [y T
“BURLES SSaUBIBME
3 TVNO; fie. NOIS LOVINOD ALMNIOV4 (303) AB1occs InauBew0NIS SA%Y PINOUS |9ULOSIAE iy 7
$ [ oo SNTONDIOM ) BT
202 'z Avw Q SOLLON Q

J

(T XOEX00-XXX SONISY3T ) -
XXX “ON 994 e R e e E e

(@EHNOTY VAOUAY SHIMOL YIOONY) COHIIN INVISISIN MIHIVM H3HID ANV ¥O ,ONIAVEONT M3SY1, ONISN SNOIS OL Q3rkidv 38 TIVHS O 3US T

“(SUIMOL VIODMY AB (3OWNGHA) SNOUVOLIOSDS NOISIQ SHIMOL YIOOHY 335 ‘0907 SUIMOL YIOOUY 04 I

JAVN -3LIS e

o WKy — S32 A 1T PR SD-

34

=°N_hw\ . AUYD GNNOJNOO 30N UINOL ZHL NO ONV ALTIOVA NBMOL 3HL NIHUM ONDRIOM SIS3NO TIV 04 SINITIOND J0IAGH J3OUON. | YOVIE/ZONWIC | Z JOLON I
\ XXX TV
2D, OO0 SN ‘ONENd 3L A8 (ESSIOV 38 0L 10N S AUKOVS MIMOL HL IVHL NOUVOULON JONISSYISINL ON, [ auww/sovi | ONSSYdsal
i3 S AINIOHINT 40 ISVO NI =
102" LS NOLONIHSYAM M 214
iaran 21vD ONNOANOD 30N 2SNN LOVINGD GNY JIHSUINAO S 40 SUIHIO AJION QL NOIS TYNOLLYIOANL. |3LHA/NIIN0/3ME LoniNca
{QL021'1-40 Ly SNOISSINE ADNINDZAA OKIVY NO ST NOISSINAOD SNOUVINIWIOD
o_oo.ho - wN TVRE034 HI SONVGH000Y NI “AMDINI SNORIES NI IINSS (1000 SINGANOUAND i NI DNDRIOW 04 SINTIGIND 2US ONY SNOIS | G3U/3ONVN0 ONINVI
SYyIMOL G31S0d TIV 4380 OL WMWY RINSOdX NYNNH ¥GJ STINM 904 GII0XA IS SIHL LY ST I INIOJ SIHI ONOAZD DNINHYM.
(L0811 L9 Qogbﬁaﬂugsg:iiao
WH0L 40 35V SNOUYOINANGO U334 HUM ZONVONOOQV Ni "SININNDMANG S Ni ONDRIOM 804 SINMIOIND LS ONY SNOIS QLSO HOTEA NOUNYD
z._mem Emai TIV_A380 "LAN RINSODHA INENd VAINZO 204 FHL G330XG AYW INIOd SIHL ONCAIE SATA i INIOd SIHL GNOAIS NOLNVD.
o—OOHO (201 1-HI0 £¥ SNOSSING AONGNOZL OKIVM NO STWNH NOISSINNDO
AUVD QNNOANOD 30N SNOUYDINHMOD W34 HUM ZONVONDIOY Ni "SINIRNOMIANG 3N NI ONDRIOM 04 SINMIGING 3US ONY SNOIS AUSOd ame 30UON M
TIv 4380 "UATI 3UNSOA NG TVEN2D 204 3HL GE30X3 AYW INIOd SHL GNOAZE SOT3U R LIMIOd SIHL ONOAIE 3OLON.
L 350d¥Nd 300 | 40700 ddAL
) \ ST RIS




Exhibit “2”

35



arcola

TOWERS

Arcola Towers: Farmville Grove

Alternative Candidate Analysis

Arcola Towers submits this document to address alternative candidates it considered
during its selection process. Verizon has a specific search ring in an area along Route 15
in Prince Edward County, on the border of the Town of Farmville. Verizon has requested
an antenna centerline of 192 ft.

Existing Structures in the Search Ring

Arcola Towers was able to confirm that there are no existing structures within the search
ring that would work for Verizon. The power utility line towers a mile to the North are
only 80 ft tall and do not have the structural capacity for Verizon. There are no other
structures at 192 ft. in height within the specified search ring, nor a reasonable distance
outside of the search ring. Arcola Towers utilized existing databases (Tower Source, etc),
to determine the existence of nearby towers while confirming that information via
driving in and around the search ring area.

=¥

112 W Washington St #201, Middleburg, VA 20117 | PO Box 2150, Middleburg, VA 20118 | 571.895.3990
| arcolatowers.com

36



arcola

TOWERS
Ring

Existing Structures outside of the Search

Arcola Towers then located the nearest existing tower locations as shown on the
attached map in a 1-mile radius:

This map illustrates a 1-mile radius from the proposed search ring center, and as shown
on the map, there are no existing towers except for the utility tower to the North. The
closest tower is 1.3 miles to the Southeast of the search ring. This existing Crown Tower,
being 1.3 Miles to the Southeast, was too far east for the network.

Conclusion

As noted above, there are no existing structures within the search area that would work
for Verizon, and as noted above, the closest existing tower to the Search Ring Center is a
195’ Crown Castle Monopole site that is 1.3 miles away and too far to cover Verizon’s
intended coverage area. Arcola has leased a property from a willing landlord whose
property will be developed in accordance with Prince Edward County regulations.

I certify that the foregoing is true and correct:

GG

Ryan Foltz on behalf of Arcola Towers

112 W Washington St #201, Middleburg, VA 20117 | PO Box 2150, Middleburg, VA 20118 | 571.895.3990

| arcolatowers.com

37



Exhibit “3”

38



Koen Pattercon

Airepace Conculting. Inc.
www .airepace—ken.com

Site ID: Farmville Grove June 12, 2025

To Whom It May Concern:

On June 12, 2025, I personally conducted an evaluation of a proposed telecommunications site for
Arcola Towers. The study was to determine if the proposed structure would create any adverse
effect on navigable airspace. The site is located near Farmville, Virginia at 37° 18’ 54.26” North
and 78° 25’ 13.09” West (NAD 83). The site elevation is 332’ above mean sea level (AMSL). The
proposed structure height is 199’ above ground level (AGL) or 531° AMSL. Part 77 of the Federal
Air Regulations and Part 17 of the FCC Rules and Regulations were used as the primary reference
for this evaluation.

The closest public use or DOD landing surface is Runway 03 at Farmville Regional Airport. The
distance to the runway is 2.41 nautical miles on a true bearing of 156.41° from the runway.

The proposed 199° AGL (531’ AMSL) structure would not exceed any FAR Part 77 or FCC Part 17
notice requirement and, therefore, notice to the FAA is not required for this structure. If filed, the
199’ AGL structure should be approved by the FAA.

Normally, structures that do not require notice to the FAA do not require marking and/or lighting.
Private use landing facilities and AM broadcast stations are not a factor for this study.

For additional information or questions about this study, contact my office anytime.

Sincerely,

e palfwm

Ken Patterson

KP16076

150 Discovery Lake Dr, Fayetteville, GA 30215
(770) 461-0563 kpacO@bellsouth.net

39






Exhibit “4”

41



06/24/2025 at 06:45:54
A1316524

FCC Form 854
Main Form

Approved by OMD — 3060-0139
See instructions for public burden estimate

Application for Antenna Structure Registration

Purpose of Filing

1) Enter the application purpose: ( NE)

AM - Amendment of a Pending Application

AU — Administrative Update

CA - Cancellation of an Antenna Structure Registration
DI — Notification of an Antenna Structure Dismantlement
MD - Modification of a Antenna Structure Registration

NE - Registration of a New Antenna Structure

NT - Required Construction/Alteration Notification

OC - Ownership Change

RE — Registration of a Replacement Antenna Structure
WD — Withdrawal of a Pending Application

was last altered (mm/dd/yyyy).

2a) If the answer to 1 is AU, CA, DI, MD, NT, OC or RE, provide the FCC Antenna Structure FCC ASR Number:
Registration (ASR) Number.

2b) If the answer to 1 is AM or WD, provide the File Number of the pending application on file. File Number:

2c) If the answer to 1 is MD or NT, provide the date the Antenna Structure was constructed or the date it Date:

2d) If the answer to 1 is DI, provide the date the Antenna Structure was dismantled (mm/dd/yyyy). Date:

Antenna Structure Ownership Information

3) Select one of the entity types:

( ) Individual ( ) Unincorporated Association ( ) Trust ( ) Government Entity
( ) Corporation ( ) Limited Liability Company ( ) General Partnership ( X ) Limited Partnership
( ) Consortium ( ) Limited Liability Partnership ( ) Other:
4) FCC Registration Number (FRN): 5) Assignor FCC Registration Number (FRN):
0031974538
6) First Name (if individual): MI: Last Name: Suffix:
7) Legal Entity Name (if not an individual):
Arcola Towers 1, LP
8) Attention To: 9) P.O. Box: And/Or
Christian Winkler 2150
10a) Street Address 1: 10b) Street Address 2:
11) City: 12) State: 13) Zip Code:
Middleburg VA 20118
14) Telephone Number (Xxx-xxx-XXxx): 15) Fax Number: (Xxx-Xxx-XXxx):
(571) 895-3990

16) E-mail Address:
christian@arcolatowers.com

42

FCC Form 854 - Page 1
June 2021



Contact Representative Information

17) First Name (if individual): Mi: Last Name: Suffix:
COLLEEN KHAN
18) Business Name:
ENTREX COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC
19) Attention To: 20) P.O. Box And/Or
21a) Street Address 1: 21b) Street Address 2:
6100 EXECUTIVE BLVD STE 430
22) City: 23) State: 24) Zip Code:
ROCKVILLE MD 20852
25) Telephone Number (XXx=XXX-XXXX): 26) Fax Number: (xxx-Xxx-xxxx):
(202) 725-1286
27) E-mail Address:
ckhan@entrex.com
Antenna Structure Information
28a) Latitude (DD-MM-8S.S): 28b) North or South:
37- 18- 54.3 North
29a) Longitude (DDD-MM-SS.S): 29b) East or West:
078- 25- 13.1 West
30) Street Address or Geographic Location: 31) City:
85 SIMI WAY FARMVILLE
32) County: 33) State: 34) Zig Code:
PRINCE EDWARD VIRGINIA asooi
35) Elevation of site above mean sea level (meters): 10.4 meters
36) Overall height above ground level (AGL) of the supporting structure without appurtenances: 60.0 meters
37) Overall height above ground level (AGL) of the antenna structure including all appurtenances: 60.7 meters
38) Overall height above mean sea level (add items 35 and 37 together): 71.1 meters
39a) Enter the type of structure on which the antenna will be mounted: (LTOWER )
B — Building NNLTANN — Lattice Tower Array
BANT - Building with Antenna on Top NNMTANN - Monopole Array
BMAST - Building with Mast PIPE — Any type of Pipe
BPIPE — Building with Pipe POLE — Any type of Pole
BPOLE - Building with Pole RIG - Oil or Other Type of Rig
BRIDG - Bridge SIGN - Any type of Sign or Billboard
BTWR — Building with Tower SILO - Any type of Silo
GTOWER - Guyed Structure Used For Communication Purposes STACK - Smoke Stack
LTOWER - Lattice Tower TANK - Any type of Tank (water, gas, etc.)
MAST — Mast TREE — When used as a support for an antenna
MTOWER - Monopole UPOLE - Utility Pole/Tower used to provide service
NNGTANN - Guyed Tower Array (electric, telephone, etc.)
39b) Number of Towers in Array: 39c¢) Position of this Tower in the Array:
40a) Array Center Latitude (DD-MM-SS.S): 40b) North or South
41a) Array Center Longitude (DDD-MM-SS.S): 41b) East or West:

43

FCC Form 854 - Page 2
June 2021



Proposed Marking and/or Lighting

42) Enter the proposed marking and/or lighting: ( 1 )
See Form 854 ltem 42 Instructions for detailed tier and lighting information.

1) None 4) FAA Style B 7) FAA Style E
2) Paint Only 5) FAA StyleD 8) FAA Style F
3) Other 6) FAA Style C 9) FAA Style A

10) FAA Style G

FAA Notification

43) FAA Study Number: 44) Date Issued:

Environmental Compliance

45) Does the applicant request a waiver of the Commission’s rules for environmental notice prior to
construction due to an emergency situation?

(No ) Yesor No

46a) If the answer to 45 is No, is another federal agency taking responsibility for environmental review of
the Antenna Structure?

( No ) Yes orNo

46b) If the answer to 46a is Yes, indicate why:

1) The Antenna Structure is on Federal Land and the landholding agency is taking responsibility for the
environmental review of the Antenna Structure.

2) Another federal agency has agreed with the FCC in writing to take responsibility for the environmental
review of the Antenna Structure.

( ) tor2

46¢) If the answer to 46a is Yes, provide the name of the federal agency taking responsibility for the
environmental review of the Antenna Structure.

Name:

47) If the answers to 45 and 46a are No, provide the National Notice Date for the application to be
posted on the FCC’s website (mm/dd/yyyy).

Date:
06/25/2025

48) Is the applicant submitting an environmental assessment?

( No ) Yes or No

49) Does the applicant certify that grant of Authorizations at this location would not have a significant
environmental effect pursuant to Section 1.1307 of the FCC's rules?

( ) Yes or No

50) If the answer to 49 is Yes, select the basis for this certification.

1) The construction is exempt from environmental notification (other than due to another agency's review)
and it does not fall within one of the categories in Section 1.1307(a) or (b) of the FCC’s rules?

2) The construction is exempt from environmental notification due to another agency’s review, and the
other agency has issued a Finding of No Significant Impact.

3) The environmental notification has been completed, and the FCC has notified the applicant that an
Environmental Assessment is not required under Section 1.1307(c) or (d) of the FCC’s rules, and the
Construction does not fall within one of the categories in Section 1.1307(a) or (b) of the FCC's rules.

4) The FCC has issued a Finding of No Significant Impact.

( )1,234

51) If the answer to 50 is 3 or 4, enter the date that Local Notice was provided (mm/dd/yyyy).

Date:

44

FCC Form 854 - Page 3
June 2021




Certification Statements
1) The applicant certifies that all statements made in this application and in the exhibits, attachments, or documents incorporated by

reference are material, are part of this application, and are true, complete, correct, and made in good faith.

2) The applicant certifies that neither the applicant nor any other party to the application is subject to a denial of Federal benefits
pursuant to Section 5301 of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, 21 U.S.C. § 862, because of a conviction for possession or
distribution of a controlled substance. See Section 1.2002(b) of the rules, 47 CFR § 1.2002(b), for the definition of "party to the

application" as used in this certification.

Signature (Typed or Printed Name of Party Authorized to Sign) (For OC Applications, to be completed by Assignee)

52) First Name: MI: Last Name:
COLLEEN KHAN

53) Title:
AGENT

54) Signature:
COLLEEN KHAN

Suffix:

55) Date:
Jun 24, 2025

Signature (Typed or Printed Name of Party Authorized to Sign) (For OC Applications, to be completed by Assignor)
56) First Name: MI: Last Name: Suffix:

57) Title:

58) Signature: 59) Date:

FCC Form 854 - Page 4
June 2021

45



Exhibit “5”

46


















Exhibit “6”

52



i
I
1
I
i
]
L}
1
]
1

1

AVM INS S8 - 620e ‘0Z annr




pasodoud se ayg Bunsix3 sy Bumoys & 106€Z VA ‘alliuued ‘Aepm 1ws 6g
M.9'9Z,5Z.82 Nl '€0,61,L€ :UONEIOT OjoYd Ayjioe 4 uoleOIUNWIWOY SSajRIM
| ©e00) uonewsou| 010yd 9A0IS) BjIAWIES :BWeN 8)IS




y
-

A - . ..w f < 5
pasodosd se a)ig buysix3 ay) Bumoys

M.ECC.5C-82 Nul'G0.61 L€ :UOHEIOT OJOUd
0] uojewlo] 0joyd

L06EZ VA ‘allinued ‘Aep 1ws 68
Ayjioe4 uopesuNWWo?) sSajRIM

,
D AT

AN AN

..
e,
GRS




UO}JE0] SIY} Wiolj aqisiA Uoojleq ON :Bumoys & L0BEZ WA ‘BlliuLeS ‘Aep WS 68

M.8'€E.5C.8. N.0'90,61 .LE:UOHEIOT OJOYd Aiijioe uogesjuNWWOY SsofRIIM
£ wmmE_ ‘uoljeunou| 0joyd 9A0IS) BjjiAuwIeS :BWEN 8)IS




. A Fo

UOI}eao| SIY} WoJj 8|qISIA Uoojjeq oN :Buimoys M a|liAwie ‘Aep Iws 68
M.891.9¢.82 Nu'€Z:61 .LE :UCHEIOT OlOYd Ajjioe4 uoesjunWWoY SSajaIIM

 @bew| :uojeuwlo| ojoyd 3A0IE) B|jIAULIES BWEN 3G




M.6'L1.9C.8L NuG'9G.81 ,L€ :UOIEIOT OJOUd Aoe uojedluNWWoY SsejRIIM
:uofjeulIoju| ojoyd BA0IS) 9|JIAWLIES :BUIEN 8)IS




=

W s S

4 »
R BT b e

UO}290] SIU) LU0 BIGISIA UOOJIeq ON :BUIMOUS 4 }06E2 VA 'lliauued ‘Aep IS g8

o)
M.8'}1.52.82 Nul ¥G.81 L€ -UOHEIOT OJOYd - Ayilioe 4 uoedUNWWO) SSBJBIIM
g afeuw| :uojewlou| 0joyd

9A0IS) BjjIAWIES :BWeN 8IS




4T g T T
Fﬁq Tl £

i : = R A . 3
uoNe0] SIy} Woy 8|qIsiA uoojjeq o :Buimoys £ 106£Z YA ‘SliaweS ‘Aep IwS 68 & Sd43aMO L
M.9'87.5Z.8. Nul 05,81 .L€ (UOKOOT Ojoyd | AjjI9e4 UojeDIUNWIWOY SSBfSIIM

J abew| :uoieuloju| ojoyd I ; I O— OO& O




pasodoid se ayg Buisix3 ay) Bumoys = 106€Z VA ‘aliauued ‘Aep) WS 68 ; Sd4IMO L
02.62.8. z_.m mw_mrkm :uoevo ojoyd Ao uoEOIUNWILIOD SSIJRUM
:UojjeunIoju| ojoyd 9A0IS) 9|jIAuLeS :BWeN 8jis & O — Oo.h 0




e

UOI}e90] SIY} WO} 3|qISIA uoojjeq oN :Buimoys nm LOGEZ VA ‘OlliAawie ‘Aepp WS 68 Sd43IMOL
ML LY€2.8L NuG'9G.81 /€ (UOHEIOT OJoYd ~—  Aji[1oe UOHEDIUNWILIOY SSBJRIIM O — O o

6 @beuw| :uoiewiou| 0joyd 2




=t . : ....~ L g - 3 H*mfl LT »
UOI}eOO] SIY) WOL BIQISIA UOOJleq ON :BUMOYS | |0BEZ WA ‘SlliAuLES 'Ae WS 68 | SYIMOL

MY’ LLP2.8L NuZ'C18)0LE (UOJEI0T OJoyd Ao UOREOIUNWWOD SSajaIIpM |
01 @bew| :uojewioju| ojoyd | 9A0IE) BJJIAULIR] :BWEN 8IS 0—00& o




: : ‘Aepn WS 68

Uol}eao| siy} Wodj 8|gisiA uoojieq oN :buimoys 106EC VA 8ljiawe |
>># m.m._m_vmoﬁ N.9't1.8l L€ :uclieaaT ojoyd Ajjioe4 uojesunwwo) ssajelIp
» L L @6ew ;uojewlo| ojoyd 9A0IS) BjjiAWIe :BWeN a|S

U P

s

—m..qlt..u. m——

T R | nlﬁ N

. .mw . 2
HSVM ¥VD 3384 HONOL ,




| L06EZ VA ‘slinuie ‘Aep 1ws 68 x
MuL'LS¥2-8L NuZ'72.8) L€ (uoedo ojoyd ¥  Ajjioe4 uoneounwwio) sssjasipy (#
Z | abew| :uonew.ojuj ojoyd :

i




Exhibit “7”

66



Sabre Industries’

INNOVATION DELIVERED

Structural Design Report
197' S3TL Series HD2 Self-Supporting Tower
Site: Farmville Grove, VA

Prepared for: ARCOLA TOWERS
by: Sabre Industries ™

Job Number: 26-0628-JSS

June 19, 2025

Tower Profile.......ccociiimiiiiiiiiiiiiisirs s
Foundation Desigh Summary (Preliminary) (Option 1).......ccccccevmiimiinnnnnans
Foundation Design Summary (Preliminary) (Option 2)..........ccorviiimneninnnans
Maximum Leg Loads......c..ccuimimcroriiiiieiiiiaiiiansisesesa e snasaanss
Maximum Diagonal Loads........ccceruimmrereirirermnirieiise s sassnsnssassssan
Maximum Foundation Loads............ccccicviimiimmen s inanenans

[0 1 oY 11 F=1 4 o -7

Digitally Signed By Robert Beacom
DN:

C=US,SERIALNUMBER=MAS202
50205984402,ST=Texas,L=Alvara
do,2.5.4.97=NTRUS\+DE-
4349737,0=SABRE
INDUSTRIES)\, INC.,CN=Robert
Beacom Date: 2025.06.19
10:28:05

67




B

L2X2X1/8
4@4.25
835

2.8750D X .203
NONE

A
5

3.500 OD X .300
1375

8@s

L2X2X3/16

(1) 5/8"
1768

4,500 OD X .337

5.563 OD X .375
221

L21/2X21/2X 316
1
9 @ 6.6667
2309

13
2975

5.563 OD X .500
NONE

15'

L3X3X3/M16
3009

8.625 OD X .322

(1) 3/4"
7
3597

L312X3112X 114
8@ 10

19
4654

8.625 OD X .500

L4X4X1/4
5073

21

Diagonals
Horizontals

Brace Boits

Top Face Width
Panel Count/Height
Section Weight

Legs

o Designed Appurtenance Loading

Elev Description Tx-Line
199 Lightning Rod & Tap Plate
192 (1) 250 Sq.Ft. EPA (7000 Ibs) (6) 156/8"
180" 182 (1) 200 sq. ft. EPA, 4,500 Ib Weight (6) 15/8"
172 {1) 175 Sq. Ft. EPA {4,500 Ibs) (6) 15/8"
162 (1) 150 sq. . EPA, 4,500 Ib Weight (6) 15/8"
Design Criteria - ANSI/TIA-222-H
Wind Speed (No Ice) 111 mph
160" Wind Speed (Ice) 30 mph
Design Ice Thickness 1.50in
Risk Category I
Exposure Category Cc
Topographic Factor Procedure Method 1 (Simpilified)
Topographic Category 1
140 Ground Elevation 3311t
Seismic Importance Factor, le 1.00
0.2-sec Spectral Response, Ss 0.219¢
1-sec Spectral Response, S1 0.06¢g
Site Class D (DEFAULT)
120 Seismic Design Category B
Basic Seismic Force-Resisting System Telecommunication Tower (Truss: Steel)
Base Reactions - Wind/ice
Total Foundation individual Footing
Shear (kips) 55.24 Shear (kips) 34.22
100 Axial (kips) 144.71 Compression (kips) 388
Moment (ft-kips) 7331 Uplift (kips) 341
Base Reactions - Seismic
Total Foundation Individual Footing
Shear (kips) 2.31 Shear (kips) 3.1
80 Axial (kips) 67.256 Compression (kips) 40
Moment (ft-kips) 359 Uplift (kips) 3
Material List
Display Value
A L2X2X3/16
60 B L2X2X1/8
Notes
1) Alilegs are A500 (50 ksi Min. Yield).
2) Ali braces are A572 Grade 50.
3) All brace bolts are A325-X.
40 4) The tower model is S3TL Series HD2.
5) Transmission lines are to be attached to standard 12 hole
waveguide ladders with stackable hangers.
6) Azimuths are relative (not based on true north).
7) Foundation loads shown are maximums.
8) All unequal angles are oriented with the short leg vertical.
20 9) Weights sl_10wn are estimates. Final weights may vary.
10) Tower Rating: 98.51%
11) No grout is required under the base plates.
o
23'-0"
Sabre Industries Job: 26-0628-JSS
" - 7101 Southbridge Drive
Sabre Industries)y ro.soe: custamer: - ARCOLA TOWERS
Sioux City, IA 51102-0658 "
INNOVATION DELIVERED Phone: (712) 2566690 Site Name:  Earmyille Grove, VA
Fax: (712) 279-0814
Information contained herein is the sole property of Sabre Communications Corporation, constitutes a trade Description: 197 §3TL
st s o o . 0l e prind ot o ped el by s b rep

68 Page 1



i N No.: 26-0628-JSS
Sabre Industmes“) Date: 06/19/2025

INNOVATION DELIVERED By: REB

Customer: ARCOLA TOWERS
Site: Farmville Grove, VA
197 ft. Model S3TL Series HD2 Self Supporting Tower

PRELIMINARY -NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION-

Center of Tower Notes: N .
1) Concrete shall have a minimum 28-day compressive

strength of 4,500 psi, in accordance with ACI 318-14.

2) Rebar to conform to ASTM specification A615 Grade 60.
<)
i 3) All rebar to have a minimum of 3" concrete cover.
o 4) All exposed concrete corners to be chamfered 3/4".
[=]
(]
. 5) The foundation design is based on presumptive clay soil
e as defined in ANSI/TIA-222-H-2017. It is recommended
2 that a soil analysis of the site be performed to verify the
soil parameters used in the design.
15'-0" 15'-0"
300" 6) 5' of soil cover is required over the entire area of the
~ foundation slab.
PLAN VIEW
7) The bottom anchor bolt template shall be positioned as
closely as possible to the bottom of the anchor bolts.
3ug" .
(Typical) | Grade g
= 7_—
© ——
] = Il
Ly 17 Gt atendee odetn lenien subods e — o fcl
% o ©
Y= _ _e _e _C 8 PN
| 300" |
= |

ELEVATION VIEW

(55.9 cu. yds.)
(1 REQD.; NOT TO SCALE)

CAUTION: Center of tower is
not in center of slab.

Rebar Schedule per Mat and per Pier
(18) #7 vertical rebar w/ hooks at bottom w/
Pier #4 rebar ties, two (2) within top 5" of pier then
4" C/C
(54) #8 horizontal rebar evenly spaced each
way top and bottom. (216 total)
Anchor Bolts per Leg
(6) 1.5" dia. x 78" F1554-105 on a 13.25" B.C. w/ 9.5"
max. projection above concrete.

Mat

Information contained herein is the sole property of Sabre Industries, constitutes a trade secret as defined by lowa Code Ch. 550 and shall
not be reproduced, copied or used in whole or part for any purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent of Sabre Industries.

7101 Southbridge Dr - P.O. Box 658 - Sioux City, IA 51102-0658 - Phone 712.258.6690 - Fax 712.258.8250

69

Page 2



P - No.: 26-0628-JSS
Sabre |ndu5‘|:r'les“> Date: 06/19/2025

INNCVATION DELIVERED By: REB

Customer: ARCOLA TOWERS
Site: Farmville Grove, VA
197 ft. Model S3TL Series HD2 Self Supporting Tower

PRELIMINARY -NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION-
Notes:

1) Concrete shall have a minimum 28-day compressive
strength of 4,500 psi, in accordance with ACI 318-14.

EIIIHI_ -7 2) Rebar to conform to ASTM specification A615 Grade 60.

3) Ali rebar to have a minimum of 3" concrete cover.

01_6“

4) All exposed concrete corners to be chamfered 3/4".

5) The foundation design is based on presumptive clay soil
as defined in ANSI/TIA-222-H-2017. It is recommended
that a soil analysis of the site be performed to verify the
soil parameters used in the design.

62-6"
630"

6) The bottom anchor bolt template shall be positioned as
closely as possible to the bottom of the anchor bolts.

ELEVATION VIEW

(37.1 cu. yds.)
(3 REQUIRED; NOT TO SCALE)

Rebar Schedule per Pier
(14) #9 vertical rebar w/ #4 ties, two (2) within
top 5" of pier then 12" C/C
Anchor Bolts per Leg
(6) 1.5" dia. x 78" F1554-105 on a 13.25" B.C. w/ 9.5"
max. projection above concrete.

Pier

Information contained herein is the sole property of Sabre Industries, constitutes a trade secret as defined by lowa Code Ch. 550 and shall
not be reproduced, copied or used in whole or part for any purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent of Sabre Industries.

7101 Southbridge Dr - P.O. Box 658 - Sioux City, 1A 51102-0658 - Phone 712.258.6690 - Fax 712.258.8250

70 Page 3



DrawResults (c) Guymast Inc. 2006-2023 Phone: (416) 736-7453 19 jun 2025

Licensed to: Sabre Towers and Poles 10:20:13
Maximum
Compression in Legs (kip) Tension in Legs (kip)
Elev (ft) 400 300 200 100 0 100 200 300 400
197.0 - ! l 1 | L l 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | L | 1 | |- 197.0
190'62.5 77.3 190
180 4 ~ 180
170 111.8 136.9- 170
160 - ~ 160
150 4177.3 199.9+ 150
140+ ~ 140
130 + = 130
120 4241.3 277.0F 120
110 4 = 110
100 4 r ' ~ 100
90 312.6 361.2F gg
80 - - - 80
70 - ~ 70
60 -336.3 379.9 60
50 = =~ 50
40 - ~ 40
30 - 523.3F 30
20 -509.2 ™ 20
10 - 578.1F 10
0 J | ; | ' I d | ¥ ' | * I : | : | 0
400 300 200 100 0 100 200 300 400

Page 4

71



DrawResults (c) Guymast Inc. 2006-2023 Phone: (416) 736-7453

Licensed to: Sabre Towers and Poles

19 jun 2025

Maximum
Compression in Diagonals (kip) Tension in Diagonals (kip)

Elev (ft) 10 5 5 10
197. 0 —L o« o o 1 4 4 PR WY SR S [N T TSN TR T N
190+ » 7.2
180 - L
170 €10.7 10.7+
160 - L
150-10.4 10. 4
140 ~ L
130-12.5 12 .54
120 + L
110-9.4 9.4
100 L
90+47.3 7.3
80 -~ -J - N
70-8.8 8.8
60 - L
50 -15.9 15.9+
40 - -
30-13.6 13.6F
20 - -
10-17.0 17.0f

0= | I L T [ LA A

10 5 5 10

72

10:20:13

197.0
190

180

170

160

150

140

130

120

110

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Page 5



DrawResults (c) Guymast Inc. 2006-2023 Phone: (416) 736-7453 19 jun 2025
Licensed to: Sabre Towers and Poles 10:20:13
Maximum
TOTAL FOUNDATION LOADS (kip, ft-kip)
? -26.57
144.71l
—— 55.24
INDIVIDUAL FOOTING LOADS (kip)
34.22
27.11‘**%
341.461 lsss.os
[] 34.22
Page 6

73



Latticed Tower Analysis (Unguyed)
Processed under license at:

Sabre Towers and Poles

(c)2024 Guymast Inc. 416-736~7453

on: 19 jun 2025 at: 10:20:13

MAST GEOMETRY ( ft )

PANEL NO.OF ELEV.AT ELEV.AT F.W..AT F.W..AT TYPICAL
TYPE LEGS BOTTOM TOP BOTTOM TOP PANEL
HEIGHT
X 3 192.75 197.00 5.00 5.00 4.25
X 3 180.00 192.75 5.00 5.00 4.25
X 3 175.00 180.00 5.50 5.00 5.00
X 3 160.00 175.00 7.00 5.50 5.00
X 3 140.00 160.00 9.00 7.00 5.00
X 3 120.00 140.00 11.00 9.00 6.67
X 3 100.00 120.00 13.00 11.00 6.67
X 3 80.00 100.00 15.00 13.00 6.67
X 3 60.00 80.00 17.00 15.00 10.00
X 3 40.00 60.00 19.00 17.00 10.00
X 3 20.00 40.00 21.00 19.00 10.00
X 3 0.00 20.00 23.00 21.00 10.00
MEMBER PROPERTIES
MEMBER BOTTOM TOP X-SECTN RADIUS ELASTIC THERMAL
TYPE ELEV ELEV AREA OF GYRAT MODULUS EXPANSN
ft £t in.sq in ksi /deg
LE 180.00 197.00 1.704 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 160.00 180.00 3.016 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 140.00 160.00 4.407 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 100.00 140.00 6.111 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 80.00 100.00 7.952 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 40.00 80.00 8.399 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
LE 0.00 40.00 12.763 0.947 29000. 0.0000117
DI 180.00 197.00 0.484 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
DI 140.00 180.00 0.715 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
DI 80.00 140.00 0.902 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
DI 60.00 80.00 1.090 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
DI 20.00 60.00 1.688 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
DI 0.00 20.00 1.938 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
HO 192.75 197.00 0.484 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
HO 175.00 180.00 0.715 0.626 29000. 0.0000117
FACTORED MEMBER RESISTANCES
BOTTOM TOP LEGS DIAGONALS HORIZONTALS INT BRACING
ELEV ELEV COMP TENS COMP TENS COMP TENS COMP TENS
ft ft kip kip kip kip kip kip kip kip
192.7 197.0 62.50 77.27 7.16 7.16 7.16 7.16 0.00 0.00
180.0 192.7 62.50 77.27 7.16 7.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
175.0 180.0 111.82 136.93 10.74 10.74 10.72 10.72 0.00 0.00
160.0 175.0 111.82 136.93 10.74 10.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
140.0 160.0 177.29 199.92 10.38 10.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
120.0 140.0 241.28 277.05 12.47 12.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
100.0 120.0 241.28 277.05 9.45 9.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
80.0 100.0 312.59 361.16 7.32 7.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
60.0 80.0 336.31 379.88 8.84 8.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
40.0 60.0 336.31 379.88 15.88 15.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20.0 40.0 509.22 523.32 13.59 13.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.0 20.0 509.22 578.14 17.02 17.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
* Only 5 condition(s) shown in full

LOADING CONDITION A

74

Page 7



111 mph wind with no ice. Wind Azimuth: Q-

MAST LOADING

(1.2 D + 1.0 Wo)

LOAD ELEV APPLY..LOAD. .AT LOAD ...... FORCES...... ...... MOMENTS......
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
ft ft kip kip ft-kip ft-kip
(o] 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.05 0.54 0.00 0.00
[o] 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 8.17 8.40 0.00 0.00
(o] 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 6.47 5.40 0.00 0.00
[o] 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 5.59 5.40 0.00 0.00
[ 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 4.73 5.40 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.07 0.05 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.07 0.05 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.09 0.05 0.02 -0.04
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.09 0.05 0.03 -0.05
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.10 0.05 0.03 ~0.06
D 180.0 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.10 0.05 0.03 -0.06
D 180.0 0.00 320.8 0.0 0.13 0.09 0.04 -0.08
D 170.0 0.00 322.4 0.0 0.12 0.09 0.05 -0.08
D 170.0 0.00 324.3 0.0 0.13 0.09 0.06 -0.09
D 160.0 0.00 324.5 0.0 0.13 0.10 0.07 -0.09
D 160.0 0.00 332.1 0.0 0.13 0.12 0.10 -0.09
D 140.0 0.00 327.6 0.0 0.14 0.12 0.09 -0.09
D 140.0 0.00 336.5 0.0 0.14 0.15 0.12 -0.08
D 120.0 0.00 333.6 0.0 0.15 0.15 0.11 -0.09
D 120.0 0.00 339.8 0.0 0.15 0.15 0.14 -0.08
D 100.0 0.00 337.7 0.0 0.15 0.16 0.13 -0.08
D 100.0 0.00 342.4 0.0 0.15 0.18 0.16 -0.08
D 80.0 0.00 340.8 0.0 0.16 0.19 0.14 -0.08
D 80.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.15 0.19 0.17 -0.07
D 70.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.15 0.19 0.17 -0.07
D 70.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.15 0.19 0.17 -0.08
D 60.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.15 0.19 0.17 -0.08
D 60.0 0.00 345.8 0.0 0.15 0.22 0.19 -0.07
D 50.0 0.00 345.8 0.0 0.15 0.22 0.19 -0.07
D 50.0 0.00 345.1 0.0 0.16 0.22 0.18 -0.07
D 40.0 0.00 345.1 0.0 0.16 0.22 0.18 -0.07
D 40.0 0.00 347.1 0.0 0.15 0.28 0.21 -0.06
D 20.0 0.00 346.5 0.0 0.14 0.29 0.20 -0.06
D 20.0 0.00 348.2 0.0 0.14 0.30 0.23 -0.05
D 0.0 0.00 347.7 0.0 0.14 0.31 0.22 -0.06
LOADING CONDITION M
111 mph wind with no ice. Wind Azimuth: Oe¢ (0.9 D + 1.0 Wo)
MAST LOADING
LOAD ELEV APPLY..LOAD..AT LOAD ...... FORCES...... ...... MOMENTS......
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
ft £t kip kip ft-kip ft-kip
[ 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.05 0.41 0.00 0.00
(o] 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 8.17 6.30 0.00 0.00
(o] 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 6.47 4.05 0.00 0.00
[o] 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 5.59 4.05 0.00 0.00
[o] 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 4.73 4.05 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.09 0.04 0.02 -0.04
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.09 0.04 0.02 -0.05
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.10 0.04 0.02 -0.06
D 180.0 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.10 0.04 0.02 -0.06
D 180.0 0.00 320.9 0.0 0.12 0.07 0.03 -0.08
D 160.0 0.00 324.7 0.0 0.13 0.07 0.05 -0.09
D 160.0 0.00 332.1 0.0 0.13 0.09 0.08 ~0.09
D 140.0 0.00 327.6 0.0 0.14 0.09 0.07 -0.09
D 140.0 0.00 336.5 0.0 0.14 0.11 0.09 -0.08
D 120.0 0.00 333.6 0.0 0.15 0.11 0.08 -0.09

75

Page 8



D 120.0 0.00 339.8 0.0 0.15 0.12 0.10 -0.08
D 100.0 0.00 337.7 0.0 0.15 0.12 0.09 -0.08
D 100.0 0.00 342.4 0.0 0.15 0.14 0.12 -0.08
D 80.0 0.00 340.8 0.0 0.16 0.14 0.11 -0.08
D 80.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.15 0.14 0.13 -0.07
D 60.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.15 0.14 0.12 -0.08
D 60.0 0.00 345.8 0.0 0.15 0.17 0.15 -0.07
D 40.0 0.00 345.1 0.0 0.16 0.17 0.14 -0.07
D 40.0 0.00 347.1 0.0 0.15 0.21 0.16 -0.06
D 20.0 0.00 346.5 0.0 0.14 0.21 0.15 -0.06
D 20.0 0.00 348.2 0.0 0.14 0.23 0.17 -0.05
D 0.0 0.00 347.7 0.0 0.14 0.23 0.17 -0.06
LOADING CONDITION Y
30 mph wind with 1.5 ice. Wind Azimuth: 0 (1.2 D + 1.0 Di 4+ 1.0 Wi)
MAST LOADING
LOAD ELEV APPLY, .LOAD. .AT LOAD ...... FORCES...... ...... MOMENTS......
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
ft ft kip kip ft-kip ft-kip
(o] 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 1.08 0.00 0.00
o] 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 1.02 20.92 0.00 0.00
c 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.81 13.41 0.00 0.00
[o] 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.55 13.36 0.00 0.00
c 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.59 13.31 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.01 0.20 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.01 0.20 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.20 0.09 -0.01
D 188.5 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.20 0.09 -0.01
D 188.5 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.21 0.11 -0.01
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.21 0.11 -0.01
D 184.2 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.23 0.14 -0.01
D 180.0 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.01 0.23 0.14 -0.01
D 180.0 0.00 320.8 0.0 0.01 0.30 0.18 -0.01
D 175.0 0.00 320.8 0.0 0.01 0.30 0.18 -0.01
2] 175.0 0.00 322.2 0.0 0.01 0.28 0.21 -0.01
D 170.0 0.00 322.2 0.0 0.01 0.28 0.21 -0.01
D 170.0 0.00 324.3 0.0 0.01 0.29 0.24 -0.01
D 165.0 0.00 324.3 0.0 0.01 0.29 0.24 -0.01
D 165.0 0.00 324.4 0.0 0.01 0.30 0.26 -0.01
D 160.0 0.00 324.4 0.0 0.01 0.30 0.26 -0.01
D 160.0 0.00 332.2 0.0 0.01 0.34 0.34 -0.01
D 155.0 0.00 332.2 0.0 0.01 0.34 0.34 -0.01
D 155.0 0.00 330.7 0.0 0.01 0.35 0.33 -0.01
D 150.0 0.00 330.7 0.0 0.01 0.35 0.33 -0.01
D 150.0 0.00 329.2 0.0 0.01 0.35 0.32 -0.01
D 145.0 0.00 329.2 0.0 0.01 0.35 0.32 -0.01
D 145.0 0.00 327.7 0.0 0.01 0.36 0.30 -0.01
D 140.0 0.00 327.7 0.0 0.01 0.36 0.30 -0.01
D 140.0 0.00 336.5 0.0 0.01 0.38 0.40 -0.01
D 133.3 0.00 336.5 0.0 0.01 0.38 0.40 -0.01
D 133.3 0.00 335.1 0.0 0.02 0.39 0.38 -0.01
D 126.7 0.00 335.1 0.0 0.02 0.39 0.38 -0.01
D 126.7 0.00 333.7 0.0 0.02 0.40 0.36 -0.01
D 120.0 0.00 333.7 0.0 0.02 0.40 0.36 -0.01
D 120.0 0.00 339.8 0.0 0.02 0.40 0.46 -0.01
D 106.7 0.00 338.8 0.0 0.02 0.41 0.44 -0.01
D 106.7 0.00 337.7 0.0 0.02 0.42 0.42 -0.01
D 100.0 0.00 337.7 0.0 0.02 0.42 0.42 -0.01
D 100.0 0.00 342.4 0.0 0.02 0.44 0.52 -0.01
D 80.0 0.00 340.8 0.0 0.02 0.45 0.48 -0.01
D 80.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.02 0.45 0.57 -0.01
D 70.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.02 0.45 0.57 -0.01
D 70.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.02 0.45 0.54 -0.01
D 60.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.02 0.45 0.54 -0.01
D 60.0 0.00 345.8 0.0 0.02 0.50 0.62 -0.01
D 40.0 0.00 345.1 0.0 0.02 0.51 0.59 -0.01
D 40.0 0.00 347.1 0.0 0.01 0.56 0.66 0.00
D 20.0 0.00 346.5 0.0 0.01 0.56 0.64 -0.01
D 20.0 0.00 348.2 0.0 0.01 0.54 0.35 0.00
D 10.0 0.00 348.2 0.0 0.01 0.54 0.35 0.00
D 10.0 0.00 347.7 0.0 0.01 0.56 0.57 0.00
D 0.0 0.00 347.7 0.0 0.01 0.56 0.57 0.00

76

Page 9



LOADING CONDITION k

Seismic - Azimuth: 0O

MAST LOADING

(1.2 D+ 1.0 Ev + 1.0 Eh)

LOAD ELEV APPLY..LOAD. .AT LoOAD ...... FORCES...... ...... MOMENTS......
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
ft ft kip kip ft-kip ft-kip
(o} 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.56 0.00 0.00
c 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.52 8.73 0.00 0.00
c 188.5 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.06 1.04 0.00 0.00
C 187.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.13 0.00 0.00
(o} 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.31 5.61 0.00 6.00
(o] 181.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00
Cc 176.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.16 0.00 0.00
c 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.29 5.61 0.00 0.00
(o] 170.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 1.71 0.00 0.00
(o 167.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.28 0.00 0.00
[of 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.27 5.61 0.00 0.00
c 161.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.07 0.00 0.00
c 150.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.10 2.20 0.00 0.00
C 150.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.72 0.00 0.00
c 130.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.11 2.76 0.00 0.00
C 130.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.72 0.00 0.00
(o} 110.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 2.88 0.00 0.00
[of 110.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.02 0.72 0.00 0.00
(o] 90.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 3.71 0.00 0.00
(o] 90.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.02 0.72 0.00 0.00
(o] 70.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.07 3.75 0.00 0.00
c 70.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.72 0.00 0.00
(o] 50.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.06 4.48 0.00 0.00
c 50.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.72 0.00 0.00
c 30.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.04 5.80 0.00 0.00
c 30.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.72 0.00 0.00
[o] 10.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 6.32 0.00 0.00
[} 10.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.72 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 180.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.0 0.00 180.0 180.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LOADING CONDITION n
Seismic - Azimuth: 0e¢ (0.9 D - 1.0 Ev + 1.0 Eh)
MAST LOADING
LOAD ELEV APPLY..LOAD..AT LOAD ...... FORCES...... +eeven MOMENTS......
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
ft ft kip kip ft-kip ft-kip
[ 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.38 0.00 0.00
[ 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.52 5.97 0.00 0.00
c 188.5 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.06 0.71 0.00 0.00
[o] 187.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.09 0.00 0.00
[ 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.31 3.84 0.00 0.00
(o] 181.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.03 0.00 0.00
(o] 176.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00
(o] 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.29 3.84 0.00 0.00
[¢] 170.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 1.17 0.00 0.00
[o] 167.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.19 0.00 0.00
[o] 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.27 3.84 0.00 0.00
o] 161.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00
[ 150.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.10 1.51 0.00 0.00
(o] 150.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.49 0.00 0.00
[o] 130.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.11 1.89 0.00 0.00
[o] 130.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.03 0.49 0.00 0.00
(o] 110.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 1.97 0.00 0.00
o] 110.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.02 0.49 0.00 0.00
[o] 90.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.09 2.54 0.00 0.00
[o] 90.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.02 0.49 0.00 0.00

77

Page 10



C 70.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.07 2.57 0.00 0.00
c 70.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.49 0.00 0.00
c 50.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.06 3.07 0.00 0.00
Cc 50.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.49 0.00 0.00
c 30.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.04 3.97 0.00 0.00
C 30.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.49 0.00 0.00
c 10.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 4.33 0.00 0.00
c 10.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.49 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 180.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.0 0.00 180.0 180.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
MAXIMUM TENSION IN MAST MEMBERS (kip)
ELEV LEGS DIAG HORIZ BRACE
ft
197.0 0.75 A 0.00 A
0.40 s 1.01 s
192.7 0.10 6 0.00 A
1.42 M 3.18 R
188.5 0.05 1 0.00 A
9.52 M 4.02 F
184.2 0.08 Y 0.00 A
18.76 M 5.49 R
180.0 0.36 A 0.00 A
31.70 M 6.05 X
175.0 0.22 A 0.00 A
46.33 M 6.76 L
170.0 0.01 Y 0.00 A
60.79 M 7.44 X
165.0 0.24 A 0.00 A
76.72 M 7.85 F
160.0 0.03 a 0.00 A
91.81 M 8.37 X
155.0 0.18 A 0.00 A
108.08 M 8.05 L
150.0 0.08 A 0.00 A
121.88 M 7.55 X
145.0 0.15 a 0.00 A
135.32 M 7.36 L
140.0 0.09 A 0.00 a
148.84 M 7.58 X
133.3 0.15 a 0.00 A
163.84 M 7.35 L
126.7 0.09 A 0.00 A
177.07 M 7.04 X
120.0 0.13 A 0.00 A
189.83 M 6.93 F
113.3 0.06 A 0.00 A
201.44 M 6.74 X
106.7 0.11 a 0.00 A
212.67 M 6.69 F
100.0 0.06 A 0.00 A
223.11 M 6.60 L
93.3 0.14 a 0.00 A
233.21 M 6.59 F
86.7 0.05 a 0.00 A
242.82 M 6.56 L
80.0 0.13 a 0.00 A
254.27 M 7.19 F
70.0 0.12 A 0.00 A
267.54 M 7.15 L
60.0 0.08 A 0.00 2
280.21 M 7.19 F
50.0 0.11 A 0.00 A
292.36 M 7.23 L
40.0 0.07 A 0.00 A
304.08 M 7.36 G
30.0 0.06 A 0.00 &
315.31 M 7.41 G
20.0 0.01 k 0.00 a
326.23 M 7.58 G
10.0 0.06 A 0.00 A
336.74 M 7.59 G
0.0 0.00 A 0.00 A

Page 11

78



MAXIMUM COMPRESSION IN MAST MEMBERS (kip)

ELEV LEGS DIAG HORIZ BRACE
ft
197.0 -0.72 S 0.00 A
-0.75 A -1.03 a
192.7 -0.06 M 0.00 A
-6.96 e -3.21 L
188.5 -0.05 W 0.00 A
-15.21 G -4.00 X
184.2 0.00 A 0.00 A
-26.03 G -5.59 L
180.0 -0.30 s 0.00 A
-40.60 G -6.44 L
175.0 -0.15 s 0.00 A
-57.70 G -6.58 X
170.0 0.00 s 0.00 A
-73.94 G -7.70 L
165.0 -0.17 S 0.00 A
-92.04 G -7.76 X
160.0 -0.02 s 0.00 A
-109.23 G -8.56 F
155.0 -0.14 s 0.00 &
~126.40 G -7.94 X
150.0 -0.06 s 0.00 A
-140.54 G -7.69 L
145.0 -0.12 s 0.00 A
-154.79 G -7.28 X
140.0 -0.07 s 0.00 A
-168.86 G -7.71 L
133.3 -0.12 s 0.00 A
-184.98 G -7.29 X
126.7 -0.07 8 0.00 A
-199.01 G -7.13 F
120.0 -0.11 s 0.00 A
-212.86 G ~-6.89 L
113.3 -0.05 s 0.00 A
-225.37 G -6.81 F
106.7 -0.09 s 0.00 A
-237.69 G -6.67 L
100.0 -0.05 s 0.00 A
-249.15 G -6.68 G
93.3 -0.12 § 0.00 A
-260.44 G -6.59 L
86.7 -0.04 s 0.00 A
-271.19 G -6.64 G
80.0 -0.11 s 0.00 A
~284.11 G -7.35 G
70.0 -0.10 s 0.00 A
-299.17 G -7.36 G
60.0 -0.07 s 0.00 A
-313.76 G -7.40 G
50.0 -0.09 S 0.00 A
~327.93 G -7.52 G
40.0 -0.06 s 0.00 A
-341.90 G -7.56 G
30.0 -0.05 s 0.00 A
-355.54 G -7.69 G
20.0 0.00 s 0.00 2
-368.99 G -7.72 G
10.0 -0.05 s 0.00 A
-382.06 G -7.92 G
0.0 0.00 A 0.00 A
FORCE/RESISTANCE RATIO IN LEGS
-— LEG COMPRESSION - ———= LEG TENSION -—-
MAST FORCE/ FORCE/
ELEV MAX COMP RESIST MAX  TENS RESIST
£t COMP RESIST RATIO TENS RESIST RATIO
197.00
0.75 62.50 0.01 0.40 77.27 0.01
192.75

Page 12

79



188.50
184.25
180.00
175.00
170.00
165.00
160.00
155.00
150.00
145.00
140.00
133.33
126.67
120.00
113.33
106.67
100.00
93.33
86.67
80.00
70.00
60.00
50.00
40.00
30.00
20.00
10.00
0.00

6.96 62.50 0.11

1.42 77.27 0.02

15.21 62.50 0.24

9.52 77.27 0.12

26.03 62.50 0.42

18.76 77.27 0.24

40.60 111.82 0.36

31.70 136.93 0.23

57.70 111.82 0.52

46.33 136.93 0.34

73.94 111.82 0.66

60.79 136.93 0.44

92.04 111.82 0.82

76.72 136.93 0.56

109.23 177.29 0.62

91.81 199.92 0.46

126.40 177.29 0.71

108.08 199.92 0.54

140.54 177.29 0.79

121.88 199.92 0.61

154.79 177.29 0.87

135.32 199.92 0.68

168.86 241.28 0.70

148.84 277.05 0.54

184.98 241.28 0.77

163.84 277.05 0.59

199.01 241.28 0.82

177.07 277.05 0.64

212.86 241.28 0.88

189.83 277.05 0.69

225.37 241.28 0.93

201.44 277.05 0.73

237.69 241.28 0.99

212.67 277.05 0.77

249.15 312.59 0.80

223.11 361.16 0.62

260.44 312.59 0.83

233.21 361.16 0.65

271.19 312.59 0.87

242.82 361.16 0.67

284.11 336.31 0.84

254.27 379.88 0.67

299.17 336.31 0.89

267.54 379.88 0.70

313.76 336.31 0.93

280.21 379.88 0.74

327.93 336.31 0.98

292.36 379.88 0.77

341.90 509.22 0.67

304.08 523.32 0.58

355.54 509.22 0.70

315.31 523.32 0.60

368.99 509.22 0.72

326.23 578.14 0.56

382.06 509.22 0.75

336.74 578.14 0.58

FORCE/RESISTANCE RATIO IN DIAGONALS

MAST
ELEV
ft
197.00
192.75
188.50
184.25
180.00
175.00
170.00

165.00

- DIAG COMPRESSION -

-== DIAG TENSION =--

FORCE/ FORCE/
MAX COMP RESIST MAX TENS RESIST
COMP RESIST RATIO TENS RESIST RATIO
1.03 7.16 0.14 1.01 7.16 0.14
3.21 7.16 0.45 3.18 7.16 0.44
4.00 7.16 0.56 4.02 7.16 0.56
5.59 7.16 0.78 5.49 7.16 0.77
6.44 10.74 0.60 6.05 10.74 0.56
6.58 10.74 0.61 6.76 10.74 0.63
7.70 10.74 0.72 7.44 10.74 0.69
7.76 10.74 0.72 7.85 10.74 0.73

80

Page 13



160.00

8.56 10.38 0.82 8.37 10.38 0.81
155.00
7.94 10.38 0.76 8.05 10.38 0.78
150.00
7.69 10.38 0.74 7.55 10.38 0.73
145.00
7.28 10.38 0.70 7.36 10.38 0.71
140.00
7.71  12.47 0.62 7.58 12.47 0.61
133.33
7.29 12.47 0.58 7.35 12.47 0.59
126.67
7.13 12.47 0.57 7.04 12.47 0.56
120.00
6.89 9.45 0.73 6.93 9.45 0.73
113.33
6.81 9.45 0.72 6.74 9.45 0.71
106.67
6.67 9.45 0.71 6.69 9.45 0.71
100.00
6.68 7.32 0.91 6.60 7.32 0.90
93.33
6.59 7.32 0.90 6.59 7.32 0.90
86.67
6.64 7.32 0.91 6.56 7.32 0.90
80.00
7.35 8.84 0.83 7.19 8.84 0.81
70.00
7.36 8.84 0.83 7.15 8.84 0.81
60.00
7.40 15.88 0.47 7.19 15.88 0.45
50.00
7.52 15.88 0.47 7.23 15.88 0.46
40.00
7.56 13.59 0.56 7.36 13.59 0.54
30.00
7.69 13.59 0.57 7.41 13.59 0.55
20.00
7.72  17.02 0.45 7.58 17.02 0.45
10.00
7.92 17.02 0.47 7.59 17.02 0.45
0.00
MAXIMUM INDIVIDUAL FOUNDATION LOADS: (kip)
-------------- LOAD~——COMPONENTS————————————— TOTAL
NORTH EAST DOWN UPLIFT SHEAR
34.22 G -27.11 € 388.06 G -341.46 M 34.22 G
MAXIMUM TOTAL LOADS ON FOUNDATION : (kip & kip-ft)
—————— HORIZONTAL-———— DOWN =~———————OVERTURNING~------—— TORSION
NORTH EAST  TOTAL NORTH EAST TOTAL
<] 0.0 o] 0.0
55,2 45.8 55.2  144.7 7330.7 -6401.4 7330.7 -26.6
G J G a G D G B

Latticed Tower Analysis (Unguyed)
Processed under license at:

Sabre Towers and Poles

(c)2024 Guymast Inc. 416-736-7453

on: 19 jun 2025 at: 10:20:23

[ 2 I E R R 222222222 22 2R R 2 X 2R RS S22 222 SRS 2SR s R s Rt sttt s s

Service Load Condition *kkkkdkdkdkdkhakhkkkhkhrskiddsd
T Ll Rl g T L L e e Lt e

hhkkhkhkhkhhkkdhhhkdkkdrrhkkhdk

81

Page 14



* Only 1 condition(s) shown in full

LOADING CONDITION A

60 mph wind with no ice. Wind Azimuth: Oe

MAST LOADING

(1.0D + 1.0 Wo)

LOAD ELEV APPLY..LOAD..AT LOAD ...... FORCES...... ...... MOMENTS . .....
TYPE RADIUS AZI AZI HORIZ DOWN VERTICAL TORSNAL
£t £t kip kip  ft-kip  ft-kip
c 199.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.01 0.45 0.00 0.00
c 192.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 2.39 7.00 0.00 0.00
¢ 182.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 1.89 4.50 0.00 0.00
c 172.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 1.63 4.50 0.00 0.00
c 162.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 1.38 4.50 0.00 0.00
D 197.0 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.02 0.04 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 180.0 0.0 0.02 0.04 0.00 0.00
D 192.7 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.03 0.04 0.02 -0.01
D 180.0 0.00 318.0 0.0 0.03 0.05 0.03 -0.02
D 180.0 0.00 320.9 0.0 0.04 0.07 0.04 -0.02
D 160.0 0.00 324.7 0.0 0.04 0.08 0.06 -0.03
D 160.0 0.00 332.1 0.0 0.04 0.10 0.09 -0.03
D 140.0 0.00 327.6 0.0 0.04 0.10 0.07 -0.03
D 140.0 0.00 336.5 0.0 0.04 0.12 0.10 -0.02
D 120.0 0.00 333.6 0.0 0.05 0.13 0.09 -0.03
D 120.0 0.00 339.8 0.0 0.04 0.13 0.12 -0.02
D 100.0 0.00 337.7 0.0 0.05 0.13 0.10 -0.02
D 100.0 0.00 342.4 0.0 0.05 0.15 0.13 -0.02
D 80.0 0.00 340.8 0.0 0.05 0.15 0.12 -0.02
D 80.0 0.00 344.2 0.0 0.05 0.16 0.15 -0.02
D 60.0 0.00 343.3 0.0 0.05 0.16 0.14 -0.02
D 60.0 0.00 345.8 0.0 0.05 0.18 0.16 -0.02
D 40.0 0.00 345.1 0.0 0.05 0.19 0.15 -0.02
D 40.0 0.00 347.1 0.0 0.05 0.24 0.18 -0.02
D 20.0 0.00 346.5 0.0 0.05 0.24 0.17 -0.02
D 20.0 0.00 348.2 0.0 0.04 0.25 0.19 -0.02
D 0.0 0.00 347.7 0.0 0.05 0.26 0.19 -0.02
MAXIMUM MAST DISPLACEMENTS:
ELEV —=——— DEFLECTIONS (ft)-———- ==TILTS (DEG)=--- TWIST
ft NORTH EAST DOWN NORTH EAST DEG
197.0 0.696 G 0.634 J 0.011G 0.431 G 0.401 J 0.035 H
192.7 0.664 G 0.605J 0.011G 0.431 G 0.401 J 0.035 H
188.5 0.631G 0.574J 0.011G 0.430 G 0.400 J 0.035 H
184.2 0.599 G 0.544 J 0.010 G 0.424 G 0.394 J 0.035 H
180.0 0.567 ¢ 0.514 J 0.010¢ 0.413 G 0.383J 0.034 H
175.0 0.531 G 0.481 J 0.010 G 0.402 G 0.373 J 0.033 H
170.0 0.496 G 0.448J 0.009G 0.388 G 0.359 J 0.032 H
165.0 0.461G 0.416 J 0.009G 0.371 G 0.343 J  0.031 H
160.0 0.429 G 0.387 J 0.008 G 0.352 G 0.324 J  0.029 H
155.0 0.398 ¢ 0.358 J 0.008 G  0.337 G 0.310 J 0.028 H
150.0 0.368 G 0.331J 0.008 G 0.321 G 0.295J  0.027 H
145.0 0.340 6 0.305J 0.007 G 0.304 G 0.278 J 0.025 H
140.0 0.3136 0.280J 0.007 G 0.286 G 0.261J 0.024 H
133.3 0.280 6 0.250 J 0.007 G 0.268 G 0.244 J  0.022 H
126.7 0.249 G 0.222J 0.006 G 0.250 G 0.227 J  0.021 H
120.0 0.2206 0.195J 0.006 G 0.231 G 0.210 J 0.019 H
113.3 0.193 G 0.171J 0.005G 0.212 G  0.192J  0.017 H
106.7 0.168 G 0.149J 0.005G 0.193 G 0.174 J  0.016 H
100.0 0.146 G 0.129J 0.005G 0.174 G 0.157 J  0.014 H
93.3 0.125 G 0.110 J 0.004 G 0.160 G 0.144 J 0.013 H
86.7 0.107G 0.094J 0.004G 0.146 G  0.131 J  0.011 H
80.0 0.089G 0.079J 0.004 G 0.131 G 0.118 J 0.010 B
70.0 0.067G 0.059J 0.003G 0.111 G 0.099 J  0.008 B
60.0 0.048G 0.042J 0.003G 0.091G 0.081 3 0.006 H
50.0 0.033G 0.029J 0.002G 0.071 G 0.063J  0.005 H
40.0 0.022G 0.019J 0.002G 0.051G 0.045J3 0.004 H

82

Page 15



30.
20.
10.

[~E-N-N-]

0.013
0.007
0.002
0.000

G 0.011 J 0
G 0.006 J 0
G 0.002 g 0.000 E
A 0.000 A& 0

.001 E
.001 E

.000 A

MAXIMUM TENSION IN MAST MEMBERS (kip)

ELEV
ft

197.0
192.7
188.5
184.2
180.0
175.0
170.0
165.0
160.0
155.0
150.0
145.0
140.0
133.3
126.7
120.0
113.3
106.7
100.0
93.3
86.7
80.0
70.0
60.0
50.0
40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0
0.0

LEGS DIAG HORIZ
0.23

0.00 6 0.29 ¢
0.04

0.00 a 0.93 F
0.02

0.86 A 1.19 F
0.03

3.06 A 1.58 L
0.12

6.35 A 1.64 L
0.09

9.85 A 2.04 L
0.01

13.53 A 2.10 L
0.09

17.52 A 2.33 L
0.01

21.30 A 2.40 L
0.06

25.85 A 2.40 L
0.03

29.88 A 2.18 F
0.05

33.64 A 2.19 L
0.03

37.54 A 2.20 F
0.05

41.71 A 2.19 L
0.03

45.47 A 2.05 F
0.05

49.00 A 2.07 F
0.02

52.28 A 1.98 L
0.04

55.38 a 2.00 F
0.02

58.29 A 1.96 L
0.05

61.05 A 1.97 L
0.02

63.68 A 1.95 L
0.04

66.80 A 2.15 F
0.04

70.42 A 2,15 L
0.03

73.83 A 2.18 F
0.04

77.08 A 2.19 L
0.02

80.14 a 2.23 F
0.02

83.02 A 2.25 L
0.00

85.77 A 2.31 G
0.02

88.41 A 2.31 G
0.00

MAXIMUM COMPRESSION

IN MAST

MEMBERS (kip)

ELEV

LEGS

DIAG HORIZ

» B Q@ P

H

[ T T T R R R R T

83

BRACE

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

BRACE

0.034 g
0.022 g
0.011 g
0.000 A

op oP o o oo oo P oMo MR PP PP PP PP PP PP

0.003 H
0.002 H
0.001 H
0.000 A

Page 16



ft

197.0 -0.21 G 0.00 &
-0.32 A -0.31 a
192.7 0.00 A 0.00 &
-3.14 G -0.95 L
188.5 -0.02 C 0.00 &
-6.18 G -1.17 L
184.2 0.00 A 0.00 a
-9.81 G -1.67 L
180.0 -0.06 C 0.00 A
-14.54 G -2.01 L
175.0 -0.02 G 0.00 A
-20.27 G -1.87 L
170.0 0.00 A 0.00 A
-25.54 G -2.34 L
165.0 -0.03 G 0.00 a
-31.46 G -2.25 L
160.0 0.00 ¢ 0.00 a
-37.09 G -2.58 L
155.0 -0.03 G 0.00 A
-42.35 G -2.30 L
150.0 -0.01 ¢G 0.00 A
-46.54 G -2.31 L
145.0 -0.02 G 0.00 a
-50.91 G -2.12 F
140.0 -0.01 ¢ 0.00 A
-55.13 G -2.31 L
133.3 -0.03 G 0.00 &
-60.13 G -2.14 L
126.7 -0.02 G 0.00 A
~64.41 G -2.14 L
120.0 -0.02 G 0.00 A
-68.74 G -2.04 L
113.3 -0.01 G 0.00 A
-72.61 G -2.04 F
106.7 -0.02 G 0.00 a
-76.48 G -1.98 L
100.0 -0.01 G 0.00 A
-80.08 G -2.01 G
93.3 -0.03 G 0.00 A
-83.68 G -1.97 L
86.7 -0.01 G 0.00 A
-87.10 ¢ -1.99 G
80.0 -0.02 G 0.00 A
-91.24 G -2.21 G
70.0 -0.02 G 0.00 A
-96.10 G -2.22 G
60.0 -0.01 ¢ 0.00 A
-100.87 G -2.25 G
50.0 -0.02 G 0.00 A
-105.55 G -2.29 G
40.0 -0.01 G 0.00 A
-110.25 G -2.31 G
30.0 -0.01 G 0.00 2
-114.92 G -2.36 G
20.0 0.00 G 0.00 2
-119.56 G -2.37 G
10.0 -0.01 G 0.00 A
-124.10 G ~-2.44 G
0.0 0.00 A 0.00 A
MAXIMUM INDIVIDUAL FOUNDATION LOADS: (kip)
—————————————— LOAD---COMPONENTS———————=—~—~— TOTAL
NORTH EAST DOWN UPLIFT SHEAR
10.88 G -8.68 C 126.21 G -89.56 A 10.88 G
MAXIMUM TOTAL LOADS ON FOUNDATION : (kip & kip-ft)
------ HORIZONTAL--——-— DOWN ~—=—====—=QVERTURNING-————————
NORTH EAST TOTAL NORTH EAST TOTAL
¢} 0.0 @ 0.0
16.5 13.8 16.5 50.1 2181.5 1909.9 2181.5
G J G E G J G

84

Page 17



85

Page 18



6T °b6ed

<09 TAA] (4K f4 W4 Ly 0LE L L 29€0'8 ¥6°€S 2
€828y 052€'9 ¥.€2°0 9¢€10°0 2528799 0000°0 0€L0°S 0001
44514 1eel’0 122070 91000 €SE9°L 00000 26.50 0001
80L6'€ 9208'S 8.12°0 8¢0°0 1166602 0000°0 ovS9v 00°0¢
I4 454 leel’0 12200 €500°0 6€€1°9¢ 00000 26450 00°0€
0690°€ VAZiad €891°0 /880°0 986S°/82 00000 0.6S°€ 00°0S
ever'0 1éel0 14200 ¥600°0 001E°9% 00000 26,50 00°0S
€29G°¢ 91G6.°€ 80v1°0 G100 0.69°0S€ 00000 0600°€ 0002
erer 0 leel’o 1£20°0 8€10°0 #S90S°/9 00000 26.5°0 00°0L
€8€9°C 260L°¢ 261’0 ££60°0 £0SY'6SY 00000 06.6¢C 00°06
avero lgel’0 1£20°0 2810’0 00568 00000 26450 00°06
00467} 68.8¢ 18010 116070 r45: 12144 0000°0 060€°C 000L}
avero 122l 0 14200 8¢2c0°0 ¥c66° L1 00000 ¢6.50 00°0L}
$988°| 19G/.72 GeoL'o 2s0t’o €2.P'G1S 0000°0 oLiee 00°0€1
erer o leel0 1£20°0 §L20°0 9¥€0°SEL 00000 26450 000€L
G80S° 1L €v0Ce 12800 /186070 0cr8 e8y 0000°0 089/.°} 00°0S1
evero leel’o 1,200 €200 8.06°8S| 00000 26150 00°0G1L
¥6¥0°0 2cL00 12000 G€00°0 (341 AN 00000 6,500 007191
Y6E8°E 9019°S 90120 8€/2°0 019e2ve’l 00000 0005V 007291
6€61°0 ce8e0 90100 gvL0°0 12’0 00000 ¢leco 00°291

LeLL°L 1 447" ¥¥90°0 €880°0 8/16°CEY 000070 06.¢€°} 007041
¥6€8°C 9019°S 90120 82620 6€05°GEY' ) 000070 000S'¥ 007CLL
veio ¥¥91°0 2¢900°0 88000 [30) 41 0000°0 8LEL0 00°9L1
28200 L1100 G000 €200°0 (1488 0000°0 0€€0°0 007181
76£8°€ 9019'G 90120 02IE0 2662625} 0000°0 0005V 00728l
4800 Y XAN 8¥00°0 €000 92/8°G¢E $201°0 2010 00781
PeLL’0 LEPO'L 16€0°0 2090°0 8y 1°G6C 8€8Y°0 05€8°0 05°881
¥2l6’S 9/2.'8 9/2¢0 2SS0 ¥6..'925°2 0000°L 000072 007261
6€£8€°0 L19G0 11200 SPE00 1910691 00S¥°0 005¥°0 00661

TJ0r-060 ™H0t+fdet O™ TFoog UM SO M Tsap™ [§DA)
§35104 J|WISIaS JO UONNGUISIA JEIII9A
H-¢22-VIL/ISNV

01 UoIO3S - 2INPNIS
eur/1eppe
6 UOOaG - aINPNIS
ouryueppen
8 UOJO9S - INONAS
aur/eppeT]
L UON99g - 2Injonig
sur/eppen
9 UONOBS - BINONIS
aur/1eppen
G UoIoeS - 2INJONAS
sury/eppe
¥ uonoag - ainPnng
aur/ieppe
£ UoROaS - aINPNRG
aur/iappeT
aurseppen
peOT BUUSIUY
aureppen
2 uo1oas - aInnig
peoT euusiuy
auI/1eppen
ur/1eppen
peoT BUUSIUY
aurj/eppen
| UORBS - aINjPNIS
peo euusiuy
peo euusiuy

Uonanossq

8INpadoid 89104 [elole] JUs|eAInby

S190]]3 PE0 ] SIWSIas

|
ozee
0021t
ovL0
1584
9€0'8
21652
2v6°es
00'€2
el
0vS'y
00°261
£v0°0
005'}
000'}
oLv'o
9600
¥£2°0
24%)]
05€°0
00’2
009'}
000'21
(unejep) @
0900
6120
000°€
n

Aobsjes ubise(q olwsiag
(sdny) °A
oy
(oss) |
(zueH) 4
(sdp) m
(sd) *m
(sdii) m
W) °m
W) *m
o
Wy
59
%
°L
—n_w
mn_m
_.S_w
wEm
|
E|
(oes) 11
SSB|D 8US
's
Sg
|
foBajen ysiy
Siojuieleg

86



0z ebeq

00°LT SL'T TAl 0ST 9 GL'ST 0S'T 0sct sc1 9 00G° X A0 S29'8 0c 0
G/L'ST 0S'T 0sCt SC1 9 7L 0S'T 0521 gc'1 9 005" X a0 S29'8 ov 0C
SL'ST 0ST 0S¢t SC'1 9 SL°ST 0S1 0S¢t Sc1 9 2¢Ce X a0 SC9'8 09 or
G/L'ST 0ST 0S¢t Gc1 9 GL'ST 0S7T 0S¢t SC1T 9 22e°Xa0se9’8 08 09
SL°ST SLT 0521 T AN 9 0s'TT T 006 00T 9 00S° X Q0 €95°S 00T 08
0S'1TT T 00’6 00T 9 0511 T 00'6 00T 9 GLE X A0 €95°S 0zt 001
0S'1T gc'1 00'6 001 9 0S'TT SC1 006 00T 9 G/£ X A0 €99°9 ort (174
0S'11 *TARY 006 00T 9 0S'T1 SC'T 00'6 00T 9 LEE X A0 005V 091 ort
0S'1T ST 006 007 9 05’8 00T 0S'9 GL°0 9 00€° X do 00se 08T 091
0S8 00T 0S'9 SL°0 9 €02°Xa0sL8¢C L61 08T
(un) (w)
. w - (un) (w . fowos (w) —— (w) . (w) . fad nog W) (u)
eigeed e o nog  “elgnog eigaled el sl Nog  elgnod suoisuswigadid uoheas)3 uoneAsld
aseg/aands wonog aands doy doL uionog

sjielag uonoauuo?) sa

87



Tz °obeg

c/e'0 000°¢C S29'T 0S40 1 PITXY XY (174 0
S/E°0 0SL'T G291 0S2°0 T PIIXTZ/TEXT/TET o 114
S/E°0 0S.'T G291 0S40 T VPIIXT/TEXT/TEN 09 oy
S/E°0 0SL'T G291 0640 T 9T/EXEXET 08 09
SLE0 S/E'T 00S°T 0S2°0 T 9T/EXT/TTXT/TCT 00T 08
SLE°0 SLE'T 00S°T 290 T 9T/EXT/TTXT/TC oct 00T
S/E°0 SLE'T 00T G290 T 9T/EXT/TTXT/TC ovt 0ct
SLE°0 STAN 00S'T G290 1 9T/€XZXC1 091 ort
SLE0 SCI'T 00T G¢9'0 T 9T/€XZXC1 08T 091
GLE0 SCl'T 00G°T G290 T 8/TXCXC1 L6T 08T
(un) ssauxolyy  (un) 198 wouy (w () (u) ) )
Suioeds  souelsiq ‘A 109 adeys 918uy uoneAs)g uoneasly
aleld1assng  aouelsig sgeo ‘eIg Nog
nog pu3znod dot wonog

s)lejaq uonaauuod sujoeig jeuoseiq

88



MAT FOUNDATION DESIGN BY SABRE INDUSTRIES
197' S3TL Series HD2 ARCOLA TOWERS Farmville Grove, VA (26-0628-JSS) 2025-06-19 REB

Overall Loads:
Factored Moment (ft-kips)
Factored Axial (kips)
Factored Shear (kips)
Individual Leg Loads:
Factored Uplift (kips)
Factored Download (kips)
Factored Shear (kips)

Width of Tower (ft)
Ultimate Bearing Pressure
Bearing ®s

Bearing Design Strength (ksf)
Water Table Below Grade (ft)
Width of Mat (ft)
Thickness of Mat (ft)
Depth to Bottom of Slab (ft)
Bolt Circle Diameter (in)
Effective Anchor
Bolt Embedment
Diameter of Pier (ft)

Ht. of Pier Above Ground (ft)

Ht. of Pier Below Ground (ft)
Quantity of Bars in Mat
Bar Diameter in Mat (in)
Area of Bars in Mat (in%)
Spacing of Bars in Mat (in)
Quantity of Bars Pier
Bar Diameter in Pier (in)
Tie Bar Diameter in Pier (in)
Spacing of Ties (in)
Area of Bars in Pier (in2)
Spacing of Bars in Pier (in)
f'c (ksi)
fy (ksi)
Unit Wt. of Soil (kef)
Unit Wt. of Concrete (kcf)
Volume of Concrete (yd®)

7330.67

144.71

55.24

341.00

388.00

34.00

23

5.00

0.75

3.75

999

30

)

6.5

13.25

65.125

3.5

0.5

89

Tower eccentric frommat (f)=_____ 2]

Allowable Bearing Pressure (ksf) 2.50
Safety Factor 2.00

Max. Factored Net Bearing Pressure (ksf) 3.34

Minimum Mat Width (ft) 28.83
Minimum Pier Diameter (ft) 2.60
Equivalent Square b (ft) 3.10

Recommended Spacing (in) 610 12
Minimum Pier A (in%) 6.93

Recommended Spacing (in) 510 12

Page 22



MAT FOUNDATION DESIGN BY SABRE INDUSTRIES (CONTINUED)
Two-Way Shear:

Average d (in) 14
ov, (ksi) I 0.201 | v, (ksi)
Ve =02 + 4/Bo)f's" 0.302
OV =0(0s /b +2)f', 2 0.238
v, = paf' "2 0.201
Shear perimeter, b, (in) 204.89
Be 1
Stability:
Overturning Design Strength (ft-k) Factored Overturning Moment (ft-k)
One-Way Shear:
oV (kips) Vu (kips)
Pier Design:
Design Tensile Strength (kips) Tu (kips)
Shear:
¢ 0.75
V. (kips) 96.1
V; (kips) 197.9 Ve max (Kips)
#Va (kips) Va (kips)
Maximum Spacing (in) 11.15 (Only if Shear Ties are Required)
Actual Hook Development (in) 13.00 Req'd Hook Development |y, (in) - Tension

Reg'd Hook Development 4, (in) - Compression
Anchor Bolt Pull-Out:
Nua/ ¢Nn Okm Vua/¢vn
Pier Rebar Development Length (in) 54.82 _ Required Length of Development (in)
Flexure in Slab:
oM, (ft-kips) M, (ft-kips)
a(in) 1.85

Steel Ratio 0.00841
B4 0.825
Maximum Steel Ratio (p,) 0.0197
Minimum Steel Ratio 0.0018

Condition 1is OK, 0 Fails

Minimum Mat Width
Maximum Soil Bearing Pressure
Pier Area of Steel
Pier Shear
Two-Way Shear
Overturning
Anchor Bolt Pull-Out
Flexure
Steel Ratio
Interaction Diagram
One-Way Shear
Hook Development
Minimum Mat Depth
Anchor Bolt Punching Shear

O " NRT Ui ST W G WY G (T QT G g |

920

7717.4

405.3

757.3
34.0

10.96
11.81

0.10
23.48

2485.4

Page 23



DRILLED STRAIGHT PIER DESIGN BY SABRE INDUSTRIES

197' S3TL Series HD2 ARCOLA TOWERS Farmville Grove, VA (26-0628-JSS) 2025-06-19 REB

Factored Uplift (kips) 341.00
Factored Download (kips) 388.00
Factored Shear (kips) 34.00
Ultimate Bearing Pressure 9
Bearing ¢, 0.75
Bearing Design Strength (ksf) 6.75
Water Table Below Grade (ft) 999
Bolt Circle Diameter (in) 13.25
Effective Anchor Bolt Embedment 65.125
Pier Diameter (ft) 4.5 Minimum Pier Diameter (ft)
Ht. Above Ground (ft) 0.5
Pier Length Below Ground (ft) 62.5
Quantity of Bars 14
Bar Diameter (in) 1.128
Area of Bars (in) 13.99 Minimum Area of Steel (in?)
Spacing of Bars (in) 10.21
Tie Bar Diameter (in) 0.5
Spacing of Ties (in) 12
f' (ksi) 4.5
fy (ksi) 60
Unit Wt. of Concrete (kcf) 0.15
Volume of Concrete (yd®) 37.11
Length to ignore download (ft)
Ignore bottom length in download? ] 0
Depth at Bottom of Layer (ft) Ult. Skin Friction (ksf) | (UR. Skin Friction)*(Uplift Factor) v (kcf)
67.5 0.50 0.50 0.11

91

Page 24



DRILLED STRAIGHT PIER DESIGN BY SABRE INDUSTRIES (CONTINUED)

Download:
@,, Download Friction 0.75
Q, Skin Friction (kips) 441.8 W; (kips) 109.3
Qu,, End Bearing Strength (kips) 143.1 W, (kips) 150.3
Download Design Strength (kips) | 438.7 Factored Net Download (kips) 437.1
Uplift (skin friction):
@, Uplift (friction) 0.75
Qy, Skin Friction (kips) 441.8
W. (kips) 150.3
W, (kips) 0.0
Uplift Design Strength (kips) 466.6 Factored Uplift (kips)
Uplift (cone):
@, Uplift (cone) 0.75
W cone (kips) 11127.9
W, cone (KipS) 0.0
W, (kips) 150.3
Wy (Kips) 0.0
Uplift Design Strength (kips) 84812 Factored Uplift (kips)
Tension:
Design Tensile Strength (kips) | 755.5 T, (Kips)
Shear:
¢ 0.75
V. (kips) 219.8
V, (kips) 84.8 Vs max (Kips) 1251.9
$V, (kips) 228.4 | V,, (kips)
Anchor Bolt Pull-Out:
Nya/ &N, ' 0.54 ' Via/ OV, 0.10
Rebar Development Length (in) | 50.70 Required Length of Development (in] 30.27
Condition 1 is OK, 0 Fails
Download 1
Uplift 1
Area of Steel 1
Shear 1
Anchor Bolt Pull-Out 1
Interaction Diagram 1

92 Page 25



Exhibit “8”

93



arcola

TOWERS

June 9, 2025

Robert Love

Director

Prince Edward County Planning & Zoning 111 N. South Street, 3" Floor,
Farmville, VA 23901

(434) 414-3037

Re: Arcola Towers- Site Name: Farmville Grove- Site Location: 85 SMI Way,
Farmville, VA 23901 (Parcel ID 023B 2 2)- Telecommunication Facility-
Collocation Policy Letter

Mr. Love,

Per Section 3-100.13- Towers (C)(10), Arcola Towers ensures that the proposed
telecommunications facility is designed to accommodate at least three (3) wireless broadband

carriers. Arcola Towers, any future successors and assigns, shall allow any communication
company to collocate on the tower at the prevailing market rate for this facility.

Sincerely,

G

Ryan Foltz
Arcola Towers
Senior Development Director

94



Exhibit “9”

95



arcola

TOWERS

June 9, 2025

Robert Love

Director

Prince Edward County Planning & Zoning 111 N. South Street, 374 Floor,
Farmville, VA 23901

(434) 414-3037

Re: Arcola Towers- Site Name: Farmville Grove- Site Location: 85 SMI Way,
Farmville, VA 23901 (Parcel ID 023B 2 2)- Telecommunication Facility- Tower
Removal Letter

Dear Mr. Love,

Please accept the signed statement below as confirming Section 3-100.13- Towers (C)(16) of the
Prince Edward County Code of Ordinances:

Arcola Towers, its successors and assigns, provide this statement declaring itself, its successors
and assigns of being financially responsible to assure the proposed communications tower,
which is no longer used for communications purposes for a continuous period of ninety (90)
days, will be dismantled and removed within ninety (90) days of receipt of notice from the
Building Official or County Administrator notifying the owner of such removal requirement.

Please contact me should you have any questions.
Sincerely,

/%M ﬁég
Ryan Foltz

Arcola Towers
Senior Development Director

96



Exhibit “10”

97



arcola

TOWERS

June 9, 2025

Robert Love

Director

Prince Edward County Planning & Zoning 111 N. South Street, 3¢ Floor,
Farmville, VA 23901

(434) 414-3037

Re: Arcola Towers- Site Name: Farmville Grove - Site Location: 85 SMI Way,
Farmville, VA 23901 (Parcel ID 023B 2 2) - Indemnification Letter

Mr. Love,

Except for expenses or liabilities arising from the negligence of the County of Prince Edward,
Arcola Towers hereby expressly agrees to indemnify and hold the County of Prince Edward
harmless against expenses and liabilities arising out of the construction and operation of the
proposed tower as follows: Arcola Towers expressly agrees to the extent that there is a causal
relationship between its negligent, reckless, or intentionally wrongful action or inaction, or the
negligent, reckless or intentionally wrongful action or inaction of any of its employees or any
person, firm, or corporation directly or indirectly employed by Arcola Towers, and any damage,
liability, injury loss or expense (whether in connection with bodily injury or death or property
damage or loss) that is suffered by the County of Prince Edward and its employees or any
member of the public, to indemnify and save the County of Prince Edward and its employees
harmless against any and all liabilities, penalties, demands, claims, lawsuits, losses, damages,
costs, and expenses arising out of the performance of the construction or operation of the
proposed tower.

Sincerely,
/%M ﬁ%
Ryan Foltz

Arcola Towers
Senior Development Director

98



Exhibit “11”

929



Legal Description

All that certain tract or parcel of land situated in Farmville Magisterial
District, Prince Edward County, Virginia, containing 4.682 acres, fronting
on SMI Way and being bounded on the north and east by unopened streets,
and on the west by the Waterworks Players Inc.; it being more particularly
described on a plat by John M. Duggan dated June 17, 2009 (the “Plat”)
and attached to and recorded with the Deed dated August 17, 2009 and
recorded among the Land Records of Prince Edward County, Virginia as
Instrument No. 200901858, from O. Henry Booth to James W. Ailsworth.

100



Exhibit “12”

101



FILED ELECTRO CAL%
pate. B-F~ g‘m

BOOK PAGE,

s olDL5 006

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

CLERK: Please return this document to:  Arcola Towers, LLC

PO Box 2150
Middleburg, VA 20118
-~
This Memorandum of Agreement is entered into on this 23 day of A‘P A . 2023, by

and between James W, Ailsworth, with an address at 121 N Main Street, Farmville, VA 23901 (hereinafter referred
to as "Lessor"), and Arcola Towers 2, LP, a Virginia limited partnership with an office at P.O. Box 2150,
Middleburg, VA 20118 (hereinafter referred to as "Lessee™).

1.

[

(%)

o
Lessor and Lessee entered into a Ground Lease Agreement ["Agreement"] on the 2:5 day of

Aﬁg’_’! [ s &Lf, for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining a wireless
communications facility and other improvements. All of the foregoing is set forth in the Agreement,

The initial term of the Agreement is for five (5) years, commencing on the Commencement Date (as defined in
the Agreement), with nine (9) successive renewal periods of five (3) vears each.

The Land which is the subject of the Agreement (the “Site”) is described in Exhibit A annexed hereto (as more
particularly depicted in Exhibit B annexed hereto. Lessee may record an amendment to this Memorandum of
Agreement to reflect any modifications to Exhibit A and Exhibit B following Lessee’s receipt of an as-built
survey of the leased premises.

The Agreement gives Lessee the exclusive right to build and operate wireless communications facilities on the
Site and on any land owned by Lessor within a one mile radius of the Site and gives Lessee a right of first refusal
in the event Lessor receives an offer from a third party seeking any sale conveyance. assignment or transfer,
whether in whole or in part. of any property interest in or related to the Leased Premises, including without
limitation any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the rent payments associated with the Agreement or an
offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Leased Premises.

This Memorandum of Agreement is not intended to amend or modify, and shall not be deemed or construed as
amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Agreement, all of which are hereby
ratified and affirmed. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Memorandum of Lease and the
provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement shall control. The Agreement shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs. successors, and assigns, subject to the
provisions of the Agreement,

102



SIGNATURE PAGE TO MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Agreement as of the day and year

first above written.
LESSOR: James W. Ailsworﬂz
By: /LO\J- W . Mﬁb

Print Wdme: T"\N\E_; w. A ' )Swwl'h,

Print Title (if any):

STATE OF \l!‘%o"""“‘.
countYoF Prince EAWARD

On Bf{_‘,\ e A‘QLS , before me, s \aY A\ | Notary
Public, personally appeared James W. Ailsworth personally known to me (or prowd to me on the basis of satisfactory

evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacit(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the

instrument, the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the izﬁt{ument.
Wty

"

WITNESS my hand and official seal. S GRACE 417,

S NOTARY " %0
EXPIRES

wﬁ@ﬂﬂﬂa&&, (SEAL) 3
Notary Public =
“ » K N -
-, B/31/2025 53

LESSEE: ", & *teagennt” *\ <~
ARCOLA TOWERS 2, LP %0, YEALTH OF (&
a Virginia limited partnership LTI

[

My,

)

[

w

g

(@]
» N

REG. # 7743633
MY COMMISSION

Q0 * £,
Q\;\‘t‘

By: Arcola Towers, LLC
a Virginia d liability com pany, its general partner

Print Name: Christian Winkler
Title: President

STATE OF \/lR@‘MlA"

coUNTYOF _ |L_OVUDOON

On AD(' ;\ 2'9-3' 2025 , before me, @Md’a‘ 44 La'“'ﬁ/ , Notary Public,

personaﬂy appeared Christian Winkler, President of Arcola Towers, LLC, personally known to me (or proved to me
on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in histher/their authorized capacit(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s), or the entity upon behaif of which the person(s) acted,

executed the instrument. NI
\) s
\\\‘::\_ONG - N 07"4:;'»,
» . & RUSAPAUN “
WITNESS my hand and official s€a)). 3‘543.»%9,6* 317957 f%:"o,
S EhaSY %
S35 A "
3 di ) me_— (SEAL) 90 [ ) 103
Notary Public J : iz Ho! £
) T iZNGhrse 9§
:" (i v"O o .,: ” v s
%A £ °<§§
“, R AR\
v, 'a,n'E A TH 0{' :3\\\\\\

AP

103



Irgst::ument# 200901858 Page 1. .
EXHIBIT "A"

Prepared By & Retumn To:
E. Preston Lancaster, Ir.

Attomney st Lew
P.O.Box 393
Fermuiile, VA 23901

Tax Map Paycel Number; 02382 2 Consideration: $210,000.00

THIS DEED, made and entered into this 17¢th day of August, 2009, by and between
0. HENRY BOQTH, party of the first part, Grantor, and JAMES W. AILSWORTH, 121 N. Main
Street, Farmville, VA 23901, party of the second part, Grantee.

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party
of the first part does hereby graut,bargatn, sell and convey, with GENERAL WARRANTY of title,
unto the ssid party of the second part the following described real estate, to-wit:

All that certain tract or parcel of land situated in Farmville Magisterial District, Prince Edward
County, Virginia, containing 4.682 acres, fronting on SM1 Way and being bounded on the North and
East by unopened streets; on the West by the Waterworks Players Inc.; it being more particularly
described on a plat by John M. Duggan dated Jure 17, 2009 and attsched hereto for a more particular
description of the property, it being the identical property conveyed to O. Henry Booth by deed dated
May 29, 1996, recorded in Deed Book 302, page 791.

The party of the first part covenant that he has the right to convey the said land to the said
grantee; that the said grantee shall have quiet possession of the said land, free from all encumbrances;
that he has done no act to encumber the said land; and that he will execute such further assurances
of title to said land as may be requisite.

104



Instrument$ 200901858 Page 2

WITNESS the following signature and seal:

(SEAL)
0. HENRY BOOTH

STATE OF VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD, to-wit: _
The foregoing instrament was acknowledged before me this _l&fj'day of Agust, 2009, by

o o .

NOTARY PUBLIC

- 189127
My Commission Expitas Jun 30, 2011

My commission expires

105



. 1086-168-967 X¥4 00QS-168-78Y
6007 ‘T2 AV J0s5z VA ITUANNYA 1S GHINL Lsva too
21‘ I * L ]
JVMOH HONRId a97d NVOONG
TANAIVA
1004 adda
" 2407 o (M "1409) L4V 1V 9, TH0¥VY
i AVM NS
. { | H3Md0D 40 lev3
d LYHI ONIad {10 o WUS I | —  —
|
i AN xﬁﬂﬂ ............ | o
- k3
= “=-t s o o z
— \  N3NHOD 40 v 18'9d 998 A =
B o\ BEESS uameom AN %
Yy doy L8'69=NETD i <
L #007C.88=7 - m m
O oﬁv £0'08=¥ . ™
S V% 6T LT witthe " Ay
..: 5 N ¢y 0
p 2% ’ ¥ o
2 . */ \ - m R .
A4 %0 b 2%
. L]
wor 8 ¢ /;/ SHIOV C89F Y oaew G
- v /W \.__ ! J z M
ol 1 ! W
N - P
\4/« « < < < « < ;.I..l..ht-.l.a R
/ @IIlA v f o f e f e wone Y s f e v £ v f wns T
IYNIVIQ . /] h ! Holeria ..\%
Q3SIA3Y ot WL \ &
00 ! » A
\\ \ - } - aNnD4
; ! .m. M \.u% a0l
———— m 4 R
HIIHM ) \ Ul
oz do anno Wv e
8 SHL ¢ Smm 1 \ 2l ' . é&éwsﬁﬁﬁ
3NN HPEES.TIS5=0ud - ey u,ﬁu%m -,
@ 8L 2 WeNRTD L L y LN n.am“. 1309 N
11338 ) WG TPoGYm ~ dox (EE g
LO) 0005=Y

PTe6=]

g @bed 868106002 #IUSEMIJZSUT

106



Instrument# 200901858 Page 4

INSTRUMENT &200704858
RECORDED IN THE CLERK’S OFFICE OF
WARD COUNTY ON

PRINCE EDWARD C
A oe o éa%'%?gaa}'ﬁﬂéﬁhgmn 8
Grantors far: s Q10.00 REQUIRED BY SEC 58.1-802 OF THE VA, CODE
Md'/nei.vereu To: STATE:  $105.00 LOCAL: $103., 00
Date; Ph.c.stmd%uaam MACHELLE J, EPPESy CLERK
. 9-40-09 RECGRDED BY: DLl

107



EXHIBIT “B”

108



POINT OF BEGINNING

0.129 ACRES

76 X756
- OZRTH LEASE PREMISES LEASE PREMISES
JAKETSM. -zgg;szga(PbAT)
N OO e
1. #2 o
INS —— L1
..... \
Ty \
i
\ \ \‘:
\ \ o
\ \
\ =\ \
‘\F‘ =) \
\ -
\
\ \
\ L9 o=
t _.r""—“
} r
e 0.281 ACRES
| @00 }~———NEW 30° INGRESS/EGRESS &
:}" i UTILITY,/FIBER EASEMENT
2
!5
! {
A }
e ]
\_-~ f
/” 4
27 2
,»" Q ——/I
- o pral
v 1 7
Lo <N
”,/ \\ \
’/’ N \
’z’ \\ \'\

_______________ A
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
HWY. P.B. 6 PG._87

SMI WAY
(60° STREET)

(PARCEL 6% P.C. A-77)
(PARCEL "B". HWY. P.B. 6, PG 87)

POINT OF BEGINNING

VIRGINIA STATE GRID

FASEMENT
4/22/25
TODD M. LENNI
D .
0 50 100 150
SURVEYOR OF RECORD: PROJECT:
NOTES: LENNING LAND SURVEYING
1. PHYSICAL SURVEY PERFORMED ON APRIL 11, 2126 LEWISTON PLANT ROAD FARMVILLE GROVE
20 EORNERIE asia e SITE INFORMATION:
PH: 434.767.9940
2 FOR ADDITIONAL SURVEYOR'S NOTES, SEE 85 SMI WAY
SHEET 2. ENGINEER OF RECORD: FARMVILLE VA 23901
BAMMAN CONSULTING, LLC
3 PROJECT IS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF 14489 ST ANDREWS LN SHEET NO:
TOWN OF FARMVILLE ASHLAND. VA 23005 1 O F 2
PH: 703.328.8574
UN. A-2237—1

JIN, A-2237~1

109




LESSEE'S 30' NON-EXCLUSIVE INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMiI WAY,
WHICH POINT IS 17.58' EAST OF THE SOUTH WEST PROPERTY CORNER
OF T.M.238-2-2;

THENCE NOO'32°59"W A DISTANCE OF 35.16° TO A POINT; THENCE
N66°48'53"C A DISTANCE OF 145.93' TO A POINT: THENCE NO7'13'35°F A
DISTANCE OF 44.87' TO A POINT; THENCE N11°00°00"W A DISTANCE OF
104.74° TO A POINT; THENCE N79°00°00°E A DISTANCE OF 30.00° TO A
POINT AT THE NORTH WEST CORNER OF THE 75'X75' LEASE AREA;
THENCE S11°00°00"E A DISTANCE OF 75.00° ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
THE 75°X75' LEASE AREA TO A POINT; THENCE N79'00°00°E A DISTANCE
OF 75.00" ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 75'X75 LEASE AREA TO A
POINT; THENCE LEAVING THE 75'X75' LEASE AREA S11°00°00°F A
DISTANCE OF 30.00° TO A POINT; THENCE S79°00°00"W A DISTANCE OF
73.50° TO A POINT; THENCE S07'13°35"W A DISTANCE OF 71.65° TO A
POINT; THENCE S66°48°53"W A DISTANCE OF 143.11° 7O A POINT;
THENCE S00°32°59°E A DISTANCE OF 15.17' TO A POINT ON THE NORTH
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMI WAY; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SMI WAY S89°27°01"W A DISTANCE OF 30.00° TO A POINT; WHICH IS THE
POINT OF BgG/NNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 12234.46 SQUARE FEET, OR
0.281 ACRE!

75'X75' LEASE PREMISES AREA

BEGINNING AT A POINT AT THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF
THE LESSEE'S 30° INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY/FIBER
EASEMENT.

THENCE N79°00°00"E A DISTANCE OF 75.00' TO A POINT;
THENCE S11°00°00°E A DISTANCE OF 75.00° TO A POINT;
THENCE ALONG THE LESSEE'S 30' INGRESS/EGRESS AND
UTILITY/FIBER EASEMENT S79°00°00°W A DISTANCE OF
75.00° TO A POINT; THENCE ALONG THE LESSEE'S 30°
INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY,/FIBER EASEMENT,
NT1°00°00°W A DISTANCE OF 75.00' TO A POINT; WHICH
IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF
5625.00 SQUARE FEET, 0.129 ACRES

Co.

=7

wTH Op

4/22/25
ODD/M /LENNlNG

%
)
z

04,‘.

S
.
CERJIFICA e —
¢, No. 2445 &
% SURW{

VIRGINIA STATE GRID

NEW 30" INGRESS/EGRESS &
UTILITY EASEMENT

LINE | BEARING DISTANCE
L1 _|NOO32°53"W|35.16

L2 |N66°48°53F |145.93
L3 |NO7°13'357E |44.87°
L4 |N11°00°00"W][104.74"

[5 _|N79°00°00°E [30.00"
{6 |ST1I°0000'E | 75.00°
7 |N79°0000°E | 75.00"
(8 |S1T°0000E |30.00"
LS |S79°0000°W|73.50"
L10 [SO7 1335 W|71.65°
(11 |S664853 W 143.11°
L12 |S00°3259°E |15.17
113 15892701 W|30.00"

75°%75°
LEASE PREMISES
L14 [N79°0000°E | 75.00°
L15 |S11T00°00°E | 75.00"
L16 |S79°00°00°W|75.00"
L17 [NTT0000W|75.00"

100 150

SURVEYOR OF RECORD: PROJECT:
NOTES: LENNING LAND SURVEYING
1. PHYSICAL SURVEY PERFORMED ON APRIL 11 2126 LEWISTON PLANT ROAD FARMVILLE GROVE
2025 BURKEVILLE, VA 23922 SITE INFORMATION:
PH: 434.767.9940 85 SMI WAY
2. FOR ADDITIONAL SURVEYOR'S NOTES, SEE :
BAMMAN CONSULTING, LLC
3 PROJECT IS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF 14489 ST ANDREWS LN SHEET NO:
TOWN OF FARMVILLE ASHLAND, VA 23005 2 O F 2
PH: 703.328.8574
. A=2237-2

JIN. A-2237~1

110




VIRGINIA LAND RECORD COVER SHEET

Commomwvealth of Virginia VA. CODE §§ 17.1-223, <227.1, <249
FORM A - COVER SHEET CONTENT

Instrument Date: .3/23/2025
Instrument Type: AGLT

Number of Parcels: ....1.... Number of Pages: .....5......
[ ]Clty [x] County PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY COUR]

CIRCUIT COURT
Tax Exempt?  VIRGINIA/FEDERAL CODE SECTION
[ ] Grantor:
[ ] Grantee:
Business/Name (Area Above Reserved For Deed Stump Only)
werekon.  Grantor; AILSWORTH, JAMES W.
werl...  Grantor; ARCOLA TOWERS 2,, 1P
........ 1. Orantee; AILSWORTH, JAMES W.
........ 2.. Grantee: RRCOLA TOWERS 2,, LP
Grantee Address
Name: JAMES W. AILSWORTH
Address: 121 N MAIN STREET
City: FARMVILLE State: ...Y2._  Zip Code; 23201
Consideration: $2:90 ... Existing Debt: 59:99 Actual Value/Assumed: $9:90
PRIOR INSTRUMENT UNDER § 58.1-803(D):
Originat Principal: .$9.:99 Fair Market Vatue Increase: .50:99
OEINEL BOOK NO.: 1o crrscssrsrsesenins Origingl Page NO.: .coousvsnrimnricrscnm. Originl Instroment No; 200901858

Prior Recording At; [ ] City [X] County ERINCE EDWARD

Percentage In This Jurisdiction: .19%% ..

Book Number: .........co.... Page Number: ... Instrument Number; 299201858

Parce] Identification Number/Tax Map Number; 238272

Short Property Description:

Current Property Address: 83 SMI WAY

City; FARMVILLE State: ...YA ... Zip Code: 23901

Instrument Prepared By: ARCOLA TOWERS, LLC Recording Paid By: FALKER TITLE, LLC

Recording Returned To: WALKER TITLE, LLC
Address: 11781 ROUTIE 50, SUITE 300

City: FAIRFAX State: ...VA.. Zip Code: 22033

S

-

FORM CC-1570 (MASTER, PAGEONEOF __ ONE__ 3 o119
© Copyright 2014 Office of the Exccutive Sccretary, Suprema Count of Virginia. All dghts resorved,

111

Cover Sheet A



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

CLERK: Please return this document to:  Arcola Towers, LLC Tax map # 23B-2-2
PO Box 2150
Middieburg, VA 20118
‘a"ﬂ{ -
This Memorandum of Agreement is entered into on this &3 day of A"? il , 2028, by

and between James W, Ailsworth, with an address at 121 N Main Street, Farmvilie, VA 23901 (hereinafier referred
to as "Lessor"), and Arcola Towers 2, LP, a Virginia limited parinership with an office at P.O. Box 2150,

Middleburg, VA 20118 (hereinafter referved to as "Lessee™).

1.

e
Lessor and Lessee entered into a Ground Lease Agreement [“Agreement”] on the 25 day of
AeeiC , _2@eYS, for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining a wireless

communications facility and other improvements. All of the foregoing is set forth in the Agrecment.

The initial term of the Agreement is for five (5) years, commencing on the Commencement Date (as defined in
the Agreement), with nine (9) successive renewal periods of five (5) years each.

The Land which is the subject of the Agreement (the “Site™) is described In Exhibit A annexed hereto (as more
particularly depicted in Exhibit B annexed hereto. Lessee may record an amendment to this Memorandum of
Agreement to reflect any modifications to Exhibit A and Exhibit B following Lessee’s receipt of an as-built
survey of the leased premises.

The Agreement gives Lessee the exclusive right to build and operate wireless communications facilities on Lhe
Site and on any land owned by Lessor within a one mile radius of the Site and gives Lessee a right of first refusal
in the event Lessor receives an offer from a thivd party seeking any sale. conveyance, essignment or transfer,
whether in whole or in part, of any property interest in or refated to the Leased Premises. including without
limitation any offer seeking an assignnient or transfer of the rent payments associated with the Agrezment or an
offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Leasad Premises.

This Memorandum of Agreement is ot intended to amend or modify, and shall not be deemed or construed as
amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Agreement, all of which are hereby
ratified and affirmed. In the event of a conflicl between the provisions of this Memorandum of Lease and the
provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement shall control. The Agreement shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns, subject to the
provisions of the Agreement.

112



SIGNATURE PAGE TO MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Agreement as of the day and year

first above written.
LESSOR: James W, Ailswortl::
By: A% W, m

Print Ndme: w A
Print Titln;iifan;)jr AmEs WA lsworti

STATE OF \lt'ﬂ.“’-"'\“t
COUNTY OF _ P rince CAWHAD

On ; L , before me, . £ A\, Notary
Public, personally appeared James W. Allsworth personally known to me (or provd to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged fo me that
hefshe/they executed the same in histher/their authorized capacit(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the

b i
WITNESS my hand and official seal. RO GRAC Ef”l/‘o"f,
“ \3’ - ", & ",

. ] SSNoTARY e
Mﬂ&ﬂa&;&_ (SEAL) &7 PUBLC %2
Notary Public S S REG.#7743633 ¢ % =

Z ot MYCOMMISSION | o S

22, EPRES § 3

2%, 0812025 S T

LESSEE: A
ARCOLA TOWERS 2, LP "t,l,"EALTH 0"“\\‘
a Virginia limited partnership f1nnd
By: Arcola Towers, LLC
a Virginia d liability compasty, its general partner
By:

e
Print Name; Christian Winkler
Title: President

STATE OF \/”2*&1“\“/’(‘
COUNTYOF ___LOVDOON

On ADI';\ 13 2025 , before me, ___ea.ndﬂ— 44 Lm"'s/ . Notary Public,

personally appeared Christian Winkler, President of Arcola Towers, LLC, persanally known to me (or proved to me
on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) isfare subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacit(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument.

). lm.é,» (SEAL)

“‘||lll|l'lt,,
4$§g§?;sakisi-:3?5;5::;aqb
<3

$ 31700,
Sle

%,
>

o

o
A\

7e, 'y

"-E'." '0.&{
S .%%

anaShog,
*tvusne=®

Notary Public

'.‘!|‘| L] Ul»n,, ”

H

! E

2\ [ §

3 * NRR
".o% D% s

‘aﬁ ol
qo' csé
e

113



Iqstrument# 200901858 Page 1 )
EXHIBIT "A"

Prepanad By & Return To;
E. Preston Lancaster, Jr.

Altorpey at Low
P.0.80x 393
Farmville, VA 23501

Tax Mup Parcel Numbe: 02382 2 Consideration: $210,000.00

THIS DEED, made and entered into this 17th day of August, 2009, by and between
0. HENRY BOOTH, party of the first part, Grantor, and JAMES W, AILSWORTH, 121 N. Main
Street, Farmville, VA 23901, party of the second part, Grantee.

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party
of the first part does hereby grant, ht;rgain, sell and convey, with GENERAL WARRANTY oftitle,
unto the said party of the second part the following described real estate, to-wit;

All that certain tract or parcel of land situated in Farmville Magisterial District, Prince Edward
County, Virginia, containing 4.682 acres, fronting on SiMI Way and being bourded on the North and
East by unopened streets; on the West by the Waterworks Players Inc.; it being more particularly
described on a pist by John M. Duggan dated June 17, 2009 and attached hereto for a more particular
description of the property; it being the identical property conveyed to O. Henry Booth by deed dated
May 29, 1996, recorded in Deed Book 302, page 791.

The party of the first part covenant that he has the right to convey the said land to the said
grantes; that the said grantee shall have quiet possession of the said land, free from all encumbrances;
that he has done no act to encumber the said land; and that he will execute such further assurances

of title to said fand as may be requisite.

114



Instrument# 200901858 Page 2

WITNESS the following signature and seal:

(SEAL)
0. HENRY BOOTH

STATE OF VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD, to-wit:

The foregoing instrument wes acknowledged before me this Jﬁ day of August, 2009, by
O. Hemry Booth.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires

115



05060 ‘ON T4 6002 ‘T2 AVIA

109£-168-727 X¥d  0058-16S=-9Y Hd
10402 "VA 2TUAWNYL LS QYIHL 16V 100

7 ONINNVId « °‘S'1'D » ONIAIAUNS ONV
VINIOWIA ‘ALNNOD QYVMAT EONIJ a7d NVEaNG  NOSLYM
LOTILSIA HTTIANI VA
T64 HOVA LV 20€ X004 agada
D D m \f o= n ” {(M/7d "2309) L2-¥ 1v1d .9, 180UYd
|1 uawigs ub Leva AVM INS
Ag  ANMO AI¥SJO¥d LVHI ONIgd f1 .20 dNnod L —
) . 1 :
D m | | \ v .r —~d n%mm )
—— m. ~ ,,.. 5 / .ww.
\ RS prirkig rE
002 002 00 0 60 Mallipl.9¥5=Dga ! <
/ . ! oo s 3 JevhIvig %_ 5
Y W0FE8e=7 Z m
o ‘e, 00'08=¥ )
(g S vV 168 LL) aithe  * P 3
e n .M.ﬁaaﬁ
il ? m . £ ,m * ©Ege
T TR Y o F e
~ o s [ :
CF weaowe Y@ 8177 SMIDVERYY B o B
% - I.m r ] s WN
v \ M 7 w
\_.u.—l 7~ 4» ~ —
% \/41.4'.«|A|..—A..!A|ul..la.l=oa&m..la|.n.la.“lanl.fl» ‘
~ *INIWIEV3 IDYNIVNO AU A A -~
MGHS OL §0-L}-0 Q3ISIATY 28 201 T, | K3
aned | > s
agy | \ e
/ o Y H ¥
’ I} % A
4 1 -
Tt W g) o
11 ¥ HIIHM ! Mf oot
' Qu0334 40 04 » , e
ANHESYZ ANV OL 123r8NS 51 AZMINS SIHL 0 Sl * NN PP O
14 LNTNNND HFEES.185=D4d ATy % LN ,
'UNROG SHL ‘2 ML6NRTD T o4 ey wy - vwoo N,
"W XV) 338 | wlSiTPE0T — a0y ?Nwﬁw‘mw ~
m IFB z 0005y

P TOT

£ @bed 8G8I06002 #IuSTNa}sSUY

116



Instrument# 200901858 Page 4

INSTRUMENT #200901858
RECORDED IN THE CLERK'S OFFICE OF
PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY ON

Aszza ogﬂsaﬁgr{r’gnaﬂgnﬁzgégm A3
Grantor’s Tax: & dio.00 REQUIRED BY GEC 58.1-807 OF THE VA, CODE
smined andMIDeLver-d To: STATE: $105.00 LOCAL; 51133. 00
Date: -PMWMM HACHELLE J, EPFES, CLERK
. ..2.40.09 RECGRDED BY? DLL

117



EXHIBIT “B"

118



POINT oF BEGINNING| 0189 ACRES
AMES "p38-2=50) AT)
: Tiféoggmssaym —1
INST- T
e
vl ¥ 3
-
e ‘5}‘2‘, \ @
(R ‘ =
. . ! g
—
\ LT &y
1 A
% | L9 e
0 [} __,"".-
i T
By ~ 3000 | 0.281 ACRES
YN ] J.00 j———— NEW 30° INGRESS/EGRESS &
Bré g{ ) o UTILITY/FIRER EASEMENT
o P
=8 i i
£ /’ i
N )
l} ”—”’ % "J
//,,.— \ 2 ,/_,, .
PP - EE-”,‘\ f/J’ \\
gy P N\ )
1 Poag \ AN
7 N \
- T N \,
- oy S DRAINAGE EASEMENT N
17.5681 113 |ING RAY HWY., P.B. 6, FG. 87 LN
”
SMI WAY
(60 STREET)

O

AR

F/22/25
TODD/M. /LENNING

(PARCEL "G" P.C. A~77)
(PARCEL 'B", HWY. P.5. 6 FC 87)

SURVEYOR OF RECORD: PROJECT:
NOTES: LENNING LAND SURVEYING
1. PHYSICAL SURVEY PERFORMED ON APRIL 11, 2126 LEWISTON PLANT ROAD FARMVILLE GROVE
5
. BU’:’:"_EZ'S%%;' 391;%922 SITE INFORMATION:
2. FOR ADDITIONAL SURVEYOR'S NOTES, SEE i 85 SMI WAY
SHEET 2, ENGINEER OF RECORD: FARMVILLE VA 23901
BAMMAN CONSULTING, LLC
3 PROJECT IS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF 14489 ST ANDREWS LN SHEET NO:
TOWN OF FARMVILLE ASHLAND, VA 23005 1 O F 2
PH: 703.328.8574
UN. A~2237—1

N, A~2237—1

119




LESSEE'S 30 NON-EXCLUSIVE INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SM) WAy,
WHICH POINT2i5277.58' EAST OF THE SOUTH WEST PROPERTY CORNER
OF T.M.236—2~2;

THENCE NOO'32'59"W A DISTANCE OF 35.16° TO A POINT: THENCE
NB6°48°53°E A DISTANCE OF 145.93° TO A FOINT; THENCE ND713°35'E A
DISTANCE OF 44.87° TO A POINT; THENCE N11°00°00'W A DISTANCE OF
104.74° TO A POINT; THENCE N79°00'00'E A DISTANCE OF 30.00° TO A
POINT AT THE NORTH WEST CORNER OF THE 75°X75° LEASE AREA:
THENCE S11°00°00°E A DISTANCE OF 75.00' ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
THE 75'X75' LEASE AREA TO A POINT; THENCE N79'00°00°E A DISTANCE
OF 75.00° ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 75°X75 LEASE AREA TO A
POINT; THENCE LEAVING THE 75'X75' LEASE AREA S11°00°00°F A
DISTANCE Of 30.00" TO A POINT; THENCE S79°00°00"W A DISTANCE OF
73.50" TO A POINT; THENCE S07°13'35"W A DISTANCE OF 71.85° 70 A
POINT; THENCE S66°48'53'W A DISTANCE OF 143.11" TQ A POINT:
THENCE SO00°32'59°E A DISTANCE OF 15.17° TO A POINT ON THE NORTH
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SMI WAY; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SMI WAY S89°27°01°W A DISTANCE OF 30.00' TO A POINT: WHICH IS THE
Pglg;’ gg RggGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF 12234.48 SQUARE FEET, OR
(73

75'X75' LEASE PREMISES AREA

BEGINNING AT A POINT AT THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF
gzts' E;.;g\.,s;_ﬁ 'S 30" INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY/FIBER

THENCE N79'00°00"€ A DISTANCE OF 75.00° TO A POINT;
THENCE S11°00°00°E A DISTANCE OF 75.00° TO A POINT:
THENCE ALONG THE LESSEE'S 30 INGRESS/EGRESS AND
UTILITY/FIBER EASEMENY S79'00°00'W A DISTANCE OF
75.00° TO A POINT; THENCE ALONG THE LESSEE'S 30°
INGRESS/EGRESS AND UTILITY/FIBER EASEMENT,
N71°0Q°00W A DISTANCE OF 75.00° TO A POINT: WHICH
IS THE POINT OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN AREA OF
5625.00 SQUARE FEET, 0.129 ACRES

VIRGINIA STATE GRID

NEW 30’ INGRESS/EGRESS &
UTHITY EASEMENT

NEBEARING __|DISTANCE]

NOO 3258 W135.167
N66'4853 € | 145.93
NO7 13 35°E | 44.87"
N1T'0000°W|104.74”
J0.00°

T.

r
~)

(TN

3
]
J
pa]j=
~
my

U
~N[®
Wy
e
=
]
o |
Q)

r

r
w0(
{,“

b

|
1S
<

14 |N79°00°00°E | 75.00°
15 |ST100G0'E | 75.00"

0 50 100 150
SURVEYOR OF RECORD: PROJECT:
NOTES: LENNING LAND SURVEYING
1. PHYSICAL SURVEY PERFORMED ON APRIL 11, 2126 LEWISTON PLANT ROAD FARMV] LLE GROVE
nil BURKBVILLE, VA 23022 SITE INFORMATION:
PH: 434.767.9940 85 SMI WAY
2. FOR ADDITIONAL SURVEYOR'S NOTES. SEE _
SHEET2. SHONEEROR e FARMVILLE VA 23901
BAMMAN CONSULTING, LLC .
3 PROJECT IS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF 14489 ST ANDREWS LN SHEET NO:
TOWN OF FARMVILLE ASHLAND, VA 23005 2 O F 2
: PH: 703.328.8574
JN. A-2237~2

JN. A-2237~1

120




INSTRUMENT 202500681
RECORDED IN THE CLERK'S OFFICE OF
PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT ON
MAY B, 2025 AT 10:48 AM
LYNNETTE COE, CLERK
RECGRDED BY: JBR

121



Please publish the following public hearing notice in THE FARMVILLE HERALD on Wednesday,
August 6, 2025 and Friday, August 8, 2025.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Prince Edward County Planning Commission will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on
Tuesday, August 19, 2025 commencing at 7:00 p.m. in the Board of Supervisors Room, Prince
Edward County Courthouse, 111 N. South Street, 3™ Floor, Farmville, Virginia, to receive citizen
input prior to considering the following:

1. A Special Use Permit request filed by Jonathan Yates for Arcola Towers in order to
construct a 197’ self-supporting communications tower on land denoted as Tax Map
Parcel 023B-2-2, located at 85 SMI Way, Farmville, VA, 0.10 mile from its intersection
with Industrial Park Road., which is zoned 11, General Industrial District.

Citizen input for Public Hearings will be received through: (1) in-person participation; (2)
remote participation by calling 1-844-890-7777, Access Code # 390313; or (3) by written
comments mailed to: Planning Commission, P.O. Box 382, Farmville, VA 23901. Please limit word
count to no more than 500 words. Comments must be received by 2:00 p.m. the day of the
meeting; via email to info@co.prince-edward.va.us; or via facsimile at 434-392-6683. Based on
the number of speakers, the Chair will determine the time allotted to each. Citizens may also
view the monthly Planning Commission meeting live (no public input) at the County’s YouTube
Channel by using the link on the County website under Meetings & Public Notices.

Additional information regarding the special use permit applications is available for public
review on the County’s web site at www.co.prince-edward.va.us or in the Prince Edward County
Administrator’s Office, 111 N. South Street, 3 Floor, Farmville, VA. It is the County’s intent to
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you have questions or require special
accommodations, please contact the County Administrator’s Office at 434-392-8837.

Hi#

122



Prince Edward County

SUP Request - Arcola Towers

Applicant: Arcola Tower Tax Map: 023B-2-2

Schedule B

List of adjoining Property owners and mailing addresses.

Parcel ID Owner Address Note

023B-2-1 WATERWORKS PLAYERS INC PO BOX 671 FARMVILLE,
VA 23901

023B-A-2 PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PO BOX 382 FARMVILLE,
VA 23901

023B-A-3 FARMERS COOPERATIVE INC 182 SMI WAY FARMVILLE,
VA 23901

023B-1-V ROCK & METAL LLC 1815 PRICE DRIVE
FARMVILLE, VA 23901

023B-1-U TOWN OF FARMVILLE PO BOX 368 FARMVILLE,
VA 23901

023B-A-1 LAPP ASSOCIATES LLC 300 INDUSTRIAL PARK ROAD
FARMVILLE, VA 23901

123




PLANNING COMMISSION DIRECTOR OF PLANNING &

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Robert Love, GISP

John Prengaman
Chairman

Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.

Board Representative Post Office Box 382

111 N. South Street, 3™ Floor
Farmville, VA 23901

John H COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD, VIRGINIA Office: (434) 414-3037
lohn Hogan Fax: (434) 392-6683
Whitfield M. Paige

John “Jack” W. Peery, Jr. rlove@co.prince-edward.va.us
Rhett L. Weiss

Ken Copeland
Brad Fuller
David Hart

August 4, 2025

To: Property Owners

From: Robert Love, Director of Planning and Community Development
Subject: Special Use Permit Request — Arcola Towers

The Prince Edward County Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on
Tuesday, August 19, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. to receive citizen input on a request for a
Special Use Permit request filed by Jonathan Yates for Arcola Towers in order to
construct a 197’ self-supporting communications tower on land denoted as Tax Map
Parcel 023B-2-2, located at 85 SMI Way, Farmville, VA, 0.10 mile from its
intersection with Industrial Park Road., which is zoned 11, General Industrial District.

You are receiving this notice because you own land in the vicinity of the propetty
requested to be approved for a special use permit. Following the hearing the Prince
Edward County Planning Commission may vote to recommend approval or denial of
the request.

Instructions of how to listen or participate in the meeting and public hearing are
contained on the reverse side of this letter. If you have any questions or comments,
please do not hesitate to contact me at: 434-414-3037 or by email at:

flove(@co.prince-edward.va.us
Respectfull z

Robert Love
Director of Planning and Community Development

124



PLANNING COMMISSION Director of Planning and

John Prengaman Community Development

Chairman
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr. -

Robert Love

. Post Office Box 382
Board Representative 111 N. South Street, 3" Floor
Ken Copeland Farmville, VA 23901
Brad Fuller
David Hart COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD, VIRGINIA Office: (434) 392-8837
John Hogan Fax: (434) 392-6683
Whitfield M. Paige _
John “Jack” W. Peery, ir. rlove@co.prince-edward.va.us
Rhett L. Weiss www.co.prince-edward.va.us
August 4, 2025
C. Scott Davis, Town Manager
Town of Farmville, Virginia
P.O. Box 368
Farmville, VA 23901

From: Robert Love, Director of Planning and Community Development
Subject: Special Use Permit Request — Arcola Towers
Dear Mr. Davis;

Per §15.2-2204 (C) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, you are being sent
written notification of a rezoning application as listed in the attached public notice
which involves a parcel of land within one-half mile of a boundary with an adjoining
locality.

The Prince Edward Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on August 19,
2025 at 7:00 p.m. to receive input on the requests. Instructions of how to listen or
participate in the meeting and public hearing are contained on the reverse side of this
letter.

If you have any questions or comments, please forward them to my attention no later

than noon on the date of the public meeting. please do not hesitate to contact me at:
434-414-3037 ot by email at: tlove@co.prince-edward.va.us

Respectfully,

L e—

Robert Love
Director of Planning and Community Development

125



—— Aiepunog Ajunon aulsjus) peoy

Atepunog sjjiAwIe === 1 sjeqe [eosed s|ealed

G20z ‘G 1snbny

C-2-9£20 # de\ xe] - dNS Siemo] ejooly




ARCOLA TOWERS - TAX MAP # 023B-2-2
SUP CONDITIONS

SITE PLAN

1.

Development activities on the site shall be limited to those as specified in the Special Use
Permit Application and Site Plan. The final locations of incidental facilities may be adjusted
provided no such adjustment violates any buffers, setbacks, or other statutory requirement.
The concepts reflected in the filed special use permit dated 07/03/2025 ate hereby made
part of these development conditions.

The maximum tower height shall not exceed 199 feet, including antennas.

Any proposed expansion of the operation, change of activities or additional facilities ot
activities shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County Planning and Community
Development office for review prior to implementation. Any changes may be subject to
Permit amendment procedures, including Public Hearings.

The site shall meet all minimum use and design standards set forth in Sec. 3-100.13 —
Miscellaneous Uses-Towets of the Prince Edward County Code (Zoning Ordinance).

All landscaping shall be mulched and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of the Prince
Edward County Planning and Community Development Director. Any vegetation found to
be of poor condition shall be replaced and/or improved at the reasonable ditection of the
Planning and Community Development Director or his designee.

ENVIRONMENTAL

6.

All pollution control measures, erosion and sediment control measures, storm water control
facilities, and all construction activities shall comply with the requitements of the apptroptiate
federal, state, and local regulations and ordinances.

Any development activities of structural or of a land disturbing nature not specifically
addressed by these Conditions shall be in conformance with applicable provisions of federal,
state, and local statues and regulations.

TRANSPORTATION

8.

All entrances to the sire shall be installed in accordance with and permitted by the Vitginia
Department of Transportation.

GENERAL

9.

10.

11.

The tower shall be inspected every five years and certified as safe by a private firm
contracted by the applicant. A copy of the inspection report shall be submitted to the Prince
Edward County Planning and Community Development Office.

This Permit is non-transferable, except and unless written notice from the Permittee
regarding the transfer, and a signed document from the proposed new Permittee is received
by the Planning and Community Development Office which states that the new Permittee
agrees to comply with all terms and Conditions imposed with the original Permit Issuance. If
the proposed new Permittee desires to amend the otiginal Permit Conditions, amendments
must be addressed by the Prince Edward County Planning Commission and Board of
Supervisors through the Special Use Permit process.

Failure of Permittee to full conform to all tetms and conditions may result in revocation of
this Special Use Permit if said failure or failures are not cottected or addressed to the
satisfaction, not to be unreasonably withheld, of the County within thirty (30) days of written
notice from the County.

127





